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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantdbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgje Act). Yes No X
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There were 81,767,982 shares of common stockl$taOvalue, outstanding at February 23, 2009.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Selected designated portions of the Registrantfimitiee Proxy Statement in connection with the Ré@nt's 2009 Annual Meeting of stockholders areorporated by
reference into Part Il of this Annual Report.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

GENERAL

Founded by the Swift meat packing intevyesxd the Darling family in 1882, Darling Imational Inc. (“Darling”) was incorporated in Delaware in 1¢
under the name “Darling-Delaware Company, InOfi December 28, 1993, Darling changed its name ftDarling-Delaware Company, Inc.” toDarling Internatione
Inc.” The address of Darling’s principal executfice is 251 O’Connor Ridge Boulevard, Suite 300ing, Texas, 75038, and its telephone numbdhiataddress is (972) 717-
0300.

Darling is a leading provider of renderinggyeling and recovery solutions to the nation’s fandustry. Darling collects and recycles animalfvgpducts and us:
cooking oil from food service establishments andvjates grease trap cleaning services to many ofainee establishments. In fiscal 2006, Darlingough its whollyewnec
subsidiary Darling National LLC, a Delaware limitédbility company (“Darling National”), completetthe acquisition of substantially all of the asqglte “Transaction”)of
National By-Products, LLC, an lowa limited liability companyNBP"). Darling and its subsidiaries, including Darling Matl, are collectively referred to herein as
“Company”. The Company processes raw materials at 43 fasiliteated throughout the United States into fimispeoducts such as protein (primarily meat and bmeel
“MBM"), tallow (primarily bleachable fancy tallow,BFT”"), yellow grease (“YG”)and hides. The Company sells these products raditjoand internationally, primarily
producers of oleo-chemicals, bio-fuels, soaps,fpetls, leather goods and livestock feed for uséngeedients in their products or for further pragsieg. The Company’
business and operations in fiscal 2008 and 200ddeca full year of contribution from the assetquired in the Transaction, as compared to 33 weéksntribution from thes
assets in fiscal 2006.

Commencing in 1998, as part of an overalltsgya to better commit financial resources, the Canys operations were organized into two segmentssd lage: 1
Rendering, the core business of turning inedibtelfbyproducts from meat and poultry processors into ljigdlity feed ingredients and fats for other indastpplications; ar
2) Restaurant Services, a group focused on growiaggrease collection business and grease colfeetipipment sales while expanding the line of sesi which include
grease trap servicing, and the National Serviceg€&fiNSC"), offered to food service establishments and foodgssors. The NSC schedules services such asdfidtoae an
used cooking oil collection as well as trap clegnfior contracted customers using the Company’suregs or third party providers. For the financesults of the Company’
business segments, see Note 18 of Notes to CoatadidFinancial Statements.

The Company’s net external sales from contiguiperations by operating segment were as foll{@whousands):

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2008 2007 2006
Continuing operations
Rendering $ 585,10 72.5% $ 464,46 72.0% $ 279,01
68.6%
Restaurant Services 222,384 27.5 180, 84t 28.0 127,97¢ 31.4
Total $ 807 49z 100.0% $ 645 313 100.0% $ 406 ,99C 100.0

%

PROCESSING OPERATIONS

The Company creates finished products primarilpdbh the drying, grinding, separating and blendifigts various raw materials. The process staith the
collection of animal processing Iproducts (fat, bones, feathers and offal) from npeakers, grocery stores, butcher shops, meat isagke food service establishments, as
as used cooking oil from food service establishmant grocery stores.

The animal processing Ipyeducts are ground and heated to extract watesapdrate oils from animal tissue as well as toertak material suitable as an ingrec
for animal feed. Protein is separated from thekedomaterial by pressing the material, then grigdind sifting it through screens. The separatkomtas centrifuged and/
refined for purity. The primary finished produaterived from the processing of animal by-products tallow and protein. Other kpyroducts include feather meal and bl
meal. Used cooking oil from food service estalstishts is processed under a separate procedurietbbtes heat processing and settling, as weleéiaing, resulting in derive
yellow grease, fee-grade animal fat or oleo-chemical feedstocks.
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PURCHASE AND COLLECTION OF RAW MATERIALS

The Company operates a fleet of approximaély trucks and tractdrailers to collect raw materials from approximgt&lL6,000 food service establishments, but
shops, grocery stores and independent meat anthyppubcessors. The raw materials collected araufsetured into the finished products sold by tlwem@any. The Compa
replaces or upgrades its vehicle fleet as needethintain efficient operations.

Rendering materials are collected in one of twomess. Certain large suppliers, such as large preaessors and poultry processors, are furnishibdbwlk trailers it
which the raw material is loaded. The Companydpants these trailers directly to a processinglifpciCertain of the Compang’rendering facilities are highly dependen
one or a few suppliers. Should any of these sappthoose alternate methods of disposal, ceaseperations, have their operations interruptedasualty or otherwise ce:
using the Compangy’collection services, these operating facilitiesild be materially and adversely affected. The gamy provides the remaining suppliers, primarilgagry
stores and butcher shops, with containers in wtudleposit the raw material. The containers ackqa up by or emptied into Company trucks on aguticibasis. The type a
frequency of service is determined by individugbglier requirements, the volume of raw materialegated by the supplier, supplier location and weathmong other factors.

Used cooking oil from food service establishmdntplaced in various sizes and types of contaimérieh are supplied by the Company. In some ingsnthes
containers are loaded directly onto the trucks,levii other instances the oil is pumped throughaeuum hose into the truck. The Company also settentainer for use
cooking oil collection to food service establishigenalled CleanSta? , which is a proprietary setfentained collection system that is housed eithside or outside tt
establishment, with the used cooking oil pumpedadliy into collection vehicles via an outside valvehe frequency of all forms of raw material cotlen is determined by t
volume of oil generated by the food service esshinfient.

The raw materials collected by the Company amsparted either directly to a processing planbaa transfer station where materials from sevestiéction routes ai
loaded into trailers and transported to a procgsgiant. Collections of animal processing finpducts generally are made during the day, anéniatg are delivered to plants
processing within 24 hours of collection to detgoilage. Collection of used cooking oil can be mad any time of the day or night, depending orpBep preference; the
materials may be held for longer periods of timéohe processing. Depending on market conditions,Gompany charges a collection fee to offset siggoof the expen:
incurred in collecting raw material.

During the 2008 fiscal year, the Companidrgest single supplier accounted for approxiipe&o of the total raw material processed by then@any, and the :
largest raw materials suppliers accounted for apprately 27% of the total raw material processedttiyy Company. For a discussion of the Compamgmpetition for ra
materials, see “Competition.” Many of the Companguppliers supply raw material under Iaegn supplier agreements. While the Company doésnticipate problems
the availability or supply of raw material in thatdire, a significant decrease in raw material vauwnould materially and adversely affect the Compaiysiness and results
operations.

RAW MATERIALS PRICING

The Company has two primary pricing arrangemelitis its raw materials suppliers. Approximately 58¥%the Company's annual volume of raw materiabsciguire
on a "formula" basis. Under a formula arrangemtd,charge or credit for raw materials is tiegptlished finished product commodity prices aftedulcting a fixed servic
charge. The Company acquires the remaining anralaine of raw material under "ndormula” arrangements whereby suppliers are ejplagdt a fixed price, are not paid,
are charged for the expense of collection, depegnadinvarious economic and competitive factors.
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The credit received or amount charged for raaterial under both formula and nérmula arrangements is based on various factaduding the type of ra
materials, the expected value of the finished pcboda be produced, the anticipated yields, the mawf material generated by the supplier and psiegsand transportati
costs. Competition among processors to procurematerials also affects the price paid for raw make See "Competition."

Formula prices are generally adjusted on aklyeenonthly or quarterly basis while ndormula prices or charges are adjusted as needegspmnd to changes
finished product prices or related operating costs.

FINISHED PRODUCTS

The finished products that result from proges®f animal byproducts are oils, primarily BFT and YG; MBM, a peim; and hides. Oils are used as ingredienthé
production of pet food, animal feed, soaps and ssbstitute for traditional fuels. Oletemical producers use these oils as feedstocgsotiuce specialty ingredients use:
paint, rubber, paper, concrete, plastics and awaof other consumer and industrial products. MBMused primarily as a high protein additive irt fiod and animal fee
Hides are sold to leather distributors and martufacs for the production of leather goods.

Predominantly all of the Company's finished prddware commodities or are priced relative to tresemodities. While the Company's finished prodactsgenerall
sold at prices prevailing at the time of sale, @@npanys ability to deliver large quantities of finishetbgucts from multiple locations and to coordinaa¢es from a centr
location enables the Company to occasionally recaipremium over the then-prevailing market price.

MARKETING, SALES AND DISTRIBUTION OF FINISHED PRODU CTS

The Company sells its finished products worldwi@mmodity sales are primarily managed through @umpany's commodity trading department whic
headquartered in Irving, Texas. The Company alsintains sales offices in Des Moines, lowa and Logeles, California for the sale and distributioh selecte:
products. This sales force is in contact with salvBundred customers daily and coordinates the aatl assists in the distribution of most finisipedducts produced at t
Company's processing plants. The Company sellfinished products internationally through commisditbrokers, Company agents and directly to custenia variou
countries.

The Company has no material foreign operationseliports a portion of its products to customersanous foreign countries or regions including #she Pacifi
Rim, North Africa, Mexico and South America. Totlport sales were $132.2 million, $171.6 milliande$112.7 million for the years ended January 892@ecember 2
2007 and December 30, 2006, respectively. Thel lelzexport sales varies from year to year depemain the relative strength of domestic versus @sgsmarkets. TI
Company obtains payment protection for most ofdteign sales by requiring payment before shipneerity requiring bank letters of credit or guarasteépayment from U.:
government agencies. The Company ordinarily isl pai its products in U.S. dollars and has not elgmeed any material currency translation lossearmyr material foreig
exchange control difficulties. See Note 18 of Mdie Consolidated Financial Statements for a breakdof the Company’s sales by domestic and foreigstomers.

Following diagnosis of the first U.S. casebolvine spongiform encephalopathy (“BSE”) on Deceng® 2003, many countries banned imports of pr8duced be:
and beef products, including MBM and initially BRRough this initial ban on tallow was relaxed &rmit imports of U.Sproduced tallow with less than 0.15% impuritiess
of February 23, 2009, most foreign markets thatewdosed to U.S. beef following the discovery o first U.S. case of BSE had been reopened to €e$ hlthough son
countries only accept boneless beef or beef frotedass than 30 months of age. Japan is motgatége and only permits imports of U.S. beef fraattle that are age verifi
to be 20 months of age or younger at slaughtepoBxmarkets for MBM containing beef material prodd in the U.S. have remained closed with the diaepf the Indones
market.
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The Companyg management monitors market conditions and pfaress finished products on a daily basis. If ketrconditions or prices were to significantly cha
the Company’s management would evaluate and impleamgy measures that it may deem necessary torrdgpothe change in market conditions. For lafgemula-baser
pricing suppliers, the indexing of finished prodpdte to raw material cost effectively fixes thgs margin on finished product sales at a st&hiel | providing some protecti
to the Company from price declines.

Finished products produced by the Company areildiséd primarily by truck and rail from the Compgéplants shortly following production. While tieeare som
temporary inventory accumulations at various pocations for export shipments, inventories rarelgeed three weekgroduction and, therefore, the Company uses lir
working capital to carry inventories and reducesekposure to fluctuations in commodity priceshédtfactors that influence competition, markets #mel prices that tt
Company receives for its finished products include quality of the Company's finished products, stoner health consciousness, worldwide credit cmmditand U.<
government foreign aid. From time to time, the @amy enters into arrangements with its suppliensaaf materials pursuant to which these suppliegstiack the Company’
finished products.

COMPETITION

Management of the Company believes that the mosipetitive aspect of the business is the procurémémraw materials rather than the sale of finis
products. During the last ten plus years, pronedransolidation within the meat packing industag hesulted in bigger and more efficient slaughtedperations, the major
of which utilize “captive”processors (rendering operations integrated wetnibkat or poultry packing operation). Simultanggube number of small meat packers, which |
historically been a dependable source of supplyn@rcaptive processors, has decreased significantlthofgh the total amount of slaughtering may bedlaonly moderatel
increasing, the availability, quantity and qualiyraw materials available to the independent pgsces from these sources have all decreased. Tdtses have been offset,
part, however, by increasing environmental consriess. The need for food service establishmerdsrtgply with environmental regulations concernihg proper disposal
used restaurant cooking oil is offering a growtleaarfor this raw material source. The rendering agstaurant services industries are highly fragetwrand ver
competitive. The Company competes with other rendeand restaurant services businesses and dliermaethods of disposal of animal processingpbyducts and us:
restaurant cooking oil provided by trash haulerast® management companies anddiésel companies, as well as the alternative efdl disposal. Major competitors for
collection of raw material include: Baker Commdelitin the West and Griffin Industries in Texas &mel Southeast. Each of these businesses conipdieth the Renderir
and Restaurant Services segments. Another majopetitor in the restaurant services business isaRemnt Technologies, Inc.

In marketing its finished products domesticallydambroad, the Company faces competition from othecessors and from producers of other sui
commodities. Tallows and greases are, in certetances, substitutes for soybean oil and palmistavhile MBM is a substitute for soybean me@bnsequently, the prices
BFT, YG and MBM correlate with these substitute condities. The markets for finished products arpdoted mainly by the worldwide supply of and deméodfats, oils
proteins and grains.

SEASONALITY

The amount of raw materials made available toGbmpany by its suppliers is relatively stable omeekly basis except for those weeks which inclu@gomholidays
during which the availability of raw materials deels because major meat and poultry processonscameperating. Weather is also a factor. Extrgmedrm weather adverse
affects the ability of the Company to make highealdy products because the raw material detegsratore rapidly than in cooler weather, while exel/ cold weather,
certain instances, can hinder the collection of ramterials. Weather can vary significantly fronegrear to the next and may impact comparabilitpmérating results of tl
Company between periods.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The Company maintains valuable trademarks, semiaeks, copyrights, trade names, trade secret@riptary technologies and similar intellectual pedp, anc
considers its intellectual property to be of matevalue. The Company has registered or applieddgistration of certain of its intellectual prape including the tricolc
triangle used in the Company’s signage and logas tae names "Darling," "Darling Restaurant Servicasd "CleanStar." The Compasypolicy generally is to purs
intellectual property protection considered necgssaadvisable.

EMPLOYEES AND LABOR RELATIONS

As of January 3, 2009, the Company employeutagmately 1,870 persons fuilme. Approximately 45.9% of the total number afoyees are covered by collect
bargaining agreements; however, the Company hasational or multi-plant union contracts. Managetneglieves that the Comparsytelations with its employees and tl
representatives are good. There can be no assytameever, that new agreements will be reachelabwitunion action or will be on terms satisfacttirghe Company.

REGULATIONS

The Company is subject to the rules and regulatainvarious federal, state and local governmeagahcies. Material rules and regulations and pipiGable agencit
include:

« The Food and Drug AdministratiofFDA”), which regulates food and feed safety. Effectivegést 1997, the FDA promulgated a rule prohibitihg use ¢
mammalian proteins, with some exceptions, in fdedsattle, sheep and other ruminant animals (2R 689.2000, referred to herein as the “BSE Fee@'RuTThe
intent of this rule is to prevent further spreadB&E, commonly referred to as “mad cow disea€arfmpany management believes the Company is in ¢canggl witt
the provisions of this rule.

Interim regulations published by the FDA in 2004 aamended in 2006 prohibit: 1) certain animal bgdoicts known as specified risk materials (“SRNFYm
human food and 2) SRM and materials from non-anbuyjar dead cattle from cosmetics. Edible BFTt feaither derived from SRNree raw materials or conta
less than 0.15% insoluble impurities are permitteiuman food supplements and cosmetics. Derigatf BFT (glycerin and fatty acids) are exemptrirthes:
regulations.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors — The Company’s busimeayg be affected by the impact of BSE and other feaigty issues,for more information regarding cert:
FDA rules that affect the Compé’s business, including changes to the BSE Feed

« The United States Department of Agricultu(@QJSDA”), which regulates collection and production method4thin the USDA, two agencies exercise di
regulatory oversight of the Compé¢'s activities:

— Animal and Plant Health Inspection Serv(“APHIS”) certifies facilities and claims made fekported materials; establishes and enforces inmpqttirements
for live animals and animal products, ¢

— Food Safety Inspection Servi(“FSIS") regulates sanitation and food safety progre
On December 30, 2003, the Secretary of Agricultamaounced new beef slaughter/meat processing temdato assure consumers of the safety of the

supply. These regulations prohibit nambulatory animals from entering the food chainguiee removal of SRM at slaughter and prohibit eases from cattle tes'
for BSE from entering the food chain until the aalsmare shown negative for BSE.

On November 19, 2007, APHIS implemented revisedoipegulations that allowed Canadian cattle ov@n#nths of age and born after March 1, 1999 anihe
products derived from such cattle to be imported the U.S. for any use. Imports of Canadian catienger than 30 months of age have been allowezt $Wlarcl
2005. Imports of SRM from Canadian born cattle glaared in Canada are not permitl
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« The Environmental Protection AgendyEPA”"), which regulates air and water discharge requiresjeag well as local and state agencies governingral wate
discharge

« State Departments of Agriculturevhich regulate animal by-product collection arahsportation procedures and animal feed quality.
« TheUnited States Department of Transportat{®dSDOT"), as well as local and state agencies,clvhiegulate the operation of the Company’s commakwahicles.

« The Securities and Exchange Commissié8EC”), which regulates securities and information requiredannual and quarterly reports filed by publi¢tadec
companies

These material rules and regulations and atiles and regulations promulgated by other agemoigy influence the Company’s operating resultmator more
facilities.
AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Ramy is required to file annual, quarterly and sgeeports, proxy statements and other informatidth the SEC
which can be read and/or copies made at the SE@ikcFReference Room at 100 F Street N.E., Roon®188&shington D.C. 20549. Please call the SEG&1QLSECO330 foi
further information about the Public Reference Rodrhe SEC maintains a web site_at http://www.secihat contains reports, proxy and information staets, and othi
information regarding issuers that file electroficavith the SEC. The Company files electronicalith the SEC.

The Company makes available, free of chatgeugh its investor relations web site, its reporidorms 10-K, 10-Q and 8; and amendments to those reports, as
as reasonably practicable after they are filed vatHurnished to, the SEC pursuant to Section)18(45(d) of the Exchange Act.

The Company’s website is_http://www.darlingiimand the address for the Company'’s investor relateeb site is _http://www.darlingii.com/investoaspx.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Any investment in the Company will be sulijigcisks inherent to the Compasybusiness. Before making an investment decisitimei Company, you should carefi
consider the risks described below together withoélthe other information included in or incorpdeal by reference into this report. If any of theemts described in tl
following risk factors actually occurs, the Comp’s business, financial condition, prospects or resaf operations could be materially and adversefected. If any of the
events occurs, the trading price of the Compangtaisties could decline and you may lose all ortpdryour investment.

The Company'’s results of operations and cash flow ay be reduced by decreases in the market price d§iproducts.

The Company'’s finished products are commaslitiee prices of which are quoted on establishedneodity markets. Accordingly, the Compasyesults of operatio
will be affected by fluctuations in the prevailimgarket prices of these finished products. A sigaiit decrease in the market price of the Commapydducts would have
material adverse effect on the Company’s resultspefations and cash flow. In addition, the Conyfsmprincipal products are not future exchangeitrgdtommodities.

The most competitive aspect of the Company’s busiss is the procurement of raw materials.

The Company’s management believes that the omspetitive aspect of the Compasysusiness is the procurement of raw materialerdtiran the sale of finish
products. Pronounced consolidation within the npaatking industry has resulted in bigger and mdfieient slaughtering operations, the majority ofiiah utilize “captive”
processors. Simultaneously, the number of smaditmpackers, which have historically been a depdedsdurce of supply for nocaptive processors, such as the Company
decreased significantly. Although the total amoefrglaughtering may be flat or only moderatelyr@asing, the availability, quantity and qualityrefv materials available to t
independent processors from these sources haveeatbased. In addition, the Company has seen @paise in the use of restaurant grease in the gtioduof bio-
diesel. Furthermore, the general performance efutS. economy, declining U.S. consumer confideara® the inability of consumers and companies taioktredit due to tt
current lack of liquidity in the financial marketspuld have a negative impact on the Compsmaw material volume, such as through the fordeduce of raw materi
suppliers. A significant decrease in available raaterials or a closure of a raw material suppieuld materially and adversely affect the Companyisiness and results
operations including the carrying value of the Camys assets.
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The rendering and restaurant services industryighly fragmented and very competitive. The Conypanmpetes with other rendering and restaurantices
businesses and alternative methods of disposaliofed processing by-products and used restauraskig oil provided by trash haulers, waste manageroempanies and bio-
diesel companies, as well as the alternative efdl disposal. In addition, restaurants experigheé of used cooking oil. Depending on markenditions, the Compat
charges a collection fee to offset a portion ofdbst incurred in collecting raw material. To thdent suppliers of raw materials look to altermatthods of disposal, whethei
a result of the Company'’s collection fees beingndeg too expensive or otherwise, the Company'’s raterral supply will decrease and the Compargdllection fee revenu
will decrease, which could materially and adversdfgct the Company’s business and results of dipesa

Certain of the Company’s 43 operating facilities ae highly dependent upon a few suppliers.

Certain of the Comparg/rendering facilities are highly dependent on ona few suppliers. Should any of these suppbse alternate methods of disposal, ¢
their operations, have their operations interrugtgdcasualty or otherwise cease using the Compaaogllection services, these operating facilitieasynbe materially ar
adversely affected, which could materially and adely affect the Company’s business, earnings nisalaheet and/or cash flows.

The Company may incur material costs and liabilities in complying with government regulations.

The Company is subject to the rules and regulatainvarious federal, state and local governmeagahcies. Material rules and regulations and pipiGable agencit
include:

« The FDA, which regulates food and feed safety;

« The USDA, including its agencies APHIS and FSISiclvhiegulates collection and production methods;

« The EPA, which regulates air and water dischargairements, as well as local and state agenciesrgimg air and water discharge;

« State Departments of Agriculture, which regulatereh by-product collection and transportation praes and animal feed quality;

« The USDOT, as well as local and state transportagencies, which regulate the operation of the @omw’'s commercial vehicles; and

« The SEC, which regulates securities and informatémyuired in annual and quarterly reports filedpoglicly traded companies.

The applicable rules and regulations promelddty these agencies may influence the Comgamgyérating results at one or more facilities. lremnore, the loss of
failure to obtain necessary federal, state or Ipeainits and registrations at one or more of then@anys facilities could halt or curtail operations atpatted facilities, whic
could adversely affect the Company’s operatingltesdhe Company failure to comply with applicable rules and regigns could subject it to: 1) administrative peiealan
injunctive relief; 2) civil remedies, includingnis, injunctions and product recalls; and 3) aglv@ublicity. There can be no assurance that tmepany will not incur materi
costs and liabilities in connection with these sudad regulations.

The Company is highly dependent on natural gas andiesel fuel.

The Company operations are highly dependent on the use ofalajas and diesel fuel. Energy prices for natgas and diesel fuel are expected to remain Ve
throughout 2009. The Company consumes signifigalimes of natural gas to operate boilers in it to generate steam to heat raw material. Blagas prices represer
significant cost of factory operation included iost of sales. The Company also consumes significalnmes of diesel fuel to operate its fleet @fctors and trucks used
collect raw material. Diesel fuel prices represamignificant component of cost of collection expes included in cost of sales. Though the Compathyontinue to manac
these costs and attempt to minimize these expepsess are expected to remain volatile in fis@02 and represent an ongoing challenge to the Coyfpaperating results f

future periods. A material increase in energy gwifor natural gas and diesel fuel over a sustapegibd of time could materially adversely affelse tCompanys busines
financial condition and results of operations. Sem 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysisy’daecent history of natural gas pricing.
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The Company is and may continue to be adversely &ited by the ongoing world financial crisis.

The unprecedented turmoil existing in worldaficial, credit, commodities and stock markets imaye a significant negative effect on the Compsaibyisiness. TI
Companys forward view into the possible effects of thisnoil is limited. Among other things, the Compamgy be adversely impacted because its domestiinéerhations
customers and suppliers may not be able to aceéfisient capital to continue to operate their Imesises, or to operate them at prior levels. A dedhi consumer confidence
changing patterns in the availability and use @&pdsable income by consumers can negatively affettt the Companyg' suppliers and customers. Declining discretio
consumer spending or the loss or impairment of ammgful number of the Comparsysuppliers or customers could lead to a dislooatioeither raw material availability
customer demand. Tightened credit supply couldtiegly affect the Company’s customers’ abilityp@y for the Compang’products on a timely basis or at all, and coegiit
in a requirement for additional bad debt resernsishough many of the Company’s customer contracesformulabased, continued volatility in the commodities neaskcoulr
negatively impact the Comparsytevenues and overall profits. Counter party osKinished product sales can also impact revemaeoperating profits when customers ei
are unable to obtain credit or refuse to take @ejivof finished product due to market price dedindé the existing financial and credit crisis aégely impacts a lender in t
Companys credit facility, the ability of that lender torfd its portion of the commitment could be impairdthe inability of a lender to fund its committedrfion of the facility
does not excuse other lenders from funding theitiquts of the commitment.

Multi-employer defined benefit pension plans to whih the Company contributes may be under-funded.

The Company contributes to several multi-emp@talefined benefit pension plans based on obéigatarising under collective bargaining agreemeatsring union-
represented employees. The Company does not mahege multiemployer plans. Based upon the most currentlylabiai information from plan administrators, somu
which information is more than a year old, the Campbelieves that some of these multi-employer pkae undefunded due partially to a decline in the value fed tisse
supporting these plans, a reduction in the numbexctively participating members for whom employentributions are required and the level of besgfitovided by th
plans. In addition, the Pension Protection Acgated in August 2006, will require undemded pension plans to improve their funding matidthin prescribed intervals ba:
on the level of their under-funding beginning adyeas 2008. As a result, the Companyequired contributions to these plans may ineréaghe future. Furthermore, un
current law regarding multi-employer defined benpfans, any of a plan’s termination, the Compamwghkintary withdrawal from any undéunded plan, or the mass withdra
of all contributing employers from any under-fundeullti-employer defined benefit plan, would requitee Company to make payments to the plan for tbenganys
proportionate share of the multi-employer plan’dumded vested liabilities. Moreover, if a muitinployer defined benefit plan fails to satisfy agrtminimum fundin
requirements, the Internal Revenue Service may samponondeductible excise tax of 5% on the amduthieoaccumulated funding deficiency for those esyipts contributing 1
the fund. Requirements to pay increased contobstiwithdrawal liability and excise taxes couldatvely impact the Company’s liquidity and resufsoperations.

The Company’s business may be affected by the impaaf BSE and other food safety issues.

Effective August 1997, the FDA promulgated the BSted Rule in an effort to prevent the spread dE B3etection of the first case of BSE in the UrSDiecembe
2003 resulted in additional U.S. government regutest, finished product export restrictions by fgreigovernments, market price fluctuations for them@anys finishec
products and reduced demand for beef and beef pi®dhy consumers. Even though the export markett fS. beef have been significantlyopened, most of these mark
remain closed to MBM derived from U.S. beef. Con#dd concern about BSE in the U.S. may result ditiadal regulatory and market related challended tay affect tr
Company'’s operations or increase the Company’saiper costs.
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The following are recent developments andmeregulatory history with respect to BSE in th&SU.

« On April 25, 2008, the FDA published “Substanceshiited From Use in Animal Food or Feed,” (ther®i BSE Rule”)which becomes effective as a final rule
April 27, 2009. The Final BSE Rule amended 21 (38R.2000 and added 21 CFR 589.2001 to prohibiuteeof certain cattle materials in all feed anddféar
animals. Such prohibited cattle materials includg:the entire carcass of cattle positive for BEH;brain and spinal cord from cattle aged 30 rmsrand older; ({
the entire carcass of cattle aged 30 months aret ¢iéit were not inspected and passed for humasuogption and from which the brain and spinal coetenno
“effectively” removed; and (4) tallow derived from the listedpbited cattle materials unless such tallow corgaiao more than 0.15% insoluble impurities. The F
BSE Rule also prohibits the use of tallow deriveohf any cattle materials in feed for cattle andeottuminant animals, if such tallow contains mdrant 0.159
insoluble impurities. Except for these new resiits on tallow, materials derived from cattle yganthan 30 months of age and not positive for B&Enot affecte
by the Final BSE Rule and may still be used in faed food for animals pursuant to 21 CFR 589.200e insoluble impurity restrictions for tallow, Wwever, do nc
affect its use in feed for poultry, pigs and othen+tuminant animals, unless such tallow was derivedhfthe cattle materials prohibited by the Final BSiHe. O1
July 15, 2008, the FDA released “Feed Ban Enhanoeimglementation: Questions and Answeigs’'address initial questions about the Final BSEe Rubmitted t
the FDA by industry. On November 26, 2008 the FiBsued Draft Guidance for Industry: Small Entit@smpliance Guide for RenderersSubstances Prohibit
from use in Animal Food or Feed as a draft guidasrcéhe implementation of the Final BSE Rule. Tihal guidance is anticipated to be released dfterfFDA ha
completed its review of public comments submittedirly the open public comment period, which closedJanuary 26, 2009. The Company has made ¢
expenditures and implemented new processes anddgumEs in order that its operations will be conliaith the Final BSE Rule once it becomes effexctBased o
the foregoing, while the Company believes thataierinterpretive and enforcement issues remain saiwved with respect to the Final BSE Rule that e
clarification and guidance from the FDA and thata&i@ additional capital expenditures will be regal for compliance, the Company does not currenilycipate the
the Final BSE Rule will have a significant impact its operations or financial performance. Notsiftnding the foregoing, the Company can providessuranc
that unanticipated costs and/or reductions in raatenial volumes related to the Companymplementation of and compliance with the Fin&EBRule will no
negatively impact the Compa’s operations and financial performan

The occurrence of BSE in the U.S. may resuldditional finished product export restrictions foreign governments, market price fluctuations ttee Companys
finished products and/or reduced demand for beéfteef products by consumers. Legislative andlatony efforts to address BSE concerns and preampiterations of fee
ingredients, may result in additional U.S. governtmegulations and/or increase the Company’s operabsts.

The following are recent developments withpees to human food, pet food and animal feed safety

« On May 13, 2008, the FDA held a public meeting tespnt the agency'rulemaking intentions regarding the Food and Dxdgninistration Amendments Act of 20
(“the Act”) and to receive public comments on such intendddrectThe Act was signed into law on September2D®,7 as a result of Congressional concern fc
and livestock food safety, following the discoverfyadulterated imported pet and livestock food iarth 2007. The Act directs the Secretary of Heatth Huma
Services (“HHS")and the FDA to promulgate significant new requiratador the pet food and animal feed industriesaAserequisite to new requirements spec
by the Act, the FDA was directed to establish adrigble Food Registry by September 20, 2008. Oy ®B¥a 2008, however, the FDA announced that theoRable
Food Registry would not be operational until thergpof 2009. The impact of the Act on the Compahgny, will not be clear until the FDA establisha Reportab
Food Registry, completes the rulemaking processpainishes written guidance or new regulatic
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« On November 7, 2007, the FDA released its Foodetioin Plan (the “2007 Plan'yhich describes prevention, intervention and respairategies the FDA propo
to use for improving food and animal feed safetyifoported and domestically produced ingredient$ products. The 2007 Plan also lists additionabueses an
authorities that, in the FDA’opinion, are needed to implement the 2007 Plagislation will be necessary for the FDA to obt#iese additional authorities. As
February 23, 2009, Congress has not granted swetaaghorities to the FDA

Restrictions imposed by the Companys credit agreement and future debt agreements mayniit its ability to finance future operations or capital needs or engage i
other business activities that may be in the Compass interest.

The Company’s credit agreement currently, faare debt agreements may, restrict its ability to

« incur additional indebtedness;

« pay dividends and make other distributions;

« make restricted payments;

« create liens;

« merge, consolidate or acquire other businesses;

« sell or otherwise dispose of assets;

« make investments, loans and advances;

« guarantee indebtedness or other obligations;

« enter into operating leases or sale-leasebackhetiatieases, or similar transactions;
« make changes to its capital structure; and

« engage in new lines of business unrelated to thepaay’s current businesses.

These terms may negatively impact the Comaabllity to finance future operations, implemestbusiness strategy, fund its capital needs oagain other busine
activities that may be in its interest. In additidhe Company credit agreement requires, and future indebtednesy require, the Company to maintain compliandé
specified financial ratios. Although the Compasycurrently in compliance with the financial ratiemsd does not plan on engaging in transactionsntiagt cause the Compe
not to be in compliance with the ratios, its apilid comply with these ratios may be affected bgres beyond its control, including the risks desediin the other risk factc
and elsewhere in this report.

A breach of any restrictive covenant or thenpanys inability to comply with any required financiaitio could result in a default under the crediteggnent. In tk
event of a default under the credit agreementlghéers under the credit agreement may elect tladeall borrowings outstanding, together with aect and unpaid interest ¢

other fees, to be immediately due and payable.

The lenders will also have the right in thesewinstances to terminate any commitments they hayeaede further financing, including under the obxing credi
facility.

If the Company is unable to repay these borrowingen due, whether as a result of acceleratiom®fdiebt or otherwise, the lenders under the ceggigtement wi
have the right to proceed against the collaterhickvconsists of substantially all of the Compangssets, including real property and cash. liridebtedness under the cr
agreement were accelerated, the Company’s assstsheninsufficient to repay this indebtednéssfull under those circumstances. Any future @regyreements or oth
agreement relating to the Company’s indebtednesshich the Company may become a party may inclhdebvenants described above and other restrictivenants.

The Company'’s business may be negatively impacted la significant outbreak of avian influenza (“Bird Flu”) in the U.S.

Avian influenza (“H5N1")or Bird Flu, a highly contagious disease that affehickens and other poultry species, has spteaddghout Asia and Europe. The HE
strain is highly pathogenic, which has caused contleat a pandemic could occur if the disease rtegrérom birds to humans. This highly pathogeniais has not be¢
detected in North or South America as of Febru&y2®09, but low pathogenic strains that are rtbr@at to human health were reported in the U.8.@anada in recent yee
with the most recent U.S. incidence confirmed inAakansas poultry flock in June 2008. The U.S. &épent of Agriculture (“USDA™has developed safeguards to protec
U.S. poultry industry from H5N1. These safeguandstmsed on import restrictions, disease survedland a response plan for isolating and depopglatifected flocks if th
disease is detected. Notwithstanding these safdguany significant outbreak of Bird Flu in the Uc®uld have a negative impact on the Compsityisiness by reduci
demand for MBM.
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The Company'’s success is dependent on the Companisy personnel.

The Company success depends to a significant extent upomméeuof key employees, including members of semanagement. The loss of the services of o
more of these key employees could have a matehiadrae effect on the Compasy'esults of operations and prospects. The Compaligves that its future success will def
in part on its ability to attract, motivate andaiet skilled technical, managerial, marketing anigés@ersonnel. Competition for these types ofleskipersonnel is intense ¢
there can be no assurance that the Company wdlibeessful in attracting, motivating and retainkey personnel. The failure to hire and retain ¢hgsrsonnel could materia
adversely affect the Company’s business and restitiperations.

In certain markets the Company is highly dependentipon the continued and uninterrupted operation of asingle operating facility.

Darlings facilities are subject to various federal, statel local environmental and other permitting regmients, depending on their locations. Periodicaligs:
permits may be reviewed and subject to amendmewttbdrawal. Applications for an extension or resa of various permits may be subject to challehgeeommunity an
environmental activists and others. In the evéra casualty, condemnation, work stoppage, pemgittvithdrawal or delay or other unscheduled shutdawolving one of th
Company'’s facilities, in a majority of the Compasiyharkets the Company would utilize a nearby opegdtcility to continue to serve its customergtie affected market.
certain markets, however, the Company does not higeate operating facilities. In the event afasualty, condemnation, work stoppage, permittwthdrawal or delay ¢
other unscheduled shutdown in these markets, thep@ny may experience an interruption in its abiiétyservice its customers and to procure raw neeriThis may material
and adversely affect the Compasiybusiness and results of operations in those rarke addition, after an operating facility affed by a casualty, condemnation, w
stoppage, permitting withdrawal or delay or otheseheduled shutdown is restored, there could bassarance that customers who in the interim chtmsese alternati
disposal services would return to use the Compasergices.

The market price of the Company’s common stock codlbe volatile.

The market price of the Company’s common stoak been subject to volatility and, in the futuhe market price of the Compasycommon stock could fluctui
widely in response to numerous factors, many ofchviaire beyond the Compasycontrol. These factors include, among othergshifluctuations in commodities prices, ac
or anticipated variations in the Compasigperating results, earnings releases by the Coynphanges in financial estimates by securitiedyaits, sales of substantial amoi
of the Companys common stock, market conditions in the industrg the general state of the securities marketserponental legislation or regulation, currency ardhang:
rate fluctuations, as well as general economicraatket conditions, such as recessions.

The Company’s ability to pay any dividends on its smmon stock may be limited.

The Company has not paid any dividends ondtemon stock since January 3, 1989. The Compgatwyrrent financing arrangements permit the Comparpay cas
dividends on its common stock within limitationsfided in its credit agreement. Any future deteration to pay cash dividends on the Compargdmmon stock will be at t
discretion of the Company’s board of directors anltibe based upon the Compasyfinancial condition, operating results, capigguirements, plans for expansion, restrict
imposed by any financing arrangements, and any délcéors that the board of directors determinesratevant. Furthermore, the Company’s abilitpay any cash or nocast
dividends on its common stock is subject to appliearovisions of state law and to the terms o€itslit agreement.

Page 1¢




The Company may issue additional common stock or pferred stock, which could dilute shareholder inteests.

The Company certificate of incorporation, as amended, doedimit the issuance of additional common stockh® issuance of preferred stock. As of Februar,
2009, the Company has available for issuance 179230authorized but unissued shares of common stodkl,000,000 authorized but unissued sharesefémped stock th.
may be issued in series.

The Company could incur a material weakness in itgiternal control over financial reporting that requires remediation.

The Company disclosure controls and procedures were deemdtk teffective in fiscal 2008. However, any futdeglures by the Company to maintain
effectiveness of its disclosure controls and proces|, including its internal control over financraporting, could subject the Company to a lospudflic confidence in i
internal control over financial reporting and iretimtegrity of the Company'’s public filings anddincial statements and could harm the Compaapkrating results or cause
Company to fail to timely meet its regulatory rejimy obligations. Consequences of a material weakrsuch as those listed in the foregoing sentemalel have a negati
effect on the trading price of the Company’s stock.

Terrorist attacks or acts of war may cause damageradisruption to the Company and its employees, fatities, information systems, security systems, sufiprs and
customers, which could significantly impact the Corpany’s net sales, costs and expenses and finandeahdition.

Terrorist attacks, such as those that occurre§eptember 11, 2001, have contributed to economstaliility in the U.S., and further acts of terrarisbioterrorism
violence or war could affect the markets in whibk Company operates, the Company’s business opasathe Company’s expectations and other ford@olling statemen
contained or incorporated in this report. The dhref terrorist attacks in the U.S. since Septeniier2001 continues to create many economic anitigabluncertainties. Tt
potential for future terrorist attacks, the U.Sd amternational responses to terrorist attacksathdr acts of war or hostility, including the onggiwar in Irag, may cause gre:
uncertainty and cause the Companbusiness to suffer in ways that cannot currdoglyredicted. Events such as those referred toeabowld cause or contribute to a ger
decline in investment valuations, which in turn lcbteduce the market value of shareholder investsnem addition, terrorist attacks, particularlgtaof bioterrorism, th.
directly impact the Company'’s facilities or thodetlte Company’s suppliers or customers could havergact on the Comparg/'sales, supply chain, production capability
costs and the Company’s ability to deliver its$tméd products.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company’s corporate headquarters is locate@d5at O'Connor Ridge Boulevard, Suite 300, Irving, Texas,anh office facility where the Company lee
approximately 27,000 square feet.

As of January 3, 2009, the Compa¥3 operating facilities consist of 25 full see/i@ndering plants, seven yellow grease/trap plémts blending plants, thr
trap plants, one edible meat plant, one technil&w plant, one hide plant and one pet food pl&xcept for five leased facilities, all of theseifties are owned by tt
Company. In addition, the Company owns or leagesahsfer stations in the U.S., some of which alsizess yellow grease and trap. These transfgoss serve as collecti
points for routing raw material to the processingngs set forth below. Some locations servicenglsi business segment while others service botinéss segments. T
following is a listing of the Company’s operatirerilities by business segment:
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LOCATION

DESCRIPTION

Combined Rendering and Restaurant Services Business

Segments
Bellevue, NE

Berlin, WI

Blue Earth, MN
Boise, ID
Clinton, 1A
Coldwater, Ml
Collinsville, OK
Dallas, TX
Denver, CC
Des Moines, I1A
Detroit, Ml

E. St. Louis, IL
Fresno, CA
Houston, TX
Kansas City, K¢
Los Angeles, C£
Mason City, IL
Newark, NJ
San Francisco, CA
Sioux City, 1A
Tacoma, WA *
Turlock, CA
Wahoo, NE
Wichita, KS

Rendering Business Segmel
Denver, CC

Fairfax, MO

Grand Island, NE

Kansas City, K¢

Kansas City, MC

Lynn Center, IL

Omaha, NE

Omabha, NE

Omaha, NE

Restaurant Services Business Segme

Alma, GA
Calhoun, GA
Chicago, IL

Ft. Lauderdale, Fl
Indianapolis, IN
Little Rock, AR
No. Las Vegas, N\
San Diego, CA’
Santa Ana, CA*
Tampa, FL

Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tre
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tre
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tre
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tre
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Greas
Rendering/Yellow Grease/Tr:

Edible Meat and Tallov
Protein Blending

Pet Fooc

Protein Blendin¢
Hides

Protein Blendin¢
Renderinc

Protein Blendin¢
Technical Tallown

Trap

Yellow Grease/Tra|
Yellow Grease/Tra|
Yellow Grease/Tra|
Yellow Grease/Tra|
Yellow Grease/Tra|
Yellow Grease/Tra|
Trap

Trap

Yellow Grease/Tra|

* Property is leased. Rent expense for these lgaspeérties was $0.9 million in the aggregate indl2008.

Substantially all assets of the Company, includiey property, are either pledged or mortgagecddéateral for borrowings under the Company’s cregjteement.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is a party to several lawsuits, claamd loss contingencies arising in the ordinary sewf its business, including assertions by ceregulatory agencit
related to air, wastewater and storm water dis@wmfiggm the Company’s processing facilities.

The Company’s workers compensation, auto and geliodity policies contain significant deductildeor selfinsured retentions. The Company estimates andies
its expected ultimate claim costs related to actgleccurring during each fiscal year and cartigsdccrual as a reserve until these claims axktpathe Company.

As a result of the matters discussed above, thep@ognhas established loss reserves for insuramséroamental and litigation matters. At January2B809 an
December 29, 2007, the reserves for insurancer@mental and litigation contingencies reflectedtlom balance sheet in accrued expenses and otheun@nt liabilities fo
which there are no potential insurance recoveriesevapproximately $17.3 million and $17.1 millicespectively. Management of the Company believeseheserves f
contingencies are reasonable and sufficient baped present governmental regulations and informatiarently available to management; however, ticarebe no assurar
that final costs related to these matters will exteed current estimates. The Company believéshedikelihood is remote that any additional Il from these lawsuits ar
claims that may not be covered by insurance woalceta material effect on the financial statements.

The Company has been named as a third party defeimda lawsuit pending in the Superior Court ofuNéersey, Essex County, styldtw Jersey Department
Environmental Protection, The Commissioner of tsvNersey Department of Environmental Protectioenty and the Administrator of the New Jersey Slinpensatio
Fund, as Plaintiffs, vs. Occidental Chemical Comgutozn, Tierra Solutions, Inc., Maxus Energy Corpiioa, Repsol YPF, S.A., YPF, S.A., YPF Holdings, bnd CLH Holding:
as Defendant¢Docket No. L-009868-05) (the “Tierra/Maxus Litigat"). In the Tierra/Maxus Litigation, which was filed @ecember 13, 2005, the plaintiffs seek to rec
from the defendants past and future cleanup andvahtosts, as well as unspecified economic damagestive damages, penalties and a variety ofrotbems of relief
purportedly arising from the alleged dischargese the Passaic River of a particular type of dicaimd other unspecified hazardous substances. Thagis being sought by
plaintiffs from the defendants are likely to be stamtial. On February 4, 2009, two of the defetslafierra Solutions, Inc. (“Tierra”) and Maxus Egg Corporation (“Maxusj,
filed a third party complaint against over 300 g@si, including the Company, seeking to recovepahl proportionate share of cleanup and remowstscdamages or other I
or harm, if any for which Tierra or Maxus may bddhkable in the Tierra/Maxus Litigation. Tierrm@ Maxus allege that Standard Tallow Company, dityethat the Compar
acquired in 1996, contributed to the dischargehefliazardous substances that are the subjectsafabé while operating a former plant site locatddewark, New Jersey. T
Company is investigating these allegations anchitgeo defend itself vigorously. As of the dateto$ report, there is nothing that leads the Camypta believe that this mat
will have a material effect on the Company’s finahposition or results of operation.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of securitylad during the quarter ended January 3, 2009.
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Effective October 24, 2007, the Company transfeitedcommon stock listing to the New York Stock Bange (“NYSE”")from the American Stock Exchar
(“AMEX") under the symbol “DAR". The following tale sets forth, for the quarters indicated, the rdgh low closing sales prices per share for the my's common stoc
as reported on the NYSE and AMEX, as appropriate.

Market Price

Fiscal Quarte High Low
2008:
First Quarte $14.29 $10.16
Second Quarte $17.29 $12.33
Third Quartel $17.15 $10.79
Fourth Quarte $11.11 $ 3.53
2007:
First Quarte $ 6.60 $5.17
Second Quarte $ 9.47 $6.28
Third Quarte! $10.17 $7.31
Fourth Quarte $12.10 $9.34

On February 23, 2009, the closing sales price ®Gbmpanys common stock on the NYSE was $4.04. The Compasybeen notified by its stock transfer agent
as of February 23, 2009, there were 123 holdersarfrd of the common stock.

The Company has not paid any dividends on its comstock since January 3, 1989 and does not expepay cash dividends in 2009. The Compangurren
financing arrangements permit the Company to paf cdvidends on its common stock within limitatictesfined in its credit agreement. Any future deti@ation to pay cas
dividends on the Company’s common stock will béhat discretion of the Company’s board of directansl will be based upon the Companyinancial condition, operatil
results, capital requirements, plans for expangstrictions imposed by any financing arrangemeantd any other factors that the board of direadletermines are relevant.

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the cleaimgthe cumulative total stockholder return on @@mpanys common stock with the cumulative total returrthe
Russell 3000 Index, the Dow Jones US Waste andoB#&[Service Index, and the CSPBribusiness Index for the period from January@42to January 3, 2009, assuming
investment of $100 on January 3, 2004 and the esinvent of dividends.

The stock price performance shown on the followgmgph only reflects the change in the Comparstbck price relative to the noted indices andds necessari
indicative of future price performance.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

The following table sets forth certain informatiaa of January 3, 2009 with respect to the Compaaguity compensation plans (including individuainpensatio
arrangements) under which the Company’s equityrexsiare authorized for issuance, aggregated bil compensation plans previously approved byGbenpanys securit
holders, and ii) all compensation plans not presfipapproved by the Company’s security holderse Hble includes:

« the number of securities to be issued upon theceseeof outstanding options;

« the weighted-average exercise price of the outstgraptions; and

« the number of securities that remain availabléure issuance under the plans.
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(@) Number of securities
Number of securities (b) remaining available
to be issued upon Weighted-average for future issuance
exercise of exercise price of under equity
outstanding outstanding compensation plans
options, warrants options, warrants (excluding securities
Plan Categor and rights and rights reflected in column (&

Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders 796,205 (1 $3.74 3,381,632
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders _ _
Tota 796,205 $3.74 3,381,63:

(1) Includes shares underlying options that have bssmed pursuant to the Company’s 2004 Omnibus liveeRian (the “2004 Plan’as approved t
the Company‘stockholders. See Note 12 of Notes to Consolid&iedncial Statements for information regarding tieterial features of the 2C

Plan.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
The following table presents selected consolidaistbrical financial data for the periods indichteThe selected historical consolidated finandath set forth belo

should be read in conjunction with “Management’'sddission and Analysis of Financial Condition andu®s of Operationsand the Consolidated Financial Statements ¢
Company for the three years ended January 3, ZD88mber 29, 2007, and December 30, 2006, anctkhied notes thereto.

Fiscal 208 Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 200¢ Fiscal 200% Fiscal 2004
Fifty-three Fifty-two Fifty-two Fifty-two Fifty-two
Weeks Ended Weeks Ended Weeks Ended Weeks Ended Weeks Ended
January 3, December 29, December 30, December 31, January 1,
2009 (i) 2007 2006 (h) 2005 2005

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Statement of Operations Data:

Net sales $807,492 $ 645,313 $406,99C $ 308,867 $ 320,229
Cost of sales and operating expense: 614,708 483,453 321,416 241,707 237,925
Selling, general and administrative expense: 59,761 57,999 45,649 35,240 36,509
Depreciation and amortizatic 24,433 23,214 20,686 15,787 15,224
Goodwill impairment(c) 15,914 - - - -
Operating incom: 92,676 80,647 19,239 16,133 30,571
Interest expens 3,018 5,045 7,184 6,157 6,759
Other (income)/expense, net (d) (e) (258 57C 4,682 (903) 299
Income from continuing operations before

Income taxes 89,916 75,032 7,373 10,879 23,513
Income tax expense 35,354 29,499 2,266 3,184 9,245
Income from continuing operatiol 54,562 45,533 5,107 7,695 14,268
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations,

net of tax - - - 46 (376)
Net Income $ 54,562 $ 45,533 $ 5,107 $ 7,741 $ 13,892
Basic earnings per common sh $ 0.67 $ 0.56 $ 0.07 $ 0.12 $ 0.22
Diluted earnings per common sh: $ 0.66 $ 0.56 $ 0.07 $ 0.12 $ 0.22
Weighted average shares outstanc 81,387 80,772 74,310 63,929 63,840
Diluted weighted average shares outstan: 82,157 81,896 75,259 64,525 64,463

Other Financial Data:
Adjusted EBITDA (f) $133,023 $103,861 $ 39,92t $ 31,92C $45,795
Depreciatior 19,266 18,332 16,134 11,903 11,345
Amortization 5,167 4,882 4,552 3,884 3,879
Capital expenditures (¢ 31,006 15,552 11,800 21,406 13,312
Balance Sheet Data

Working capital $ 67,446 $ 34,38t $ 17,86E $ 40,407 $ 39,602
Total asset 394,375 351,338 320,806 190,772 182,809
Current portion of lon-term deb 5,000 6,250 5,004 5,026 5,030
Total lon¢-term debt less current portit 32,500 37,500 78,000 44,502 49,528
Stockholder’ equity 236,578 200,984 151,325 73,680 67,235

(a) Included in cost of sales and operating expenseassisttlement with certain past insurers of appnaxely $2.8 million recorded in fiscal 2004 as adit (recovery) ¢
claims expense and previous insurance premi

(b) Included in selling, general and administrative enges is a loss on a legal settlement of approzign&2.2 million offset by a gain on a separatealeggttiement ¢
approximately $1.0 million in fiscal 200

(c) Includes a goodwill impairment charge of $15.9 imillat one of the Compa’s reporting units recorded in the fourth quartefisifal 2008
(d) Included in other (income)/expense in fiscal 2096 ivriteoff of deferred loan costs of approximately $2.@lioni and early retirement fees of approximatelyStillion

for the early retirement of senior subordinatedes@ind termination of the previous senior creditagent
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(e) Included in other (income)/expense is gain on esgtirement of debt of approximately $1.3 milliamfiscal 2004. Also included in other (income)/erpe is loss ¢

redemption of preferred stock of approximately $hilfion in fiscal 2004.

(f) Adjusted EBITDA is presented here not as an altereao net income, but rather as a measure ofCGbmpanys operating performance and is not intended to
presentation in accordance with generally acceptetunting principles (GAAP). Since EBITDA is nmlculated identically by all companies, the présgon in thic

report may not be comparable to those discloseathgr companies

Adjusted EBITDA is calculated below and represeftisany relevant period, net income/(loss) pluprdeiation and amortization, goodwill and lolied asset impairmet
interest expense, (income)/loss from discontinugerations, net of tax, income tax provision andeotinmcome/(expense). The Company believes adjusBITDA is ¢
useful measure for investors because it is fredyersted by securities analysts, investors and oiiterested parties in the evaluation of compairesur industry. i
addition, management believes that adjusted EBIT®Aseful in evaluating our operating performanoenpared to that of other companies in our indubtgause tr
calculation of adjusted EBITDA generally eliminatbe effects of financing, income taxes and certaincash and other items that may vary for differenhpanies fc
reasons unrelated to overall operating performarcea result, the Comparsymanagement uses adjusted EBITDA as a measunealoate performance and for ot
discretionary purposes. However, adjusted EBITBMAot a recognized measurement under U.S. GAARjIdhwt be considered as an alternative to netnecas

measure of operating results or to cash flow agasure of liquidity, and is not intended to be @spntation in accordance with GAAP. Also, sincisted EBITDA is nc

calculated identically by all companies, the présgon in this report may not be comparable to ¢hdisclosed by other companies.

In addition to the foregoing, management also usewill use adjusted EBITDA to measure compliancéhveertain financial covenants under the Companyredi
agreement. The amounts shown below for adjustdd BB differ from the amounts calculated under semly titled definitions in the Company'credit agreement, as th
definitions permit further adjustment to reflectteén other non-cash charges.

Reconciliation of Net Income to Adjusted EBITDA

January 3, December 29, December 30, December 31, January 1,
(dollars in thousands 2009 2007 2006 2005 2005
Net income $ 54,562 $ 45,53z $ 5,107 $ 7,741 $13,892
Depreciation and amortizatic 24,43: 23,21< 20,68¢€ 15,787 15,224
Goodwill impairment 15,914 - - - -
Interest expens 3,01¢ 5,04t 7,184 6,157 6,758
(Income)/loss from discontinued
operations, net of tax - - - (46) 376
Income tax expens 35,354 29,49¢ 2,26€ 3,184 9,24E
Other (income)/expense (258 57C 4,682 (903) 29¢
Adjusted EBITDA $ 133,023 $ 103,861 $ 39,925 $ 31,920 $ 45,795

(g) Excludes the capital assets acquired as part citantielly all of the assets of NBP of approximai®51.9 million in fiscal 2006 and API Recyclisgused cooking ¢

collection business of $3.4 million in fiscal 20(

(h) Fiscal 2006 includes 33 weeks of contribution fritnva acquired NBP asse

(i) Fiscal 2008 includes 19 weeks of contribution frARI Recycling used cooking oil collection busine
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management’s Discussion and AnalysisFinancial Condition and Results of Operationatams forwardeoking statements that involve risks
uncertainties. The Company’s actual results califidr materially from those anticipated in thesewiardiooking statements as a result of certain factoduding those s
forth in Iltem 1A of this report under the headirRjsk Factors.”

The following discussion should be read in conjiorciwith the historical consolidated financial staents and notes thereto included in Item 8 of port. Th
Company is organized along two operating businegments, Rendering and Restaurant Services. SeelB®f Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Overview

The Company is a leading provider of renderingycbog and recovery solutions to the nation’s fandustry. The Company collects and recycles anioygbroduct:
and used cooking oil from food service establishim@nd provides grease trap cleaning services ty mfithe same establishments. The Company preseasy materials at -
facilities located throughout the U.S. into finishproducts such as protein (primarily meat and boeal, “MBM”), tallow (primarily bleachable fancylfow, “BFT”"), yellow
grease (“YG”) and hides. The Company sells theedymsts nationally and internationally, primarilygooducers of oleo-chemicals, bigels, soaps, pet foods, leather goods
livestock feed for use as ingredients in their piatd or for further processing. In fiscal 2006 @@mpany acquired substantially all of the asdéts (Transaction”pf Nationa
By-Products, LLC (“NBP”). The Compangtesults for fiscal 2008 and 2007 include a falay of contribution from the assets acquired inTrensaction, as compared to
weeks of contribution from these assets in fis@0& For additional information on the Companyissibess, see Item 1, “Businessyid for additional information on t
Company’s segments, see Note 18 of Notes to Cafaeti Financial Statements.

As an agricultural-based commodity processing amtice business, the Company is subject to a yaoétmarket factors which affect the Compasgperatin
results. While fiscal 2008 had record earning$goerance that was fueled by tightening global graia oilseed supplies, record high crude oil, iasieg biofuel demand ar
strong slaughter, fiscal 2008 will undoubtedly eenembered for the global economic downturn expeedrduring the fourth quarter. Improved globalpcomtlooks couple
with significant demand collapse caused by globadnemic uncertainty, and other factors contributeda sharp decline in the Compasiytesults during the four
quarter. Finished product prices declined to restorical lows during the fourth quarter while éntory quantities increased substantially. Rawenft volumes for bot
segments declined continuously throughout the ybanufacturing and collection costs were negayivelpacted as energy prices for both natural gasdiesel fuel reachu
historical highs during the year. The Company co@s to face challenges relating to volatile cordityomarkets; however, as of February 23, 200%Fed product prices a
energy prices had returned to more historical ieiahips.

Operating income increased by $12.1 million in &s2008 compared to fiscal 2007. The continuihgllenges faced by the Company indicate there @amc
assurance that operating results achieved by thgp@oy in fiscal 2008 are indicative of future opiexg performance of the Company.

Summary of Critical Issues Faced by the Company diing Fiscal 2008

« Higher finished product prices through three quart# fiscal 2008 were indicative of tightening igrand oilseed supplies driven by a combinatiomef demand fc
bio-fuels, growing consumption in China and Indra dack-toback droughts in various grain and oilseed producegions of the world; however, finished proc
prices for commodities declined significantly dgrithe fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. Higher finishgroduct prices for BFT and YG were favorableite Companys
sales revenue during the first three quarterssoffi2008, but this favorable result was partiaffget by the negative impact on raw material cdsg to the Company’
formula pricing arrangements with raw material digsp, which index raw material cost to the prieédinished product derived from the raw materi@he financis
impact of finished goods prices on sales revenueraw material cost is summarized below in Resoit©perations. Comparative sales price informafimm the
Jacobsen index, an established trading exchandisipetbused by management, is listed below in SurprofKey Indicators
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« Energy prices for natural gas and diesel fuel vigber during most of the year, but did declinenffigantly during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008he Company hi
the ability to burn alternative fuels, including ifats and greases, at a majority of its planta agy to help manage the Compangxposure to high natural
prices. Beginning October 1, 2006, the federalegoment effected a program which provides fedexaldredits under certain circumstances for comrakrge o
alternative fuels in lieu of fossil-based fuelsedgining in the fourth quarter of 2006, the Compéiled documentation with the Internal Revenue 8en(“IRS”) to
recover these Alternative Fuel Mixture Credits agsult of its use of fats and greases to fuelebsiht its plants. The Company has received appfosm the IRS t
apply for these credits. However, the federal latinns relating to the Alternative Fuel Mixturee@its are complex and further clarification is negthy the Compat
prior to recognition of certain tax credits receiveAs of January 3, 2009, the Company has $0.lfomibf received credits included in current liatiés on the balan
sheet as deferred income while the Company purfsudeer clarification. The Company will continue évaluate the option of burning alternative fusldts plants i
future periods depending on the price relationslepveen alternative fuels and natural ¢

Summary of Critical Issues and Known Trends Faced ypthe Company in Fiscal 2008 and Thereafter

BSE and Other Food Safety Issues

Effective August 1997, the FDA promulgated the BS#ed Rule prohibiting the use of mammalian proteivith some exceptions, in feeds for cattle, shaeg othe
ruminant animals. The intent of this rule is toyanet the spread of BSE, commonly referred to asd‘o@w disease.’As previously noted, the FDA has published the FBBE
Rule which amended the BSE Feed Rule and becorfexdieé April 27, 2009. Management has followedtproposed amendment throughout its history inrai@assess al
minimize the impact of its implementation on then@any. See the risk factor entitled “The Compariyisiness may be affected by the impact of BSEodéimer food safe:
issues,”beginning on page 11, for more information abouEBf&cluding the Final BSE Rule, and other foodesaissues and their potential effects on the Campimcluding
the effects of potential additional government tegans, finished product export restrictions byeign governments, market price fluctuations faisihed goods, reduc
demand for beef and beef products by consumerinaneises in operating costs resulting from BSEteel concerns.

Even though the export markets for U.S. beef haaenbsignificantly reepened, most of these markets remain closed to MBkived from U.S. beef. Continu

concern about BSE in the U.S. may result in additiacegulatory and market related challenges thay mffect the Company’s operations and/or incrahseCompany
operating costs.

Other Critical Issues and Challenges

« The meat production industry faced higher feedscosfiscal 2008. These higher costs, coupled withgeneral performance of the U.S. economy antinieg U.S
consumer confidence and the inability of consunaed companies to obtain credit due to the curr@ek bf liquidity in the financial markets, couldueaa negativ
impact on the Company’raw material volume, such as through the fordeduce of raw material suppliers. Maintaining ravaterial volume will be a challenge
future periods due to volatility of commodity pricand raw material supplier closur

Finished product prices for commodities declineghsicantly during the fourth quarter of fiscal Z00No assurance can be given that this significidline ir
commodity prices for BFT, YG and MBM will not contie in the future. These declines, coupled with ¢hrrent decline of the general performance ofUk®
economy and the inability of consumers and compattiebtain credit due to the current lack of ldityi in the financial markets, could have a sigrfit impact on tt
Compan’s earnings in fiscal 2009 and into future peric

« Energy prices for natural gas and diesel fuel dedisignificantly during the fourth quarter of 8@008. No assurance can be given that pricesdtural gas ar
diesel fuel will continue to decline or remain lawthe future. The Company consumes significamimes of natural gas to operate boilers in its fglawhich genera
steam to heat raw material. High natural gas priepresent a significant cost of factory operatiwiuded in cost of sales. The Company also coesusignificar
volumes of diesel fuel to operate its fleet of toas and trucks used to collect raw material. Higésel fuel prices represent a significant compoé cost of collectio
expenses included in cost of sales. Though thepaosn will continue to manage these costs and attemminimize these expenses, volatile energy ntarkell
represent an ongoing challenge to the Com’s operating results in fiscal 2009 and into futpeeiods.
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« During fiscal 2008, the Company incurred bad défis were beyond its historical trends due to delent accounts receivable and the lack of liquiditthe financie
markets. Volatile financial markets will represamt ongoing challenge to the Company and no asseirean be given that bad debt expense will noeas® in fisci
2009 and into future period

These challenges indicate there can be no assuttzaiciscal 2008 operating results are indicatiVéuture operating performance of the Company.

Results of Operations

Fifty-three Week Fiscal Year Ended January 3, 200%iscal 2008") Compared to Fifty-two Week Fiscaléar Ended December 29, 2007 (“Fiscal 2007")

Fiscal 2008 includes an additional week of operatiovhich occurs every five to six years. In Fis2@08 the additional week increased both net saldscosts by approximat:
$10 million with an immaterial effect on operatimgome and net income.

Summary of Key Factors Impacting Fiscal 2008 Resust

Principal factors that contributed to a $12.1 noillincrease in operating income, which are disclissgreater detail in the following section, were:

Higher finished product prices.

These increases to operating income were partéibet by:

Higher raw material costs,

Goodwill impairment,

Higher energy costs, primarily related to naturd g@nd diesel fuel, and
Higher payroll and incentive-related benefits.

Summary of Key Indicators of Fiscal 2008 Performane:

Principal indicators that management routinely rtansiand compares to previous periods as an iraichproblems or improvements in operating resinictude:

Finished product commodity prices,

Raw material volume,

Production volume and related yield of finisheddurct,

Energy prices for natural gas quoted on the NYME&ex and diesel fuel,
Collection fees and collection operating expensd, a

Factory operating expenses.

These indicators and their importance are disculsskxv in greater detail.

Prices for finished product commodities that themPany produces are quoted each business day odattabsen index, an established trading exchange
publisher. These finished products are MBM, BF@ &G. The prices quoted are for delivery of theadhed product at a specified location. Theseegrre relevant becal
they provide an indication of a component of reveand achievement of business plan benchmarksdaiiyabasis. The Comparg/actual sales prices for its finished prod
may vary significantly from the Jacobsen index hmseathe Compang’finished products are delivered to multiple lowag in different geographic regions which utildiéerent
price indexes. Average Jacobsen prices (at thefmgabdelivery point) for Fiscal 2008, comparedaterage Jacobsen prices for Fiscal 2007 follow:
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Avg. Price Avg. Price %

Fiscal 200¢ Fiscal 2007 Increase Increase
MBM (lllinois) $333.17/tor $233.51 /tor $99.66/tor 42.7%
BFT (Chicago) $ 34.21/cwi $ 27.89 lcw $ 6.32/cwi 22.7%
YG (lllinois) $ 27.75/cwi $ 21.62 /cw $ 6.13/cwi 28.4%

The increase in average prices of the finished yrtadthe Company sells had a favorable impact eenee that was partially offset by a negative inigacthe
Company'’s raw material cost resulting from formptacing arrangements, which compute raw materiat based upon the price of finished product.

The global economic environment in the fourth geladaused the Comparsyfinished product commodity prices to decline #gigantly subsequent to the third qua
of Fiscal 2008 as commodity prices remained va@atiThe following table shows the average Jacobsaéex for the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2008 for MBBRFT and YG a
compared to Fiscal 2007.

Avg. Price Avg. Price
4th Quarter 4th Quarter %
2008 2007 Decreast Decreast
MBM (lllinois) $261.56/tor $270.77 Itor $ (9.21/ton (3.4%)
BFT (Chicago $ 17.59/cwi $ 30.68 /ew $(13.09/cwt) (42.7%)
YG (lllinois) $ 14.76/cwi $ 23.45 lew $ (8.69/cwt) (37.1%)

Raw material volume represents the quantity (pouwdigaw material collected from suppliers, incluglibeef, pork, poultry and used cooking oils. Raateria
volumes provide an indication of future productafrfinished products available for sale and arermmonent of potential future revenue.

Finished product production volumes are the endlrexf the Company production processes, and directly impact goadsladble for sale, and thus become
important component of sales revenue. In additmhysical inventory turrover is impacted by both credit availability andrke demand which can lower finished proc
inventory values. Yield on production is a ratibpsoduction volume(pounds) divided by raw material volume (pounds)l anovides an indication of effectiveness of
Companys production process. Factors impacting yield oodpction include quality of raw material and waweather during summer months, which rapidly degsade

material.

Natural gas and heating oil commodity prices aretegh each day on the NYMEX exchange for future emf delivery of natural gas and diesel fuel. Phiees ar
important to the Company because natural gas asgldiuel are major components of factory operating collection costs and natural gas and diesdlpiices are an indical
of achievement of the Company’s business plan.

The Company charges collection fees which are deduin net sales in order to offset a portion & é&xpense incurred in collecting raw material. FEaonth th
Company monitors both the collection fee chargeduppliers, which is included in net sales, andectibn expense, which is included in cost of salése importance
monitoring collection fees and collection experssthiat they provide an indication of achievemerthefCompany’s business plan.

The Company incurs factory operatingemges which are included in cost of sales. Eachttmthe Company monitors factory operating experidee importance «
monitoring factory operating expense is that ityiles an indication of achievement of the Compabyisiness plan.

Net Sales. The Company collects and processes animaglrbgucts (fat, bones and offal), including hides] ased restaurant cooking oil to principally proelfinishe:
products of MBM, BFT, YG and hides. Sales are ificgmtly affected by finished goods prices, quakind mix of raw material, and volume of raw matkeriNet sales incluc
the sales of produced finished goods, collecti@s féees for grease trap services, and finishedgporchased for resale.
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During Fiscal 2008, net sales increased by $162libm(25.1%) to $807.5 million as compared to $63 million during Fiscal 2007. The increase int sales wg
primarily due to the following increases/(decreaggsmillions of dollars):

Restaurar

Renderini Service Corporat Total

Higher finished goods price $ 1484 $39.7 $ - $188.1
Purchases of finished product for res (10.4) 1.0 - (9.4)
Decrease in yiel (5.0) (2.7) - (7.7)
Decrease in other sal (3.5) (2.1) - (5.6)
Decrease in raw material volur (0.1) 3.1) - (3.2)
Product transfers (8.7) 8.7 — —
$120.7 $415 $ - $162.2

Cost of Sales and Operating Expensdsast of sales and operating expenses includeaseof raw material, the cost of product purchafedesale and the cost
collect raw material, which includes diesel fuetlgrocessing costs including natural gas. The Compéilizes both fixed and formula pricing methdds the purchase of re
materials. Fixed prices are adjusted where poséilehanges in competition and significant changefinished goods market conditions impact finidhgoduct inventor
values, while raw materials purchased under forrpulzes are correlated with specific finished gopdses. Energy costs, particularly diesel fuel aatural gas, are signific:
components of the Company’s cost structure. Theagzmy has the ability to burn alternative fuels anhajority of its plants to help manage the Compsupyice exposure
volatile energy markets.

During Fiscal 2008, cost of sales and operatingeasgps increased $131.2 million (27.1%) to $614 lfiamias compared to $483.5 million during Fisc@0Z. Thi
increase in cost of sales and operating expensegrirarily due to the following (in millions of dars):

Restauratr
Renderini Service Corporat Tota
Higher raw material cos $ 81.2 $ 251 $ - $106.3
Higher energy costs, primarily natural gas and
diesel fuel 13.6 3.0 _ 16.6
Payroll and related benefi 6.0 2.2 - 8.2
Increase in other expens 3.6 2.1 (0.2) 5.5
Multi-employer pension plans mass withdrawal
termination 2.4 _ _ 2.4
Sale of judgmen 1.2 - - 1.2
Purchases of finished product for res (10.2) 1.1 - (9.0)
Product transfers (8.7) 8.7 — —
$ 89.2 $ 42.2 $(0.2) $131.2

Selling, General and Administrative Expense3elling, general and administrative expenses wBg83million during Fiscal 2008, a $1.8 million hease (3.1%) froi
$58.0 million during Fiscal 2007. The Company &ased its provision for bad debt based on genegdltconditions and delinquent accounts receivalife increase is sellir
general and administrative expenses is primariy tduthe following (in millions of dollars):

Restauratr

Renderini Service Corporat Total

Increase in other expens $0.1 $0.6 $13 $ 2.0
Payroll and related benefits expel 0.6 0.5 0.5 1.6
Increase in bad debt exper 0.6 0.6 (0.1) 11
Decrease in legal expen - - .7) 2.7)
Decrease in legal settlements — — (1.2) (1.2)
$1.3 $1.7 $(1.2) $1.8
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Depreciation and Amortization.Depreciation and amortization charges increase?l fillion (5.2%) to $24.4 million during Fiscal 28@&s compared to $23.2 milli
during Fiscal 2007. The increase in depreciatichanortization is primarily due to an overall ingse in capital expenditures.

Goodwill Impairment .The Company recorded a goodwill impairment charf$15.9 million in the fourth quarter of Fiscal@as a result of its annual impairrr
test. This impairment charge relates to one ra@mptinit that experienced the loss of large custsnrethe fourth quarter of Fiscal 2008.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $3.0 million during Fi&08 compared to $5.0 million during Fiscal 200@earease of $2.0 million (40.0%), primarily
to a decrease in outstanding balance related tGdnepany’s debt.

Other Income/Expenseédther income was $0.3 million in Fiscal 2008, a9$illion increase from other expense of $0.6 igmllin Fiscal 2007. The increase in of

income is primarily due to more cash included ieiast bearing accounts and decreases in otheopenating expenses.

Income Taxes.The Company recorded income tax expense of $88lidn for Fiscal 2008, compared to income tax expe of $29.5 million recorded in Fiscal 2(
an increase of $5.9 million, primarily due to iresed praax earnings of the Company in Fiscal 2008. THecéfe tax rate for Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 20089s3%. Th
difference from the federal statutory rate of 33P4-iscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007 is primarily duetédestaxes.

Results of Operations

Fifty-two Week Fiscal Year Ended December 29, 2({U+iscal 2007") Compared to Fifty-two Week Fiscaléar Ended December 30, 2006 (“Fiscal 2006")

Summary of Key Factors Impacting Fiscal 2007 Resust

Principal factors that contributed to a $61.4 nillincrease in operating income, which are disclissgreater detail in the following section, were:

« Higher finished product prices,
« The inclusion of the operations of NBP, and
« Increased raw material volume.

These increases to operating income were partéibet by:

« Higher raw material costs,

« Higher payroll and incentive-related benefits,

« Higher plant repair and maintenance expenses, and

« Higher energy costs, primarily related to naturd gnd diesel fuel.

Summary of Key Indicators of Fiscal 2007 Performane:

Principal indicators that management routinely rtansiand compares to previous periods as an imaic&fproblems or improvements in operating resnittude:

« Finished product commodity prices,

« Raw material volume,

« Production volume and related yield of finisheddaret,

« Energy prices for natural gas quoted on the NYME&ex and diesel fuel,
« Collection fees and collection operating expensd, a

« Factory operating expenses.

These indicators and their importance are disculsskv in greater detail.
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Prices for finished product commodities that themany produces are quoted each business day odattabsen index, an established trading exchange
publisher. These finished products are MBM, BF@ &G. The prices quoted are for delivery of the@dhed product at a specified location. Theseegrare relevant becal
they provide an indication of a component of reveand achievement of business plan benchmarksdaiiyabasis. The Comparg/actual sales prices for its finished prod
may vary significantly from the Jacobsen index lisesthe Compang’finished products are delivered to multiple Icarad in different geographic regions which utiliéferent
price indexes. Average Jacobsen prices (at thafigzbdelivery point) for Fiscal 2007, comparedaterage Jacobsen prices for Fiscal 2006 follow:

Avg. Price Avg. Price %

Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 200¢€ Increase Change
MBM (lllinois) $233.51/tor $153.48 /tor $80.03/tor 52.1%
MBM (California) $235.00/tor $126.27 /tor $108.73/tor 86.1%
BFT (Chicago $ 27.89/cwi $ 16.87 lew $11.02/cwi 65.3%
YG (lllinois) $ 21.62/cwi $ 12.64 lcw $8.98/cwt 71.0%

The increase in average prices of the finished yrtsdthe Company sells had a favorable impact senge that was partially offset by a negative intgacthe
Companys raw material cost resulting from formula priciagangements, which compute raw material cost baped the price of finished product. Additionalsgme U.<S
exports of MBM from the West Coast of the U.S. rasd in the first quarter of 2007. As a result, hBM prices for the West Coast have increased Saitly as indicate
above.

Raw material volume represents the quantity (pouodigaw material collected from suppliers, inchuglibeef, pork, poultry and used cooking oils. Raateria
volumes provide an indication of future productafrfinished products available for sale and areraponent of potential future revenue.

Finished product production volumes are the endlrexf the Company production processes, and directly impact goadsladble for sale, and thus become
important component of sales revenue. Yield ordpetion is a ratio of production volume (poundsyidiéd by raw material volume (pounds) and providaesindication ¢
effectiveness of the Compamyproduction process. Factors impacting yield oydpction include quality of raw material and waweather during summer months, wt
rapidly degrades raw material.

Natural gas and heating oil commaodity prices aretegl each day on the NYMEX exchange for future memf delivery of natural gas and diesel fuel. Phiees ar
important to the Company because natural gas asgldiuel are major components of factory operating collection costs and natural gas and diesdlpiices are an indical
of achievement of the Company’s business plan.

The Company charges collection fees which are dezluin net sales in order to offset a portion & é&xpense incurred in collecting raw material. tFEa®nth th
Company monitors both the collection fee chargeduppliers, which is included in net sales, andectibn expense, which is included in cost of saléBe importance
monitoring collection fees and collection expersthat they provide an indication of achievemerthefCompany’s business plan.

The Company incurs factory operatingesges which are included in cost of sales. Eachtimthe Company monitors factory operating experidee importance «
monitoring factory operating expense is that ityides an indication of achievement of the Compaltisiness plan.

Net Sales . The Company collects and processes animgbrbgucts (fat, bones and offal), including hidesd aised restaurant cooking oil to principally proe
finished products of MBM, BFT, YG and hides. Sades significantly affected by finished goods psicquality and mix of raw material, and volume afvrmaterial. Net sal
include the sales of produced finished goods, ctitia fees, fees for grease trap services, anshfad goods purchased for resale.

During Fiscal 2007, net sales increased by $238liBom(58.6%) to $645.3 million as compared to $4D million during Fiscal 2006. The increase it sales wg
primarily due to the following increases/(decreaggsmillions of dollars):
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Restauratr

Renderinc Service Corporat Total

Higher finished goods price $ 98.0 $27.1 $ - $125.1
Net sales due to contribution from NBP as: 84.8 6.7 - 915
Purchases of finished product for res 8.3 6.0 - 14.3
Higher raw material volum 6.8 1.7) - 5.1
Other sales increas 1.8 0.5 - 2.3
Product transfers (12.9) 12.9 — —
$ 186.8 $51.5 $ - $238.3

Cost of Sales and Operating Expense<ost of sales and operating expenses includeasieof raw material, the cost of product purcidse resale and the cost to
collect raw material, which includes diesel fuetlgrocessing costs including natural gas. The Compéilizes both fixed and formula pricing methdds the purchase of re
materials. Fixed prices are adjusted where pos§illehanges in competition and significant chanigenished goods market conditions, while raw enetls purchased unc
formula prices are correlated with specific finidhgoods prices. Energy costs, particularly dideel and natural gas, are significant componentshef Companys cos
structure. The Company has the ability to bureralitive fuels at a majority of its plants to helpnage the Company’s price exposure to volatileggnmarkets.

During Fiscal 2007, cost of sales and operatingeagps increased $162.1 million (50.4%) to $483.iamias compared to $321.4 million during Fisc@08. Thi
increase in cost of sales and operating expensggriraarily due to the following (in millions of dars):

Restaurat
Renderini Service Corporat Total
Higher raw material cos $ 61.2 $ 94 $ - $70.6
Cost of sales and operating expenses related
to NBP assets 65.6 3.6 — 69.2
Purchases of finished product for res 8.3 6.0 - 14.3
Plant repairs and maintenar 35 0.5 - 4.0
Higher energy costs, primarily natural gas and
diesel fuel 2.6 0.8 _ 3.4
Multi-employer pension plan mass withdrawal
termination liability 1.1 - _ 1.1
Higher raw material volum 1.4 (0.4) - 1.0
Other expense (0.2) 0.1 (0.2) (0.3)
Sale of judgmen 1.2) - - 1.2)
Product transfers (12.9) 12.9 — —
$ 1294 $32.9 $(0.2) $162.1

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenseSelling, general and administrative expenses wB0$million during Fiscal 2007, a $12.4 millionchease (27.2%
from $45.6 million during Fiscal 2006. The increas primarily due to the following (in millions alollars):

Restauratr

Renderini Service Corporat Total

Payroll and related benefits expel $(0.7) $(0.7) $15 $ 01

Incentive compensatic - 0.2 6.7 6.9
Selling, general and administrative expenses

related to NBP assets 1.8 0.2 0.9 29

Other expense 0.6 0.2 0.5 1.3

Legal settlements — — 1.2 1.2

$1.7 $(0.1) $10.8 $12.4
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Depreciation and Amortization.Depreciation and amortization charges increasefs dlion (12.1%) to $23.2 million during Fiscal @D as compared to $20.7 milli
during Fiscal 2006. The increase is primarily du¢he acquisition of capital assets from NBP inThensaction.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $5.0 million during Fig07 compared to $7.2 million during Fiscal 2006learease of $2.2 million (30.6%), primarily
to a decrease in rates and outstanding balandedetathe Company’s outstanding debt.

Other Income/ExpenseéOther expense was $0.6 million in Fiscal 200744 $nillion decrease from other expense of $4.Tionilin Fiscal 2006. The decrease in o
expense in Fiscal 2007 is primarily due to thedfwihg (in millions of dollars):

Restaurar
Renderin Service: Corporat Total
Write-off of deferred loan cos $- $- $(2.6) $(2.6)
Subordinated debt prepayment fi - - (2.9) (1.9)
Decrease in interest incor - - 0.3 0.3
Increase in other expense — — 0.1 0.1
$- $- $@4.1) $(4.1)

During the second quarter of 2006, the Companyeetits subordinated debt and incurred chargesld fillion for prepayment fees and $1.1 millionvioite off
deferred loan costs. In addition, the Companyredtéto a new revolving credit facility during teecond quarter of 2006 which resulted in a chafdggl.5 million to write of
deferred loan costs related to the previous reagleredit facility.

Income Taxes.The Company recorded income tax expense of $89lin for Fiscal 2007, compared to income tax expe of $2.3 million recorded in Fiscal 200€
increase of $27.2 million, primarily due to incredspretax earnings of the Company in Fiscal 2007. Tliectf’e tax rate of 39.3% for 2007 differed frone thtatutory rate
35% primarily due to state taxes. The effectiverite of 30.7% for 2006 differed from the statytoate of 35% primarily due to federal and statime tax credits as well
the release of certain tax contingencies. The a@npfstate income taxes for 2006 of $0.3 millioaswoffset by certain state tax credits recordezDid6 of $0.1 million.

FINANCING, LIQUIDITY, AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company entered into a $175 million credit agrent (the “Credit Agreementgffective April 7, 2006. The principal componenfghe Credit Agreement cons
of the following.

« The Credit Agreement provides for a total of $17&illion in financing facilities, consisting of &9.0 million term loan facility and a $125.0 milliaevolving
credit facility, which includes a $35.0 million fet of credit su-facility.

« The $125.0 million revolving credit facility haserm of five years and matures on April 7, 2011.

« As of January 3, 2009, the Company has borrowe85ll0 million under the term loan facility, whighovides for scheduled quarterly amortization paytae
$1.25 million over a sixrear term ending April 7, 2012; at that point, teenaining balance of $22.5 million will be payabifull. The Company has reduced
term loan facility by quarterly payments totaling2$6 million, for an aggregate of $37.5 millionrpripal outstanding under the term loan facilityanuary 3, 200¢

« Alternative base rate loans under the Credit Agezdrbear interest at a rate per annum based agrélager of (a) the prime rate and (b) the fedaratl$§ effectiv
rate (as defined in the Credit Agreement) plus Y4%f, plus, in each case, a margin determined bgreate to a pricing grid and adjusted accordinghé
Company’s adjusted leverage ratio. Eurodollar $obhear interest at a rate per annum based on é¢neafiplicable LIBOR multiplied by the statutory resemate
plus a margin determined by reference to a prigingj and adjusted according to the Comy’s adjusted leverage rat
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« On October 8, 2008, the Company entered into amdment (the “Amendmentvith its lenders under its Credit Agreement. Theehdment increases -
Companys flexibility to make investments in third partieBursuant to the Amendment, the Company can malestments in third parties provided that (i,
default under the Credit Agreement exists or waekllt at the time such investment is committebe¢anade, (ii) certain specified defaults do nosear woulc
result at the time such investment is actually made (iii) after giving pro forma effect to suafvestment, the leverage ratio (as determined inrdemice with th
terms of the Credit Agreement) is less than 2.00.00 for the most recent four fiscal quarter pettiven ended. In addition, the Amendment incretrsamount ¢
intercompany investments permitted among the Compad any of its subsidiaries that are not patbebe Credit Agreement from $2.0 million to $1@n@lion.

« The Credit Agreement contains restrictive covendms are customary for similar credit arrangememis requires the maintenance of certain minimurarfcia
ratios. The Credit Agreement also requires the Qamg to make certain mandatory prepayments of audstg indebtedness using the net cash proceedivee
from certain dispositions of property, casualtycondemnation, any sale or issuance of equity iatena a public offering or in a private placemampermitte:
additional indebtedness incurred by the Compang,excess cash flow under certain circumstar

The Company'’s Credit Agreement consists of thefeihg elements at January 3, 2009 (in thousands):

Credit Agreement

Term Loan $ 37,500
Revolving Credit Facility
Maximum availability $ 125,00
Borrowings outstandin -
Letters of credit issued 16,424
Availability $108,576

The obligations under the Credit Agreement are ajutaed by Darling National, a wholywned subsidiary of Darling, and are secured bystautially all of thi
property of the Company, including a pledge ofajlity interests in Darling National. As of Janudr 2009, the Company was in compliance with fithe covenants contain
in the Credit Agreement.

The classification of long-term debt in the Companjanuary 3, 2009 consolidated balance sheetésllmasthe contractual repayment terms of the dslieid under tt
Credit Agreement.

On January 3, 2009, the Company had working capft&®67.4 million and its working capital ratio was95 to 1 compared to working capital of $34.4lionl and «
working capital ratio of 1.43 to 1 on December 2007. The increase in working capital is primadiye to the increase in cash which offset decreiasascounts receivak
with no change to inventory due to physical invepiguantities increases. At January 3, 2009, then@my had unrestricted cash of $50.8 million anttifuavailable under t
revolving credit facility of $108.6 million, comped to unrestricted cash of $16.3 million and fuadailable under the revolving credit facility of 8.1 million at December 2
2007. The Company diversifies its cash investmbptémiting the amounts located at any one finahgistitution and invests primarily in governmdrateked securities.

Net cash provided by operating activitiess $92.0 million and $65.7 million for the fisgadars ended January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2&pé&ctively, an
increase of $26.3 million, primarily due to an iease in net income of approximately $9.1 milliod @hanges in operating assets and liabilities, whicludes an increase in
accounts receivable of approximately $36.0 millian,increase in inventory of approximately $8.5ionl, a reduction for income taxes refundable qfragimately $11.2
million and a reduction in accounts payable andugxt expenses of approximately $25.8 million. Qasdd by investing activities was $52.4 millionidgrFiscal 2008,
compared to $15.6 million in Fiscal 2007, an ineeeaf $36.8 million, primarily due to $15.9 milliém cash used for the acquisition of assets of Rédycling in the third
quarter of Fiscal 2008 and increased capital exipened, related mainly to a major modernizationj@ebat the Turlock, California plant in Fiscal B)0ONet cash used by
financing activities was $5.1 million in the yearded January 3, 2009 a decrease of cash used & ®8#on as compared to $39.1 million at Decem®@y 2007, principally
due to the repayment of borrowings on the Compa@yéslit Agreement in the year ended December 297.20
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Capital expenditures of $31.0 million were mademtyFiscal 2008 as compared to $15.6 million irc&i2007, an increase of $15.4 million (98.7%), gaenarily to ¢
major modernization project at the Turlock Califierplant that was identified over normal maintereaaad compliance capital expenditures as wellgasnaral overall increa
in capital expenditures. Additionally, the CompamyFiscal 2008 spent approximately $0.7 millioratel to the Final BSE Rule and expects to spentbajppately $2.6 milliol
in fiscal 2009 to comply with the Final BSE Rul€apital expenditures related to compliance withirmmental regulations were $1.1 million in Fis@808, $1.8 million i
Fiscal 2007 and $0.8 million in Fiscal 2006.

Based upon the underlying terms of the Credit Agrest, approximately $5.0 million in current debieh is included in current liabilities on the Coamy’s balanc
sheet at January 3, 2009, will be due during the tveelve months, which includes scheduled quaytiedtallment payments of $1.25 million.

Based upon the annual actuarial estimate, currestuals, and claims paid during Fiscal 2008, then@any has accrued approximately $5.1 million iteotp will
become due during the next twelve months in orden¢et obligations related to the Companself insurance reserves and accrued insuraniggatibhs, which are included
current accrued expenses at January 3, 2009. efhmsurance reserve is composed of estimateditiafor claims arising for workerstcompensation and for auto liability &
general liability claims. The self insurance resdiability is determined annually, based upohiadtparty actuarial estimate. The actuarial estexmay vary from year to ye
due to changes in costs of health care, the pendingper of claims and other factors beyond therobof management of the Company. No assurancebeagiven that tr
Company'’s funding obligations under its self insugmreserve will not increase in the future.

Based upon current actuarial estimates, the Compapgcts to make payments of less than approxign&@L million in order to meet minimum pension diimg
requirements during fiscal 2009. The minimum pendunding requirements are determined annuallgethaipon a third party actuarial estimate. Theail estimate m:
vary from year to year, due to fluctuations in raton investments or other factors beyond the cbmifr management of the Company or the administratdhe Company
pension funds. No assurance can be given thahthienum pension funding requirements will not irese in the future. Additionally, the Company hadmrequired and t
deductible discretionary contributions to its pensplans in Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007 of apprakaty $6.5 million and $6.2 million, respectively.

The Pension Protection Act of 2006 (“PPAfas signed into law in August 2006 and went intecetfin January 2008. The stated goal of the P&#o iimprove th
funding of pension plans. Plans in an unfierded status will be required to increase emplayentributions to improve the funding level witHRPA timelines. The impact
recent declines in the world equity and other feiahmarkets could have a material negative impagbension plan assets and the status of requiretifg under the PPA. T
Company participates in several mdtinployer pension plans that provide defined beséditcertain employees covered by labor contraEtgese plans are not administeret
the Company and contributions are determined iorance with provisions of negotiated labor corttacCurrent information with respect to the Comparproportionate shs
of the over- and under-funded status of all actligrcomputed value of vested benefits over thesesipn planshet assets is not available as the Company refighial partie
outside its control to provide such informationheTCompany knows that four of these multi-emplgy@ns were undefiunded as of the latest available information, saf
which is over a year old. The Company has notgtii compel the plan trustees to provide moreentrinformation. One of the under-funded meitiployer plans in which tl
Company participates has given notification of asgnaithdrawal termination for the plan year endedel30, 2007. In April 2008 the Company made aplwum settleme
payment to the one multi-employer plan that tergdafor approximately $1.4 million, which includedrelease for any future liability. Another of tbaderfunded multi-
employer plans in which the Company participates dgigen notification of “Critical Status” under tiRPA. Based upon the Compasynitial review and conversations w
other participating employers in this “Critical &t8” plan, it appears probable that there will be a nvaisdrawal termination of this plan. As a restite Company accru
approximately $3.2 million based on the most redefarmation that is probable and estimable fos thian. While the Company has no ability to calteila possible curre
liability for under-funded multi-employer plans tteould terminate or could require additional furglunder the PPA, the amounts could be material.
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The Company has the ability to burn alternativdsfuimcluding its fats and greases, at a majorititoplants as a way to help manage the Comaeyposure to hic
natural gas prices. Beginning October 1, 2006 federal government effected a program which prewitederal tax credits under certain circumstafmesommercial use
alternative fuels in lieu of fossblased fuels. Beginning in the fourth quarter dd@&0the Company filed documentation with the IRSeicover these Alternative Fuel Mixt
Credits as a result of its use of fats and gretsésel boilers at its plants. The Company hagitesd approval from the IRS to apply for these itsedHowever, the fedel
regulations relating to the Alternative Fuel Mix¢uCredits are complex and further clarificatioméeded by the Company prior to recognition of ¢erax credits received.
of January 3, 2009, the Company has $0.7 millioneckived credits included in current liabilities the balance sheet as deferred income while tiep@oy pursues furth
clarification. The Company is also reviewing nesgitlation under Section 40A of the Internal Reve@ode for the biodiesel mixture credit the impafcivhich could b
material to the Company. The Company will contituevaluate the option of burning alternative $uat its plants in future periods depending onptfiee relationship betwe:
alternative fuels and natural gas.

The Companys management believes that cash flows from operativities consistent with the level generatedriscal 2008, unrestricted cash and funds ava
under the Credit Agreement will be sufficient toeh¢he Company’s working capital needs and maime@and complianceslated capital expenditures, scheduled deb
interest payments, income tax obligations and otloetemplated needs through the next twelve mon@hs.February 23, 2009, the Company acquired sntislig all of the
assets of Boca Industries, Inc. headquartered yrnSanGeorgia for approximately $12.5 million. Nerous factors could have adverse consequences atmpany that canr
be estimated at this time, such as: a reductiofinished product prices; possible product recaBulting from developments relating to the disegpvef unauthorize
adulterations to food additives; the occurrencBiod Flu in the U.S.; any additional occurrendeB&E in the U.S. or elsewhere; reductions in raaterial volumes available
the Company due to weak margins in the meat prastuahdustry as a result of higher feed costs depfactors, reduced volume from food service éistaiments, reduce
demand for animal feed, or otherwise; unanticipatests and/or reductions in raw material voluneated to the Companyimplementation of and compliance with the F
BSE Rule, including capital expenditures to compiyh the Final BSE Rule; unforeseen new U.S. oeifgm regulations affecting the rendering indusincl(gding new o
modified animal feed, Bird Flu or BSE regulation&)creased contributions to the Company’s metitiployer defined benefit pension plans as requisethe PPA; bad de
write-offs; loss of or failure to obtain necessary pesmaitd registrations; and/or unfavorable exportketar These factors, coupled with volatile prift@snatural gas and die:
fuel, general performance of the U.S. economy aadining consumer confidence including the inapibtf consumers and companies to obtain credit dube current lack «
liquidity in the financial markets, among othersuld negatively impact the Compasytesults of operations in fiscal 2009 and theesaffhe Company cannot prov
assurance that the cash flows from operating dietivgenerated in Fiscal 2008 are indicative offtitare cash flows from operating activities thatl e generated by ti
Company'’s operations. The Company reviews theagpiate use of unrestricted cash periodically.héitgh no decision has been made as toardmary course cash usage
this time, potential usages could include: oppustic capital expenditures and/or acquisitions;estments relating to the Compasyleveloping a comprehensive renew
energy strategy, including, without limitation, patial investments in renewable diesel and/or le®eli projects; investments in response to govemtahesgulations relating
BSE or other regulations; unexpected funding tesplfrom the PPA requirements; and paying dividerd repurchasing stock, subject to limitations emthe Cred
Agreement, as well as suitable cash conservatiavitistand adverse commodity cycles.

The current economic environment in the Companyarkets has the potential to adversely impadigtsdity in a variety of ways, including througieduced ra
materials, reduced sales, potential inventory lwgildnd/or higher operating costs.

The principal products that the Company sells araroodities, the prices of which are based on dstad commodity markets and are subject to volatienges. Ar
decline in these prices has the potential to agleimpact the Compang’liquidity. Any of a further disruption in inteational sales, a further decline in commoditiesg¢s
further increases in energy prices resulting fraeréased world demand and the impact of the PPAH®apotential to adversely impact the Compariduidity. A decline ii
commodities prices, a rise in energy prices, a domn in the U.S. or international economy, or otfaetors, could cause the Company to fail to mestaggemensg expectatior
or could cause liquidity concerns.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMERCIAL COMMIT  MENTS

The following table summarizes the Company’s exggchaterial contractual payment obligations, intigdoth on- and ofbalance sheet arrangements at Janu:
2009 (in thousands):

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Contractual obligations (a
Long-term debt obligations (t $ 37,50( $ 5,00( $10,00( $22,50( $ -
Operating lease obligations | 48,13( 10,75¢ 16,36° 8,38t 12,62:
Estimated interest payable | 4,11% 1,19¢ 2,00 91¢ -
Purchase commitments ( 16,89( 16,89( - - -
Derivative obligations (f 3,59 1,50C 1,921 172 -
Pension funding obligation (( 45 45 - - -
Other obligations 7. 7. — — —

Total $110,34¢ $ 35,45¢ $30,29: $31,97¢ $12,62:

(a) The above table does not reflect uncertain taxtjposi of approximately $0.5 million because theitignof the cash settlement can not be reaso
estimated.

(b) See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements

(c) See Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements

(d) Interest payable was calculated using the curastfor term debt and current rates on other ligsl

(e) Purchase commitments were determined based orfisdemintracts for natural gas, diesel fuel anéfirproduct purchases.

(f) Represents liabilities for interest rate swap @ty that were valued at January 3, 2009. Thenaté settlement amounts of these swap contrac
unknown because they are subject to continuing etaigk until the derivatives are settled.

(9) Pension funding requirements are determined annballed upon a third party actuarial estimate. Thmpany expects to make less than $0.1 millic
required contributions to its pension plan in fis2809. The Company is not able to estimate peniiading requirements beyond the next twelve ma
The accrued pension benefit liability was approxeha$36.3 million at the end of Fiscal 2008. T®empany knows that two of the muéimployer pensic
plans that have not terminated to which it conteistand which are not administered by the Compasme wnderfunded as of the latest available informat
and while the Company has no ability to calculapmssible current liability for the under-funded Itremployer plans to which the Company contributes
amounts could be materi

The Company’s ofbalance sheet contractual obligations and commecoimmitments as of January 3, 2009 relate to djpgrdease obligations, letters of cre
forward purchase agreements, and employment agraemé&he Company has excluded these items fronbdhence sheet in accordance with accounting gliesigenerall
accepted in the U.S.

The following table summarizes the Company’s ott@mmercial commitments, including both on- andlwdfance sheet arrangements at January 3, 200%ofisands

Other commercial commitment
Standby letters of credit $16,424
Total other commercial commitments: $16,424

OFF BALANCE SHEET OBLIGATIONS

Based upon underlying purchase agreements, the &onmpas commitments to purchase $16.9 million miEfied products, natural gas and diesel fuel dufisoal
2009, which are not included in liabilities on fBempany’s balance sheet at January 3, 2009. Thesbase agreements are entered into in the naonate of the Comparg’
business and are not subject to derivative accoginffhe commitments will be recorded on the badasiteet of the Company when delivery of these coditiee occurs ar
ownership passes to the Company during fiscal 2@0&8cordance with accounting principles generatigepted in the U.S.
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Based upon underlying lease agreements, the Comgemacts to pay approximately $10.8 million in ayterg lease obligations during fiscal 2009 whick ao
included in liabilities on the Comparg/balance sheet at January 3, 2009. These ledgatabis are included in cost of sales or sellggneral and administrative expense or
Company'’s Statement of Operations as the underlgiase obligation comes due, in accordance witbwawing principles generally accepted in the U.S.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company follows certain significant accountpuaicies when preparing its consolidated finansiatements. A complete summary of these poligesdluded il
Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Stateme

Certain of the policies require management to nggeificant and subjective estimates or assumptibasmay deviate from actual results. In pardcumanageme
makes estimates regarding valuation of inventogemates of useful life of lonigred assets related to depreciation and amortimagkpense, estimates regarding fair valt
the Company’s reporting units and future cash flavith respect to assessing potential impairmeniath long-lived assets and goodwill, seifurance, environmental &
litigation reserves, pension liability, estimatésrcome tax expense, and estimates offorma expense related to stock options grantedh Bathese estimates is discusse
greater detail in the following discussion.

Inventories

The Company’s inventories are valued at the loverost or market. Finished product manufacturingtds calculated using the first-in, firgtt (FIFO) method, bas
upon the Companyg’ raw material costs, collection and factory prditunc operating expenses, and depreciation expenseobection and factory assets. Market value
inventory are estimated at each plant locationethagon either: 1) the backlog of unfilled saledeos at the balance sheet date; or 2) unsold iomercalculated using regior
finished product prices quoted in the Jacobsenxiradeghe balance sheet date. Estimates of magiaeybased upon the backlog of unfilled salesrsrde upon the Jacobs
index, assume that the inventory held by the Comrihe balance sheet date will be sold at thienastd market finished product sales price, subseiio the balance sh
date. Actual sales prices received on future saldaventory held at the end of a period may vipm either the backlog unfilled sales order prarethe Jacobsen ind
quotation at the balance sheet date. These vasaoould cause actual sales prices realized omefigales of inventory to be different than theneate of market value
inventory at the end of the period. Inventoriesenapproximately $22.2 million and $22.5 millionJainuary 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007, respectivel

Long-Lived Assets, Depreciation and AmortizatiorpErse and Valuation

The Companys property, plant and equipment are recorded atwben acquired. Depreciation expense is compategroperty, plant and equipment based ug
straight line method over the estimated usefuldif¢he assets, which is based upon a standarsifatasion of the asset group. Buildings and imgnments are depreciated ¢
a useful life of 15 to 30 years, machinery and popgnt are depreciated over a useful life of 3 tyd&rs and vehicles are depreciated over a lif2tof6 years. These useful
estimates have been developed based upon the Cyragastorical experience of asset life utility, andether the asset is new or used when placed uiceerThe actual lif
and utility of the asset may vary from this estiethtife. Useful lives of the assets may be modifiem time to time when the future utility or lifef the asset is deemec
change from that originally estimated when the tasse placed in service. Depreciation expenseapasoximately $19.3 million, $18.3 million and $18nillion in fiscal year
ending January 3, 2009, December 29, 2007 and De=reB0, 2006, respectively.

The Company'’s intangible assets, including perméstes and nogempete agreements are recorded at fair value wbgunired. Amortization expense is compute
these intangible assets based upon a straightriethod over the estimated useful life of the asseltéch is based upon a standatdssification of the asset group. Collec
routes are amortized over a useful life of 8 toy@@rs; nonrcompete agreements are amortized over a usefudfliBeto 10 years; and permits are amortized ovesedul life of 2(
years. The actual economic life and utility of teset may vary from this estimated life. Useiftgd of the assets may be modified from time tcetiwhen the future utility «
life of the asset is deemed to change from thajfimally estimated when the asset was placed inc@@nintangible asset amortization expense wasoxppately $5.2 millior
$4.9 million and $4.6 million in fiscal years endidanuary 3, 2009, December 29, 2007 and Decenth@086, respectively.
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The Company reviews the carrying value of Idivgd assets for impairment when events or chamgesgcumstances indicate that the carrying amadran asset,
related asset group, may not be recoverable fraimat®d future undiscounted cash flows. Recovétplnf assets to be held and used is measured tyngparison of tr
carrying amount of an asset or asset group to atnundiscounted future cash flows expected tgeberated by the asset or asset group. If thgingramount of the as:
exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impeitroharge is recognized by the amount by whichctreying amount of the asset exceeds the fairevafithe asset. Duril
the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2008, due to lower owodity markets and the loss of raw material suppla a single reporting unit the Company perfornesting of all its long-
lived assets for impairment based on future undisted cash flows and has determined during thigwgeprocess that no impairment exists for its Kingd assets.

The net book value of property, plant and equipneag approximately $143.3 million and $128.7 milliat January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007, resplyct The
net book value of intangible assets was approxin&®6.0 million and $29.0 million at January 3080and December 29, 2007, respectively.

Goodwill Valuation

The Company reviews the carrying value of gooduiilla regular basis, including at the end of eastefiyear, for indications of impairment at eaghoréing unit the
has recorded goodwill as an asset. Impairmentd&ated whenever the carrying value of a reporting exceeds the estimated fair value of a repgrtinit. For purposes
evaluating impairment of goodwill, the Company msties fair value of a reporting unit, based upadnrtidiscounted net cash flows. In calculatingséhestimates, actt
historical operating results and anticipated futecenomic factors, such as future business voldutere finished product prices, and future opeatiosts and expenses
evaluated and estimated as a component of thelatsu of future discounted cash flows for eachoréipg unit with recorded goodwill. The estimatesfair value of thes
reporting units and of future discounted net cdsivg from operation of these reporting units cozhdnge if actual volumes, prices, costs or expevegsfrom these estimates.

Based on the Compargyannual impairment testing at the end of the fogutarter of Fiscal 2008 it was determined thatdygath was impaired within a single reporti
unit due to lower commodity markets and the losgaef material suppliers in the fourth quarter ofdal 2008, which resulted in the Company recordimgmpairment charge
approximately $15.9 million based on future disdednnet cash flows. In addition, a future reductod earnings in the reporting units with recordgmbdwill could result i
future impairment charges because the estimataio¥dlue would be negatively impacted by a reductif earnings at those reporting units. Goodwik approximately $61
million and $71.9 million at January 3, 2009 ancc®mber 29, 2007, respectively.

Self Insurance, Environmental and Legal Reserves

The Companys workers compensation, auto and general lialidlcies contain significant deductibles or seluned retentions. The Company estimates and a«
for its expected ultimate claim costs related toidents occurring during each fiscal year and earthis accrual as a reserve until these claimpaid by the Company.
developing estimates for self insured losses, tbm@any utilizes its staff, a third party actuarydayutside counsel as sources of information andmeht as to the expec
undiscounted future costs of the claims. The Com@axcrues reserves related to environmental aigatibn matters based on estimated undiscountenlefiosts. With respe
to the Companyg self insurance, environmental and litigation resg, estimates of reserve liability could charfdature events are different than those includethie estimate
of the actuary, consultants and management of tirap@ny. The reserve for self insurance, environaleartd litigation contingencies included in accreegenses and ott
non-<urrent liabilities for which there are no potehiilassurance recoveries was approximately $17.3ioniland $17.1 million at January 3, 2009 and Decani®, 2007
respectively.
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Pension Liability

The Company provides retirement benefits to emmeyender separate finphy noncontributory pension plans for salaried hodrly employees (excluding thc
employees covered by a unispensored plan), who meet service and age requitsm8enefits are based principally on lengthes/ge and earnings patterns during the
years preceding retirement. Pension expense angigpe liability recorded by the Company is basedrumn annual actuarial estimate provided by a thpedity
administrator. Factors included in estimates agfent year pension expense and pension liabilithatbalance sheet date include estimated futuxéceeperiod of employee
estimated future pay of employees, estimated futateement ages of employees, and the projectad fieriod of pension benefit payments. Two of miest significar
assumptions used to calculate future pension didiggare the discount rate applied to pensioriliipland the expected rate of return on pensi@anmssets. These assumpt
and estimates are subject to the risk of changetowe, and each factor has inherent uncertaintigish neither the actuary nor the Company is ableontrol or to predict wi
certainty. See Note 13 of Notes to Consolidatedf¢ial Statements for summaries of pension plans.

The discount rate applied to the Compangénsion liability is the interest rate used tiod@ate the present value of the pension benefigation. The weighted avera
discount rate was 6.10% and 6.00% at January 3@ 268 October 1, 2007, respectively. The net paribenefit cost for fiscal 2009 would increasedpproximately $0.
million if the discount rate was 0.5% lower at 340 The net periodic benefit cost for fiscal 2008uld decrease by approximately $0.7 million if tiecount rate was 0.E
higher at 6.60%.

The expected rate of return on the Compamgnsion plan assets is the interest rate usealdolate future returns on investment of the glasets. The expected rel
on plan assets is a lortgrm assumption whose accuracy can only be assessea long period of time. The weighted averaggected return on pension plan assets was ¢
and 8.25% for Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, respegti During 2008, the Comparsyactual return on pension plan assets was a fd2209 million or approximately 28%
pension plan assets due to the recent declineolmagfinancial markets. Although, the Companplan returns were negative the actual returnseded returns of the broa
S&P 500 Index’s performance for 2008. These lossmsributed to an increase in accumulated othenprehensive loss in the Compasytonsolidated statement
stockholders’ equity of $20.4 million, net of tax.

The Company has recorded a pension liability off@ximately $36.3 million and $9.2 million at Jany&, 2009 and December 29, 2007, respectively. Jompanys
net pension cost was approximately $0.4 million,0$@illion and $3.7 million for the fiscal yearsding January 3, 2009, December 29, 2007 and DeaeBihe200€
respectively. The projected net periodic pensiqrease for fiscal 2009 is expected to increaseppyaximately $5.9 million as compared to Fiscal 200

Income Taxes

In calculating net income, the Company includesregies in the calculation of income tax expense,résulting tax liability and in future realizatiaf deferred ta
assets that arise from temporary differences betfieancial statement presentation and tax recamgnif revenue and expense. The Compsauagferred tax assets include &
operating loss carrferward which is limited to approximately $0.7 roth per year in future utilization due to the charig control resulting from the May 2002 recapiatior
of the Company. Valuation allowances for defer@eddssets are recorded when it is more likely tiwtrthat deferred tax assets will not be realizBdsed upon the Compasy’
evaluation of these matters, a portion of the Camisanet operating loss carfgrwards will expire unused. The valuation allowarestablished to provide a reserve ag
these deferred tax assets was approximately $dldmand $4.8 million at January 3, 2009 and Delbem29, 2007, respectively. The decrease in thmpamys valuatiol
allowance is primarily due to the expiration ofteér net operating losses.

Stock Option Expense

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptetbegisions of Statement of Financial Accountingrisi@rd No. 123 (revised 2008hare-Based Payme(itSFAS
123(R)") and related interpretations, using the ified prospective method. The calculation of exgeenf stock options issued utilizes the Bl&ttoles mathematical mor
which estimates the fair value of the option aw@rdhe holder and the compensation expense to thep@ny, based upon estimates of volatility, fige rates of return at t
date of issue and projected vesting of the optianty. The Company recorded compensation expetsged to stock options expense for the year eddediary 3, 200
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 of appei&lyn$0.2 million, $0.4 million and $0.5 milliorespectively.
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NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement ofrféiiah Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 158¢ Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioaal Liabilities
(“SFAS 159"), which allows entities to choose to measure findringtruments and certain other items at fair vallibis statement is effective for fiscal yearsihemg afte
November 15, 2007. The Company has adopted SFA%A® has elected not to account for any additifinahcial instruments and other items at fair ea

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R)Business Combinations(*"SFAS 141(R)"), which is a revision of SFAS 141, Busines
Combinations.” SFAS 141(R) applies to all transactions and ottvents in which one entity obtains control over aremore other businesses. SFAS 141(R) requir
acquirer, upon initially obtaining control of anethentity, to recognize the assets, liabilities angt noneontrolling interest in the acquiree at fair vake of the acquisitic
date. Contingent consideration is required todmgnized and measured at fair value on the daaeafisition rather than at a later date when theumt of that considerati
may be determinable beyond a reasonable doubs falivalue approach replaces the akieation process required under SFAS 141 whetkbycost of an acquisition w
allocated to the individual assets acquired anbiliiies assumed based on their estimated fairevalBFAS 141(R) requires acquirers to expense sitiqui related costs
incurred rather than allocating these costs totass=uired and liabilities assumed, as was doderuBFAS 141. The provisions of SFAS 141(R) afecéfe for fiscal yeai
beginning after December 15, 2008. Early adopsamot permitted. The Company is currently evahgathe impact of adopting this accounting standard

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 16Rphcontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financititements, an Amendment of ARBB3FAS 160"). SFAS 16(
amends ARB 51 to establish new standards thatgailern the accounting for and reporting of (1) ranioolling interests in partially owned consolidhtubsidiaries and (2) t
loss of control of subsidiaries. The provisionsS6fAS 160 are effective as of the beginning of thenBanys 2009 fiscal year on a prospective basis. Thefamyis currentl
evaluating the impact of adopting this accountitamdard.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 16Djsclosures about Derivative Instruments and Heddhativities, an amendment of FASB Statement N {3SFAS
161"). This statement is intended to improve tpamency in financial reporting by requiring enhahdésclosures of an entity'derivative instruments and hedging activities
their effects on the entitg’financial position, financial performance, andlcdlows. SFAS 161 applies to all derivative instents within the scope of SFAS 133 as we
related hedged items, bifurcated derivatives, asterivative instruments that are designated aradifguas hedging instruments. The fair value ofidiive instruments ar
their gains and losses will need to be presentedhnlar format in order to present a more comppétaure of the effects of using derivative instemts. SFAS 161 is effecti
for financial statements issued for fiscal yeargiteing after November 15, 2008, with early apgima permitted. The Company is currently evalugtine impact of adoptir
this accounting standard.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 16Phe Hierarchy of Generally Accepted AccountingriRiples” (“SFAS 162"). The purpose of the new standard i
provide a consistent framework for determining whetounting principles should be used when pregadrs. generally accepted accounting principlerfoial statement
Previous guidance did not properly rank the acdagnliterature. The new standard is effective 6@sdfollowing the SEG approval of the Public Company Accoun
Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 4llie Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity Withr@eally Accepted Accounting PrinciplesThe adoption of SFAS 162
not expected to have a material effect on the Caryipdinancial statements.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Posititm. FAS 157-3Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset ¥hthe Market for That Asset Is Not Active.”
This staff position clarifies the application of 8% 157 in determining the fair values of assetsiadilities in a market that is not active. Thisf§ position became effecti
upon issuance, including prior periods for whiataficial statements have not been issued. The Gonifzs adopted this staff position for the consaéd financial statemetr
contained within this Form 10-K. The adoption luiftstaff position did not have an impact to thasmidated financial statements of the Company.
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In December 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Rusi(FSP) FAS 132(R)-XEmployers’ Disclosures about Postretirement BenBfan Assets."This FSP amen
SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003), “Employers’ Disclosuabout Pensions and Other Postretirement Beridéitprovide guidance on an employgdisclosures about plan assel
a defined benefit pension or other postretiremdamt pn investment policies and strategies, majtegmies of plan assets, inputs and valuation tgcles used to measure
fair value of plan assets and significant conceiatna of risk within plan assets. The disclosuresut plan assets required by this FSP shall beteféefor fiscal years endit
after December 15, 2009, with earlier applicati@rnpitted. Upon initial application, the provision$ this FSP are not required for earlier periodat thre presented 1
comparative purposes. The Company is currentljuatiag the disclosure requirements impact of aitgpthis new FSP.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes “forwambking” statements that involve risks and uncettasn The words “believe,” “anticipate,” “exp€ctestimate,”
“intend,” and similar expressions identify forwaabking statements. All statements other thanestants of historical facts included in the Annua&pBrt on Form 10k,
including, without limitation, the statements undlee sections entitled “Business,” “Management’sdDssion and Analysis of Financial Condition anduRs of Operations”
and “Legal Proceedings” and located elsewhere heegjarding industry prospects and the Companwpanttial position are forwardoking statements. Actual results cc
differ materially from those discussed in the fordpoking statements as a result of certain factoduding many that are beyond the control of th@mPany. Although tr
Company believes that the expectations reflectedase forward-looking statements are reasondl#anigive no assurance that these expectatiohpnaile to be correct.

In addition to those factors discussed under tteling “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of this report astsewhere in this report, and in the Compamyther public filing
with the SEC, important factors that could caugeaaesults to differ materially from the Compasigxpectations include: the Compasgbntinued ability to obtain source:
supply for its rendering operations; general ecoigoconditions in the American, European and Agisarkets; a decline in consumer confidence; prinethe competin
commodity markets which are volatile and are beytiredCompanys control; energy prices; the implementationhef Final BSE Feed Rule; BSE and its impact orsfiei
product prices, export markets, energy prices aneigment regulations, which are still evolving aaré beyond the Comparsytontrol; the occurrence of Bird Flu in
U.S.; possible product recall resulting from depehents relating to the discovery of unauthorizédlterations (such as melamine) to food additieest increased contributic
to the Company’s multi-employer defined benefitgien plans as required by the PPA. Among othegthifuture profitability may be affected by the GQmamny’s ability to grov
its business, which faces competition from compatimt may have substantially greater resources tthea Company. The Company cautions readers th&ralardiooking
statements speak only as of the date made, arddimpany undertakes no obligation to update anydoMooking statements, whether as a result of chaifgescumstance
new events or otherwise.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risks affecting the Company are exposureshinges in prices of the finished products the @y sells, interest rates on debt, availabilitya materic
supply and the price of natural gas and diesel digsed in the Company’plants. Raw materials available to the Compasyirapacted by seasonal factors, including holi¢
when raw material volume declines; warm weathéictvcan adversely affect the quality of raw matleprocessed and finished products produced; aludveeather, which ce
impact the collection of raw material. Predomimaatl of the Company’s finished products are condities that are generally sold at prices prevailihghe time of sale.

The Company makes limited use of derivative insenta to manage cash flow risks related to inteaedtnatural gas expense. The Company uses intatestwarg
with the intent of managing overall borrowing cobtsreducing the potential impact of increasesniterest rates on floating-rate lotgrm debt. The interest rate swaps
subject to the requirements of Statement of Firenaiccounting Standards No. 13Bccounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgingtivities (“SFAS 133"). The
Companys natural gas and diesel fuel instruments areutgjest to the requirements of SFAS 133, becauseadhgal gas and diesel fuel instruments qualifp@snal purchas:
as defined in the SFAS 133. The Company doess®tlarivative instruments for trading purposes.

On May 19, 2006, the Company entered into two @derate swap agreements that are considered loashédges according to SFAS 133. Under the terfrthes:
swap agreements, beginning June 30, 2006, theflcash from the Company’s $50.0 million floatimgte term loan facility under the Credit Agreemeate been exchanged
fixed rate contracts that bear interest, payabletquy. The first swap agreement for $25.0 millimatures April 7, 2012 and bears interest at 5,42Btch does not include t
borrowing spread per the Credit Agreement, with diziog payments that mirror the term loan facilitYhe second swap agreement for $25.0 million neatépril 7, 2012 ar
bears interest at 5.415%, which does not incluéebtbrrowing spread per the Credit Agreement, witfoizing payments that mirror the term loan fagiliThe Companyg
receive rate on each swap agreement is basedestiionth LIBOR. At January 3, 2009, the fair vadicghese interest swap agreements was $3.6 maiihis included in non-
current liabilities on the balance sheet, with &sai recorded to accumulated other comprehensis@ne for the effective portion and other expensetfe ineffective portion «
the interest rate swap .

As of January 3, 2009, the Company had forward lage agreements in place for purchases of apprtedyn®13.3 million of natural gas and diesel fuelfisca
2009. As of January 3, 2009, the Company had fatywarchase agreements in place for purchasespobeimately $3.6 million of finished product in éial 2009.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The Company’s obligations subject to variable ies¢rates include (in thousands, except interéssya

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Long-term debt
Variable ratt $ 37,50C $ 5,000 $ 10,00C $ 22,50C $ -
Average interest rate 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% —
Total $ 37,500 $ 5,000 $ 10,000 $22,500 $ -

The Company has $37.5 million in variable rate delitich is made up of the Compasyterm debt whose interest risk is hedged by isteste swaps discussed at
and represents the balance outstanding at Janu2609 under the Credit Agreement. The Compariynagts that if the debt was not hedged under ttezest rate swap a 1
increase in interest rates would increase the Cagipanterest expense by approximately $0.4 milliofiscal 2009. At January 3, 2009, the Compaag ho fixed rate debt.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Darling International Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statésnehDarling International Inc. and subsidiariesligted in the accompanying index. In connectioth our audits of th
consolidated financial statements, we also havéedithe financial statement schedule as listettiénaccompanying index. These consolidated finastaéements and financ
statement schedule are the responsibility of theniamy’s management. Our responsibility is to express @nian on these consolidated financial statement financia
statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighaBo(United States). Those standards require tegblan and perfor
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboutemhtte financial statements are free of materiastatement. An audit includes examining, on altests, evidence support
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statésn An audit also includes assessing the acaayptinciples used and significant estimates madmanagement, as well
evaluating the overall financial statement preseraWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all mater@spects, the financial position of Darling Imtational Inc. and subsidiaries
of January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007, andethdts of their operations and their cash flowsdach of the years in the thrgear period ended January 3, 200¢
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accountimigciples. Also in our opinion, the related finéalcstatement schedule, when considered in relatidhe basic consolidat
financial statements taken as a whole, presenty,fai all material respects, the information g®th therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrste&tements, effective January 1, 2006, the Compaopted Statement of Financial Accounting Stashel&o. 123(R)Share-
Based Payment.As discussed in Note 13 to the consolidated firelnsiatements, effective December 30, 2006, the gaom adopted Statement of Financial Accour
Standards No. 15&mployer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiod &ther Postretirement Plans — an Amendment ofBF8t&tements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dnited States), Darling International Irec.internal control ov:
financial reporting as of January 3, 2009, basedrderia established imternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrihie
Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report datedcMd, 2009, expressed an unqualified opinion andffectiveness of the Compaasyihternal control over financ
reporting.

(signed) KPMG LLP
Dallas, Texas
March 4, 2009
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Darling International Inc.:

We have audited Darling International Inc.’s inricontrol over financial reporting as of January2809, based on criteria established imnternal Control —Integratec
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatajrthe Treadway Commission (COSO). Darling Intéoraal Inc.'s management is responsible for maintai
effective internal control over financial reportirapd for its assessment of the effectiveness afrial control over financial reporting, included tihe accompanyir
Management's Annual Report on Internal Control okarancial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion o @ompanys internal control over financial reporti
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedslof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lBd@nited States). Those standards require thapleu® and perfori
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abouteheffective internal control over financial refiog was maintained in all material respects. Quditincluded obtaining ¢
understanding of internal control over financighogting, assessing the risk that a material weakeaists, and testing and evaluating the designopedating effectiveness
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qdit also included performing such other proced@®gsve considered necessary in the circumstanceheiéye that our auc
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is a@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregéhe reliability of financial reporting andelpreparation «
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with U.S. generally accepted accounting jplies. A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdios:
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to thenteaiance of records that, in reasonable detailjrately and fairly reflect the transactions ancpbdistions of the assets of
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thagections are recorded as necessary to permit @tggaiof financial statements in accordance wits.Lgenerally accept
accounting principles, and that receipts and exjperas of the company are being made only in acwed with authorizations of management and direaibthe company; ai
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prerentitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiose, or disposition of the compasydssets that could have a material e
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢t@isstatements. Also, projections of any evatuatf effectiveness to futu
periods are subject to the risk that controls magome inadequate because of changes in conditortbat the degree of compliance with the polidegprocedures mi
deteriorate.

In our opinion, Darling International Inc. maintath in all material respects, effective internattcol over financial reporting as of January 3, 200ased on criteria establis|
in Internal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boédnited States), the consolidated financial statets of Darlin
International Inc. and subsidiaries as listed i@ #tcompanying index, and our report dated MarcR089 expressed an unqualified opinion on thosesa@atated financie
statements.

(signed) KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 4, 2009
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivale
Restricted cas
Accounts receivable, less allowance for thelts of $2,313
at January 3, 2009 and $1,466 at Deeer29, 200’
Inventorie:
Income taxes refundak
Other current asse
Deferred income taxes
Total current ass

Property, plant and equipment, |

Intangible assets, less accumulated amortizati@# @281
at January 3, 2009 and $42,481 at Dece2®e2007

Goodwill

Other asset

Deferred income taxes

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lor-term debi
Accounts payable, principally tra
Accrued expenses
Total current liabilitie

Long-term debt, net of current portic
Other noncurrent liabilitie
Deferred income taxes

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci

Stockholder’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value; 100,000,0@0es authorizec
82,169,076 and 81,544,466 shares is:
at January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007, respbc
Additional pai-in capital
Treasury stock, at cost; 401,094 and 182,366 slares
January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007, respec
Accumulated other comprehensive |
Accumulated earnings
Total stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthes
consolidated financial statements.
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December

January 3, 29,
2009 2007
$ 50,81« $ 16,33t
44¢ 432
40,42« 59,40:
22,18: 22,48
11,24¢ -
6,69¢ 8,417
6,65¢€ 8,02¢
138,46¢ 115,09:
143,29: 128,68
35,98: 29,031
61,13: 71,85¢
6,62 6,667
8,871 —
$ 394,37 $ 351,33¢
$ 5,00(C $ 6,25(
16,24: 24,87¢
49,78( 49 57¢
71,02: 80,70¢
32,50( 37,50(
54,27 27,22¢
— 4,921
157,79° 150,35¢
822 81t
156,89¢ 152,26¢
(3,84 (1,54%
(29,85() (8,59¢)
112 55! 58,05(
236,57¢ 200,98:¢
$ 394,37 $ 351,33¢




DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Three years ended January 3, 2009
(in thousands, except per share data)

December December
January 3, 29, 30,
2009 2007 2006
Net sales $  807,49: $ 645,31 $  406,99(
Costs and expense
Cost of sales and operating expel 614,70¢ 483,45: 321,41¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 59,76: 57,99¢ 45,64¢
Depreciation and amortizati 24,43: 23,21« 20,68¢
Goodwill impairment 15,91« — —
Total costs and expenses 714,81¢ 564,66¢ 387,75
Operating income 92,67¢ 80,64 19,23¢
Other income/(expense
Interest expens (3,019 (5,04%) (7,189
Other, net 25¢ (570) (4,6872)
Total other income/(expense) (2,760) (5,61%) (11,86¢)
Income from operations before
income taxe 89,91¢ 75,03z 7,37:
Income taxes 35,354 29,49¢ 2,26¢
Net income $ 54,56 $ 45,53: $ 5,107
Net income per shar
Basic $ 0.67 $ 0.5€ $ 0.07
Diluted $ 0.6¢€ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.07

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthes
consolidated financial statements.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Three years ended January 3, 2009
(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stocl

Total
Number of Accumulated Stockholdel
Outstanding $.01 par Additional Treasury Other Compre Retained Unearned
Shares Value Paic-In Capita Stock hensive Los: Earnings Compensatio  Equity
Balances at January 1, 2006 64,437, $ 644 $ 7937C $ (172 $(9, $ 4, $ (1,327 $ 73,
410 282) 447 680
Net income - - - - - 5,107 - 5,107
Minimum pension liability
adjustment, net of t¢ - - - - 2,415 - - 2,415
Interest rate swap derivative
adjustment, net of tax — - - — (408) - — (408,
Total comprehensive incon - - - - - - - 7,114
Adjustment to initially apply
FASB Statement No. 158,
net of tax (revisec - - - - (4,458) - - (4,458
Adjustment to opening
stockholder’ equity - - - - - 2,822 - 2,822
Adjustment to initially apply
FASB Statement No. 12: - - (1,327) - - - 1,327 -
Stoclk-based compensatic - - 1,488 - - - - 1,488
Tax benefits associated with
stocl-based compensatic - - 50 - - - - 50
Issuance of common stock 16,417,045 165 70,464 — — — — 70,629
Balances at December 30, 2006 80,854,45: $ 809 $ $ (172 $ $12,376 $151,325
150,045 (11,733)
Net income - - - - - 45,533 - 45,533
Unrecognized net actuarial
loss of defined benefit plar
Pension liability
adjustments, net of ti - - - - 3,870 - - 3,870
Interest rate swap derivative
adjustment, net of tax — - - — (735) - — (735)
Total comprehensive incon - - - - - - - 48,668
Adjustment to initially apply
FIN 48 - - - - - 141 - 141
Stocl-based compensatic - - 365 - - - - 365
Tax benefits associated with
stoc-based compensatic - - 1,223 - - - - 1,223
Treasury stocl (161,366 - - (1,375) - - - (2,375,
Issuance of common stock 669,01% 6 631 — — — — 637
Balances at December 29, 2007 81,362,10C $ 815 $ $ $ $58,050 - $200,984
152,264 (1,547) (8,598)
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Qutinued)

Three years ended January 3, 2009
(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stocl

Number of Accumulated Total
Outstanding $.01 par Additional Treasury Other Compre Retained Unearned Stockholders
Shares Value Paic-In Capita Stock hensive Los: Earnings Compensatic  Equity
Net income - - - - - 54,562 - 54,562
Unrecognized net actuarial
loss of defined benefit plar
Pension liability

adjustments, net of tax _ _ _ _ (20,386) _ _ (20,386

Interest rate swap derivative
adjustment, net of tax — - — — (937) - - (937)

Total comprehensive incon - - - - - - - 33,239
Adjustment effect of changing the

pension plan measurement

date pursuant to FASB

Statement No 158, net of 1 - - - - 71 (57) - 14
Issuance of nc-vested stock 50,558 1 702 - - - - 703
Stocl-based compensatic - - (127) - - - - 127,
Tax benefits associated with

stoc-based compensatic - - 2,308 - - - - 2,308
Treasury stocl (218,728 - - (2,301) - - - (2,301
Issuance of common stock 574,05z 6 1,752 - - - 1,758
Balances at January 3, 2009 81,767,982z $ 822 $ 156,899 $ $ $112555 $ - $236,578

(3,848) (29,850)

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthes
consolidated financial statements.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Three years ended January 3, 2009
(in thousands)

December
January 3, 29, December 3(
2009 2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 54,56: $ 45,53: $ 5,107
Adjustments to reconcile net income to nehgavided by
operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizat 24,43: 23,21« 20,68¢
Deferred income tax (12,429 5,61¢ (3,929
Gain on sale of ass (241 5) (42)
Increase/(decrease) in term pension liability 6,78¢ (5,669 1,33¢
Stoc-based compensation expel 80C 1,23t 1,58¢
Writ-off of deferred loan cos - - 2,56¢
Goodwill impairmer 15,91« - -
Changes in operating assets anditiab, net
of effects from acquisitior
Restricted cas (16) 47 1,86¢
Accounts receivabl 18,977 (17,020 (2,78%)
Income taxes refundab (11,249 - -
Inventories and prepaid expen: (399 (7,72¢) 867
Accounts payable and accrued expet (6,889 18,91¢ (1,33€)
Other 1,59¢ 1,56 2,90/
Net cash provided by operating atitis 91,95( 65,70 28,83:
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditure (31,00¢€) (15,557) (12,800
Acquisitions (15,87¢) - (80,16¢)
Gross proceeds from sale of property, pladtequipment
and other asse 1,101 217 73¢
Payments related to routes and other intaegibl (6,609) (262) —
Net cash used in investing actisgitie (52,39() (15,597 (91,227
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from loi-term debt - 42,50( 126,50(
Payments on lor-term debi (6,250 (81,759 (93,029
Contract paymen (17¢€) (167) (24%)
Deferred loan cos (67) - (1,639
Issuance of common sto 308 517 29
Minimum withholding taxes paid on stock awa (1,199 (1,375 -
Excess tax benefits from stock-based comprmsat 2,30¢ 1,22: 50
Net cash provided/(used) in finagcattivities (5,087) (39,05€) 31, 67€
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equis: 34,47¢ 11,054 (30,719
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 16,33 5,281 36,00(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 50,81+« $ 16,33¢ $ 5,281
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the year fi
Interest $ 3,01€ $ 5,151 $ 6,34t
Income taxes, net of refunds $ 44,24¢ $ 26,307 $ 2,684

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthes
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 1.

@)

(b)

DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL
NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Darling International Inc., a Delaware corporati¢fDarling”), is a recycler of food and animal lpyeducts and provides grease trap services to &mwdice
establishments. Darling collects and recycles ahibyproducts and used cooking oil from food servicalglsghments. Darling processes raw materials .
facilities located throughout the United State® ifinished products such as protein (primarily maad bone meal, “MBM")tallow (primarily bleachable fan:
tallow, “BFT"), yellow grease (“YG”) and hides. BDing sells these products nationally and intewaily, primarily to producers of olechemicals, soaps, |
foods, leather goods, livestock feed andfoiels for use as ingredients in their productsasrflirther processing. As further discussed ineNat in fiscal 200t
Darling, through its wholly-owned subsidiary DadiNational LLC, a Delaware limited liability compar(“Darling National”), completed the acquisition
substantially all of the assets (the “Transactiasf’National By-Products, LLC, an lowa limited liity company (“NBP”). Darling and its subsidiaries, includi
Darling National, are collectively referred to hieras (the “Company”). The Compasyesults for fiscal 2008 and 2007 include a felayof contribution from tt
assets acquired in the Transaction, as comparg8 teeeks of contributions from these assets irafi2006. The Compang'operations are currently organized
two segments: Rendering and Restaurant Servioesadeitional information on the Comp¢ s segments, see Note :

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include teants of the Company and its subsidiaries. itificant intercompany balances and transac
have been eliminated in consolidati

2) Fiscal Year

The Company has a 52/53 week fiscal year endinthersaturday nearest December 31. Fiscal yeathdoconsolidated financial statements inclt
herein are for the 53 weeks ended January 3, 200%2 weeks ended December 29, 2007, and the élsvesnded December 30, 20

3) Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all st-term highly liquid instruments, with an original tngty of three months or less, to be cash equiual

4 Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Agots
The Company maintains allowances for doubtful ant®for estimated losses resulting from customeos'-payment of trade accounts receivable ¢
to the Company. These trade receivables arisénénotdinary course of business from sales of ravera, finished product or services to
Company'’s customers. The estimate of allowanceléubtful accounts is based upon the Compabgd debt experience, prevailing market condit
and aging of trade accounts receivable, among dteors. If the financial condition of the Compas customers deteriorates, resulting in
customer’ inability to pay the Compar's receivables as they come due, additional alloesfar doubtful accounts may be requir

5) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miarkCost is determined using the *in, first-out (FIFO) method
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

Long Lived Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at dospreciation is computed by the straiihe method over the estimated useful lives of @ssg
Buildings and improvements, 15 to 30 years; 2) Maery and equipment, 3 to 10 years; and 3) Vebjddo 6 years.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense@sed and expenditures for major renewals anddrgments are capitalize
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets subject to amortization condistl) collection routes which are made up of g®uop suppliers of raw materials in similar geogiia
areas from which the Company derives collectiors feed a dependable source of raw materials foregeiieg into finished products; 2) permits
represent licensing of operating plants that hasenbacquired, giving those plants the ability t@rape; 3) norcompete agreements that repre
contractual arrangements with former competitoresehbusinesses were acquired; and 4) royalty angulting agreements. Amortization expen:
calculated using the straight-line method overdastmated useful lives of the assets ranging fr@20 years for collection routes; 20 years for pesi
and 10 years for nc-compete covenant

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Ass® Be Disposed of

The Company follows Statement of Financial AccougtStandards No. 14#4ccounting for the Impairment of Disposal of Longed Assetg‘SFAS
144™). The Company reviews the carrying valueafddived assets for impairment when events or chamgegcumstances indicate that the carn
amount of an asset, or related asset group, magencoverable from estimated future undiscoungesth flows. Recoverability of assets to be held
used is measured by a comparison of the carryimguatof an asset or asset group to estimated wundised future cash flows expected to be gene
by the asset or asset group. If the carrying amofithe asset exceeds its estimated future casisflan impairment charge is recognized by the aut
by which the carrying amount of the asset excekedair value of the asset. During the fourth geradf fiscal 2008, due to lower commodity marl
and the loss of raw material suppliers at a sing®rting unit the Company performed testing ofitallonglived assets for impairment based on fu
undiscounted cash flows and concluded that its-lived assets were not impaire

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or mérequently if events or changes in circumstancdgcate that the asset might be impaired. State
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 14@oodwill and Other Intangible Asset§SFAS 142") requires a twetep process for testi
impairment. First, the fair value of each repagtimit is compared to its carrying value to detemnivhether an indication of impairment exists
impairment is indicated, then the fair value of theorting unit's goodwill is determined by allocat the units fair value of its assets and liabilit
(including any unrecognized intangible assets)fata reporting unit had been acquired in a businesmbination. The amount of impairment
goodwill is measured as the excess of its carryaige over its implied fair value.

The fair value for one of the Compasyreporting units containing goodwill did not exdethe related carrying values; consequently, then@amy
recorded an impairment of approximately $15.9 wnilfor the year ended January 3, 2009. Goodwill ayggzoximately $61.1 million and $71.9 milli
at January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007, respctiGee Note 6 for further information on the Gamy's goodwill.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

Environmental Expenditures

Environmental expenditures incurred to mitigat@@vent environmental impacts that have yet to oaad that otherwise may result from future
operations are capitalized. Expenditures thatedtaan existing condition caused by past opearatand that do not contribute to current or future
revenues are expensed or charged against estabisizonmental reserves. Reserves are established environmental impacts have been identified
which are probable to require mitigation and/or edation and the costs are reasonably estim

(10) Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes using thet assl liability method. Under the asset and lighinethod, deferred tax assets and liabilities ar
recognized for the future tax consequences atafilatto differences between the financial staternamying amounts of existing assets and liabditie
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax aiaset liabilities are measured using enacted t&s expected to apply to taxable income in thesygar
which those temporary differences are expectee teebovered or settled. The effect on deferredismets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that includesehactment date.
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.-188counting for Income Taxesquires the Company to periodically assess whétiemore
likely than not that it will generate sufficientx&ble income to realize its deferred income taetssin making this determination, the Company
considers all available positive and negative ewigeand makes certain assumptions. The Comparsjders, among other things, its deferred tax
liabilities, the overall business environment hitstorical earnings and losses, current induseyds and its outlook for future years. Although th
Company is unable to carryback any of its net apegdosses, based upon recent favorable operegsgts and future projections, certain net opegati
losses can be carried forward and utilized andratbéerred tax assets will be realiz
(11) Earnings per Share
Basic income per common share is computed by digidiet income by the weighted average number ofwomshares outstanding during the
year. Diluted income per common share is comphyedividing net income by the weighted average nendf common shares outstanding during
year increased by dilutive common equivalent shde¢ermined using the treasury stock metl
Net Income per Common Share (in thousa
January 3 December 2¢ December 3(
2009 2007 2006
Per- Per- Per-
Income  Shares Share Income  Shares Share Income Shares Share
Basic:
Net income $54,56. 81,387 $0.67 $45,530 80,772 $0.5¢ $5,107 74,310 $0.07
Diluted:
Effect of dilutive securitie
Add: Option shares in the money &
dilutive effect of restricted stor - 1,178 - - 1,772 - - 1,264 -
Less: Pro-forma treasury shares — (408 — — (648 — — (315 —
Diluted:
Net income $54,56. 82,157 $0.6¢ $45,53. 81,896 $0.5¢ $5,107 75,259 $0.07
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

For fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, 2@,80187 and 771,950 outstanding stock options weckided from diluted income per common
as the effect was antidilutive. For fiscal 200802 and 2006, respectively, 88,767, 117,179 and8288shares of nowested stock and restricted st
were excluded from diluted income per common sharthe effect was antidilutive. For fiscal 200802 and 2006, respectively, zero, 60,713 and
99,821 shares of contingent issuable stock werkiéad from diluted income per common share as fieetevas antidilutive

(12) Stock Based Compensation

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBtat8ment of Financial Accounting Standard No. 128i6ed 2004)Share-Based Payment
(“SFAS 123(R)”) requires all entities to recognzampensation expense in an amount equal to thedhie of the share-based payments (e.g., stock
options and nowested and restricted stock) granted to employebyg mcurring liabilities to an employee or otlgipplier (a) in amounts based, at l¢
in part, on the price of the entity’s shares orotbquity instruments, or (b) that require or maguire settlement by issuing the entity’s equitsrsls or
other equity instruments.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptegtbeisions of SFAS 123(R) and related interpretetjaising the modified prospective

method. Using the modified prospective methodAS 123(R), the Company began recognizing compemsakpense for the remaining unvested
portions of stock-based compensation granted pridanuary 1, 2006. As a result of adopting SFAKR), for the year ended December 30, 2006, the
Company recorded additional stock option expensgppfoximately $0.5 million, which reduced incomenfi continuing operations and income before
income taxes by approximately $0.5 million, redunetlincome by $0.4 million, and reduced basic dided earnings per share by $0.01 per

share. Total stockased compensation recognized under SFAS 123(fRgistatements of operations for the years endadada 3, 2009, December Z
2007 and December 30, 2006 was approximately $illibmy $1.4 million and $1.6 million, respectivelwhich is included in selling, general and
administrative costs, and the related income tavefierecognized was approximately $0.3 million,4sfnillion and $0.6 million, respectively. See Mot
12 for further information on the Company’s stodsbd compensation plans.

SFAS 123(R) requires the benefits of tax deductiorexcess of recognized compensation cost to fperted as a financing cash flow. For the year
ended January 3, 2009, December 29, 2007 and Dexe08h2006, the Company recognized $2.3 millidn2$nillion and $50,000, respectively in si
tax deductions, which were recorded as an incrieafieancing cash flows and a reduction in ope@tash flows

(13) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stegiets in conformity with U.S. generally acceptedaamting principles requires management to r
estimates and assumptions that affect the repantalints of assets and liabilities and disclosureonftingent assets and liabilities at the datehe
consolidated financial statements and the repatedunts of revenues and expenses during the negqguériod. Actual results could differ from th
estimates

If it is at least reasonably possible that theneate of the effect on the financial statements obrdition, situation, or set of circumstances #adst a
the date of the financial statements will changehim near term due to one or more future confirnemgnts and the effect of the change woul
material to the financial statements, the Compaiflydisclose the nature of the uncertainty andude an indication that it is at least reasonablysfine
that a change in the estimate will occur in therneam. If the estimate involves a loss contingecavered by FASB Statement No. 5, the disclosuHe
also include an estimate of the possible loss mgeaf loss or state that an estimate cannot ber
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

(14) Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalentuats receivable, accounts payable and accrysehegs approximates fair value due to the
maturity of these instruments. In addition, therging amount of the Comparsybutstanding borrowings under the Credit Agreendestribed in No’
9 approximates the fair value due to the floatimtgriest rates on the borrowin

(15) Derivative Instruments

The Company makes limited use of derivative instnta to manage cash flow risks related to intenegénse, natural gas usage and inventory. Interest
rate swaps are entered into with the intent of rgartaoverall borrowing costs by reducing the pasnmpact of increases in interest rates on frogti

rate long-term debt. Natural gas swaps and calig®ntered into with the intent of managing therall cost of natural gas usage by reducing the
potential impact of seasonal weather demands amalajas that increases natural gas prices. lowestvaps are entered into with the intent of
managing seasonally high concentrations of prateiantories by reducing the potential impact ofréasing prices. The Company does not use
derivative instruments for trading purposes. Atuky 3, 2009, the Company had two interest ratgpsvand no natural gas swaps or collars or
inventory swaps.

Under Financial Accounting Standards No. 188¢ounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities (“SFAS 133”), entities are required to
report all derivative instruments in the statenwrfinancial position at fair value. The accountiiog changes in the fair value (i.e., gains or és3f a
derivative instrument depends on whether it has ldesignated and qualifies as part of a hedgiradiogiship and, if so, on the reason for holding the
instrument. If certain conditions are met, entitiessy elect to designate a derivative instrumera Bedge of exposures to changes in fair value, cash
flows or foreign currencies. If the hedged expesara cash flow exposure, the effective portiothefgain or loss on the derivative instrument is
reported initially as a component of other compneive income (outside of earnings) and is subsdtyuestlassified into earnings when the forecasted
transaction affects earnings. Any amounts excldoed the assessment of hedge effectiveness asaw/élle ineffective portion of the gain or loss are
reported in earnings immediately. If the derivafivetrument is not designated as a hedge, theaydoss is recognized in earnings in the period of
change

(16) Comprehensive Income

The Company follows the provisions of SFAS No. 1R8porting Comprehensive Incoifi8FAS 130”). SFAS 130 establishes standards foonting
and presentation of comprehensive income and itgpoaents. In accordance with SFAS 130, the Compasypresented the components of
comprehensive income in its consolidated statenwrggckholder equity.

17) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue on sales when pgeodreeshipped and the customer takes ownershipssuines risk of loss. Collection fees are
recognized in the month the service is provic

(18) Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiehform to the current year presentat

NOTE 2. ACQUISITIONS

On August 25, 2008, Darling completed the acquisitf substantially all of the assets of APl Remgk used cooking oil collection business (the tAP
Transaction”). APl Recycling is a division of Anigan Proteins, Inc. The purchase was accounteasfan asset purchase pursuant to the terms af#e¢ purchase
agreement between the Company and American PrptamsThe assets acquired in the API Transadtifiincrease the Company’s capabilities to groweneues
and continue the Compa'’s strategy of broadening its restaurant servicgseat.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

Effective August 25, 2008, the Company began inagidhe operations of the API Transaction into @@mpanys consolidated financial statements. Pro fc
results of operations have not been presented bedhe effect of the acquisition is not deemed risdtéo revenues and net income of the Companyfiswal
2008. The Company paid cash of $15.9 million aedorded a receivable of approximately $1.5 million a net purchase price for the APl Transactio
approximately $14.4 million, which consists of peofy, plant and equipment of $3.4 million, intarigilassets of $5.5 million, goodwill of $5.2 milli@md other ¢
$0.3 million. The receivable was recorded as aicgdn of goodwill due to certain raw material voles during the 91 days following the closing dabé fmein¢
achieved per the asset purchase agreement. Therfillion receivable is recorded as a long termeotiisset on the balance sheet at January 3, 20@8dition, th
Company could be required to pay additional consiiten, which the Company does not expect to besriad} if certain average market prices are aclilewmeer thi
next three anniversaries of the closing of the ARInsaction less, on a pro rata basis, the long-teceivable of $1.5 million.

The $5.2 million of goodwill was assigned to thstaeirant services segment and is expected to hectilalé for tax purposes. ldentifiable intangiblasthe AP
Transaction include $5.5 million in routes with aighted average useful life of nine years.

On May 15, 2006, Darling, through its wholbyvned subsidiary Darling National, completed thejuasition of substantially all of the assets of NEiRe
“Transaction”). The purchase was accounted for as an asset purghesent to the terms of the asset purchase agregeby and among Darling, Darling Natio
and NBP, whereby Darling National acquired sub&#iptall of the assets and liabilities of NBP. éllassets acquired in the Transaction has incre2aaddhg’s
capabilities by growing revenues, diversifying the material supplies and creating a larger platftos grow Darling’s restaurant services business.

As a result of the Transaction, effective May 180&, the Company began including the operationdBP into the Companyg’ consolidated financial statements.
following table presents selected pro forma infaiorg for comparative purposes, assuming the Tiisahad occurred on January 2, 2005 for the perfresente
(unaudited) (in thousands, except per share data):

The selected unaudited pro forma information is mextessarily indicative of the consolidated resoftsperations for future periods or the result©pérations thi
would have been realized had the Transaction dgtoeturred on January 1, 2006.

December 30,

2006

Net sales $480,347

Income from continuing operatiol 9,194

Net income 9,194
Earnings per shal

Basic and dilute $ 0.11

The Transaction was accounted for using the pueclmasthod of accounting for business combinatiords accordingly, the results of operations relatedhe
Transaction have been included in the Company’saalated financial statements since the date gdiagtion.

The purchase price for the Transaction totaled #1&tlllion, which included the issuance of approately 16.3 million shares of Darling common stoekued a
$70.5 million.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

The following table summarizes the fair value of #ssets acquired and liabilities assumed as of #ag006 (in thousands):

Accounts receivable, n $ 13,70
Inventory, ne: 7,18¢
Other current asse 13t
Deferred tax asst 42k
Identifiable intangible: 25,74(
Property and equipme 51,89:
Goodwill 68,34:
Accounts payabl (7,837%)
Accrued expense (7,65(0)
Other liabilities (1,27:)
Purchase price $ 150,66

As a result of the acquisition of NBP, the Compagguced its valuation allowance for meguisition deferred tax assets of approximatel® $aillion, resulting in
reduction of the $68.3 million of goodwill to $67illion.

The $67.4 million of goodwill was assigned to tle@dering and restaurant services segments in toer@mof $53.0 million and $14.4 million, respeetiv. Of the
total amount, $62.0 million is deductible for tanrposes. Identifiable intangibles include $5.1lioml in routes with a weighted average useful Gfe20 years, $20
million in permits with a weighted average usefig lof 20 years, and $0.1 million in n@ompete agreements with a useful life of five yeddsrring the fourt
quarter of fiscal 2008, approximately $15.9 milliof goodwill from the Transaction was impaired doethe loss of two raw material suppliers in onetlud
Company'’s reporting units. See Note 6 for furtiléormation on goodwill impairment.

NOTE 3. INVENTORIES

A summary of inventories follows (in thousands):

January 3, December 29,
2009 2007
Finished produc $ 19,38C $ 19,67¢
Supplies and other 2,80z 2,802
$ 22,182 $ 22,481
NOTE 4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN"
A summary of property, plant and equipment folldmsthousands):
January 3, December 29,
2009 2007
Land $ 17,82¢ $ 17,501
Buildings and improvemen 48,62:% 45,684
Machinery and equipmel 217,45C 205,37¢
Vehicles 54,65€ 54,482
Construction in process 16,042 4,79¢
354,597 327,842
Accumulated depreciation (211,306) (199,157%)
$ 143,291 $ 128,68E
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

NOTE 5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The gross carrying amount of intangible assetsesiltp amortization include (in thousands):

January 3, December 29,
2009 2007
Intangible Assets
Routes $ 60,00 $ 48,23
Permits 20,50( 20,50(
Non-compete agreemer 2,36¢ 2,36¢
Royalty and consulting agreements 38t 41
83,26: 71,51¢
Accumulated Amortizatior
Routes (42,037 (38,437
Permits (2,700 (2,67¢)
Non-compete agreemer (2,240 (2,059
Royalty and consulting agreements (309) (309
(47,28) (42,48))
Intangible assets, less
accumulated amortization $ 35,08: $ 29,03

Gross intangible routes increased in fiscal 200@fyroximately $11.8 million consisting of approsiraly $5.5 million from the API Transaction as dissed in Not
2 and approximately $6.3 million from other assafchases less retirements. Amortization expensthéothree years ended January 3, 2009, Decemdh@007 an

December 30, 2006, was approximately $5.2 millih9 million and $4.6 million, respectively. Amaition expense for the next five fiscal years timested to b
$3.5 million, $3.3 million, $3.0 million, $2.9 mitéin and $2.8 million.

NOTE GOODWILL
6.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill (in thands):

Restaurant
Renderinc Services Combinec Total
Balance at December 29, 20 $ 53,058 $ 15,25¢€ $ 3,54C $ 71,85€
Acquisition - 5,191 - 5,191
Impairment (13,864) (2,050) — (15,914)
Balance at January 3, 2009 $ 39,194 $ 18,399 $ 3,540 $ 61,133

Based on the Compars/'annual impairment testing at the end of the foguarter of fiscal 2008 it was determined thatdyeiti was impaired within a sing
reporting unit due to lower commodity markets ane lboss of raw material suppliers in the fourthrtgraof fiscal 2008, which resulted in the Compaegording a
impairment charge of approximately $15.9 milliorséd on future discounted net cash flows.

Certain of the Compang’rendering facilities are highly dependent on onéew suppliers. It is reasonably possible thextain of those suppliers could cease
operations or choose a competitor’s services wbithd have a significant impact on these facilities

The process of evaluating goodwill for impairmentalves the determination of the fair value of @@mpanys reporting units. In step one, the Company détesc
based on the discounted cash flows that one o€timpany’s reporting uni’ carrying value exceeded its fair value. In $tepthe Company is required to comg
the implied fair value of the reporting ursityoodwill and compare it against the actual cagyamount of goodwill for that reporting unit. $hvas determined in t
same manner that goodwill recognized in a businessbination is determined. That is the fair vadfiehe reporting unit was allocated to all of tneividual asse

and liabilities of the reporting unit including amtangible assets, as if the reporting unit haghbecquired in a business combination and the/&ire of the reportir
unit determined in the first step was the pricelgaiacquire the reporting unit.
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NOTE 7. ACCRUED EXPENSE¢

Accrued expenses consist of the following (in trends):

January 3, December 29,

2009 2007
Compensation and benef $ 18,83 $ 16,41
Utilities and sewage 5,29: 5,23(C
Accrued income, ad valorem, and franchise taxes 1,12( 2,271

Reserve for self insurance, litigation, environnaént

and tax matters (Note 17) 5,515 5,75(
Medical claims liability 4,982 3,29¢
Other accrued expense 14,034 16,612
$49,78( $49,57¢

NOTE 8. LEASES

The Company leases five plants and storage locatithree office locations and a portion of its #@ortation equipment under operating leases. lseast
noncancellable and expire at various times thrabghyear 2028. Minimum rental commitments undercameellable leases as of January 3, 2009, ardlaw$o(in

thousands):
Period Ending Fiscal Operating Lease

2009 $ 10,75¢
2010 8,88¢
2011 7,48:
2012 5,271
2013 3,11«
Thereafter 12,62:

Total $48,13(

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended Janu&90®, December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 &&sillion, $7.8 million and $6.2 million, respactly.

NOTE 9. DEBT
(@) Credit Agreemen

The Company entered into a $175 million credit egrent (the “Credit Agreement&ffective April 7, 2006. The Credit Agreement pres for a total of $175
million in financing facilities, consisting of a 88 million term loan facility and a $125.0 millieevolver facility, which includes a $35.0 millidetter of credit sub-
facility. As of January 3, 2009, the Company hasdwved all $50.0 million under the term loan fégilvhich provides for quarterly scheduled amottia payment
of $1.25 million over the siyear term ending April 7, 2012; at that point, teenaining balance of $22.5 million will be payabiefull. The revolving credit facilit
has a fiveyear term ending April 7, 2011. The proceeds efrvolving credit facility may be used for: (fjet payment of fees and expenses payable in coon
with the Credit Agreement, acquisitions and theayepent of indebtedness; (i) financing the workeapital needs of the Company; and (iii) other gaheorporat
purposes.
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The Credit Agreement allows for borrowings at penam rates based on the following loan types. rAlite base rate loans under the Credit Agreemdhbeai
interest at a rate per annum based on the grefata)y the prime rate and (b) the federal fundsdtie rate (as defined in the Credit Agreementsdll2 of 1% plus, i
each case, a margin determined by reference tiiaggrid and adjusted according to the Comparadjusted leverage ratio. Eurodollar loans wétubinterest at
rate per annum based on the then applicable LohrdenBank Offer Rate ("LIBOR") multiplied by the statuyoreserve rate plus a margin determined by referdt
a pricing grid and adjusted according to the Corgfmadjusted leverage ratio. At January 3, 2009 utigeCredit Agreement, the interest rate for $3#ition of
the term loan that was outstanding was based orORIBlus a margin of 1.0% per annum for a total &02% per annum. At January 3, 2009 there wel
outstanding borrowings under the Company’s revaglVacility.

On October 8, 2008, the Company entered into anndment (the “Amendment”yvith its lenders under its Credit Agreement. Thmehdment increases -
Companys flexibility to make investments in third parti€ursuant to the Amendment, the Company can madestiments in third parties provided that (i) noaas
under the Credit Agreement exists or would resutha time such investment is committed to be mégesertain specified defaults do not exist oruhbresult at th
time such investment is actually made, and (iii¢@giving pro forma effect to such investment, linerage ratio (as determined in accordance \lghtérms of th
Credit Agreement) is less than 2.00 to 1.00 forrttuest recent four fiscal quarter period then endedaddition, the Amendment increases the amotimtercompan
investments permitted among the Company and aitg efibsidiaries that are not parties to the Crégreement from $2.0 million to $10.0 million.

The Credit Agreement contains certain restrictie@enants that are customary for similar credit rgesments and requires the maintenance of certanmmir
financial ratios. The Credit Agreement also regsiithe Company to make certain mandatory prepagntdrmutstanding indebtedness using the net castepd
received from certain dispositions of property,uzdy or condemnation, any sale or issuance oftgedoterests in a public offering or in a privatagement
unpermitted additional indebtedness incurred byGbmpany, and excess cash flow under certain cistamses.

On April 7, 2006, the Company repaid the balancéherterm facility under its former senior credireement and incurred a write-off of deferred loasts of
approximately $1.5 million.

The Company'’s Credit Agreement consisted of thiefahg elements at January 3, 2009 and Decembe2®®, respectively (in thousands):

January 3, December 29,
2009 2007
Credit Agreement
Term Loan $ 37,500 $ 43,750
Revolving Credit Facility
Maximum availability $ 125,00 $ 125,00(
Borrowings outstandin - -
Letters of credit issued 16,424 18,881
Availability $ 108,57€ $ 106,119

The obligations under the Credit Agreement are anteed by Darling National and are secured by anliatly all of the property of the Company, indiugl a pledg
of all equity interests in Darling National. Asddnuary 3, 2009, the Company was in compliande alithe covenants contained in the Credit Agre@me
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Debt consists of the following (in thousands):

January 3, December 29,
2009 2007
Credit Agreement
Revolving Credit Facilit $ - $ -
Term Loan 37,50C 43,75(C
37,50C 43,75C
Less Current Maturities 5,00C 6,25(
$ 32,500 $ 37,500
Maturities of long-term debt at January 3, 200%fel(in thousands):
Contractual
Debt Paymen
2009 $ 5,000
2010 5,000
2011 5,000
2012 22,50C
__$37,500 _

As of January 3, 2009, current maturities of ddl#®0 million will be due during fiscal 2009, whidnclude scheduled principal payments of $1.23iomildue eac
quarter.

(b) Senior Subordinated Not
On December 31, 2003, the Company issued seniardimated notes in the principal amount of $35.0iom. On June 1, 2006, the Company retired thacs

subordinated notes using money available unde€Ctiedit Agreement and incurred charges of $1.92%anifor prepayment fees and approximately $1.liomlto
write off deferred loan costs.

NOTE 10.0THER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Other noncurrent liabilities consist of the follawi (in thousands’

January 3, December 2¢
2009 2007
Accrued pension liability (Note 13) $ 36,26: $ 9,16¢
Reserve for self insurance, litigation, ieommental and tax
matters (Note 17) 14,418 15,05:
Other 3,59: 3,00¢
$54,27: $27,22¢
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NOTE 11. INCOME TAXES

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardar@¢‘FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48&;counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxear-nterpretatiol
of FASB Statement No. 10%IN 48"), which prescribes accounting for anddasure of uncertain tax positions (“UTP"RIN 48 requires application of a more lik
than not threshold to the recognition andréeagnition of UTP. FIN 48 permits recognitiontbé amount of tax benefit that has a greater tiapescent likelihood ¢
being realized upon settlement. It furthequires that a change in judgment related to Xipected ultimate resolution of UTP be recognizedamings in the quar
of change. Effective December 31, 2006 the Compaiopted the provisions of FIN 48 resulting in duetion in the Compang’existing reserves for uncertain s
and federal income tax positions of approximateédyldmillion. This reduction was recorded as a clative effect adjustment to retained earnings.th&t adoptio
date of December 31, 2006, the Company had $0.lfomibf gross unrecognized tax benefits. If themPany recognized such tax benefits, the net impadhe
Companys effective tax rate would be $0.6 million, whicitludes the effect of the reversal of the $0.1liarlideferred tax asset. At January 3, 2009 anc:bée
29, 2007, the Company had $0.5 million, respecfivélgross unrecognized tax benefits; if recognijzbé net impact on the Compasyéffective tax rate would

$0.4 million, respectively, which includes the effef the reversal of $0.1 million in deferred tasset. Additionally, at December 31, 2006, the famy had a
accrual for interest and penalties of $0.1 millidrhe Company recognizes accrued interest and {Es)ahs appropriate, related to unrecognized &nefits as

component of income tax expense.

The following table shows a reconciliation of theange in the unrecognized tax benefit balancedderfal, state and foreign taxes (in thousands).

January 3, December
29,
2009 2007

Balance beginning of ye: $ 543 $ 689
Additions for tax positions related to the currgaar - -
Reductions for tax positions related to the curyesar - -
Additions for tax positions related to prior ye 35 41
Reductions for tax positions related to prior ye - (73)
Settlement: (8) (68)
Lapses in statutes of limitations (105) (46)
Balance end of year $ 465 $ 543

The Companys major taxing jurisdictions include the U.S. (fadeand state). The Company is no longer subjedederal examinations on years prior to fi
2005. The number of years open for state tax sudities, depending on the tax jurisdiction, bugémerally from three to five years. Currentlyyesal stat
examinations are in progress. The Company doeantiipate that any state or federal audits walé a significant impact on the Companyesults of operations
financial position. In addition, the Company doeg reasonably expect any significant changes eoeitimated amount of liability associated with @@mpanys
unrecognized tax positions in fiscal 2009.
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Income tax expense/(benefit) attributable to incdram continuing operations before income taxessiia of the following (in thousands):

January 3, December 29, December 30,
2009 2007 2006
Current:

Federal $ 29,193 $ 22,418 $ 4,29
State 5,152 3,301 52¢

Deferred:
Federal and State 1,009 3,780 (2,551)
$ 35,354 $29,499 $ 2,26¢

Income tax expense for the years ended Januar§®, December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 reliffrom the amount computed by applying the sbay
U.S. federal income tax rate to income from coritigwoperations before income taxes as a resuhiefdllowing (in thousands):

January 3, December 29, December 30,
2009 2007 2006
Computec“expecte” tax expens: $31,471 $ 26,261 $ 2,581
State income taxe 3,436 2,827 273
Section 199 deductic (1,257) (832) (143)
Non-deductible employee compensat 993 500 -
Tax credits (128) (49) (208)
Reversal of reserve for tax (29) (51) (272)
Other, net 858 843 35
$ 35,354 $ 29,499 $ 2,266

The tax effects of temporary differences that gige to significant portions of the deferred taseis and deferred tax liabilities at January 392@8d December 2
2007 are presented below (in thousands):

January 3, December 29,
2009 2007
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 2,52¢ $ 7,262
Loss contingency reserv 7,877 6,944
Employee benefit 2,484 2,843
Pension liability 17,39¢€ 4,535
Intangible assets amortization, including taxatdedill 1,684 -
Other 3,471 2,38¢
Total gross deferred tax ass 35,441 23,967
Less valuation allowance (220) (4,793)
Net deferred tax assets 35,221 19,174
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assets amortization, including taxaldedyvill - (3,016)
Property, plant and equipment deprecia (15,45¢) (11,15¢
Other (4,22€) (1,894)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (19,68¢€) (16,06¢)
$ 15,53¢ $ 3,10%
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At January 3, 2009, the Company had net operating tarryforwards for federal income tax purpodeapproximately $6.1 million expiring through 202The
availability of the net operating loss carryforwarid reduce future taxable income is subject tdouarlimitations. As a result of the change in evahip whicl
occurred pursuant to the May 2002 recapitalizatiatilization of the net operating loss carryforwarid limited to approximately $0.7 million per yefar the
remaining life of the net operating losses.

The net change in the total valuation allowance avdgcrease of approximately $4.6 million for tlearyended January 3, 2009 due to the expiratiorebbperatin
loss carryforwards. The Company has assessedt tisatore likely than not that it will generatefficient taxable income in future periods to realits deferre
income tax assets.

NOTE 12 STOCKHOLDERY¢ EQUITY AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On May 11, 2005, the shareholders approved the Z08d4. The 2004 Plan replaced both the 1994 Enegldylexible Stock Option Plan and the Nemploye
Directors Stock Option Plan and thus broadens trey @f equity alternatives available to the Compabtynder the 2004 Plan, the Company is allowedrémt stor
options, stock appreciation rights, non-vested rstricted stock (including performance stock)trieted stock units (including performance unitsther stockhase
awards, non-employee director awards, dividendvedeimts and cashased awards. There are up to 6,074,969 commaesshaailable under the 2004 Plan v
may be granted to any participant in any plan yesadefined in the 2004 Plan. Some of those shamesubject to outstanding awards as detailed entdbl
below. To the extent these outstanding awarddafeited or expire without exercise, the share be returned to and available for future grantsier the 20
Plan. The 2004 Plag’purpose is to attract, retain and motivate emgaeydirectors and third party service providerthefCompany and to encourage them to t
financial interest in the Company. The 2004 P&administered by the Compensation Committee @wrimittee”)of the Board of Directors. The Committee he
authority to select plan participants, grant awaedsl determine the terms and conditions of sucirdsvas defined in the 2004 Plan. The Compastdck optio
granted under the 2004 Plan generally terminatgehs after date of grant. At January 3, 2009ntivaber of equity awards available for issuanceeutite 2004 P!
was 3,381,632.

The following is a summary of stock-based compeosaranted during the years ended January 3, ZD&&mber 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006.

Nongqualified Stock Options On May 8, 2007, the Company granted 8,000 ndifgaeastock options in the aggregate to two remployee directors following the
initial election to the board by the stockholdeT$ie exercise price for the May 8, 2007 stock amiovas $8.03 per share (fair market value at giatg). Ol
February 27, 2008, the Company granted 20,000 radifigal stock options in the aggregate to the earployee directors. The exercise price for Felyr@ar, 200:
stock options was $13.55 per share (fair markeaievalt grant date). On May 6, 2008 following a rector’s initial election to the board by the stockholdéhs
Company granted 4,000 nonqualified stock optionth@most recent noemployee director. The exercise price for the Nay008 stock options was $16.20
share (fair market value at grant date). All af ttonemployee director stock options vest 25 percentrgirths after the grant date and 25 percent on efattte firs
three anniversary dates thereafter.

Incentive Stock OptionsFor fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 the Company didssue any incentive stock options.
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A summary of stock option activity as of Januarg@09 and changes during the year ended is presbatew.

Weighted-avg. Weighted-avg.
Number of exercise price remaining
shares per share contractual life
Options outstanding at December 29, 2007 1,320,705 3.06
Granted 24,00 13.99
Exercisec (548,500, 2.56
Forfeited - N/A
Expired — N/A
Options outstanding at January 3, 2009 796, 205 3.74 5.8 years
Options exercisable at January 3, 2009 757,705 3.48 5.7 years

The fair value of each stock option grant underGoepany’s stock option plan was estimated on #te df grant using the Black Scholes opticing model witt
the following weighted average assumptions anditefar fiscal 2008 and 2007. No options were ¢gdrduring fiscal 200€

Weighted Averag: 2008 2007
Expected dividend yiel 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interest rat 3.24% 4.57%
Expected tern 5.80 year: 5.75 year:
Expected volatility 42.0% 52.1%
Fair value of options grante $6.23 $4.30

The expected lives for options granted during 2808 2007 were computed using the simplified meti®grescribed by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107.

At January 3, 2009, $1.4 million of total futureuétg-based compensation expense (determined usa@lackScholes option pricing model) related to outstag
non-vested options and stock awards is expectbd tecognized over a weighted average period ofda8s.

For the year ended January 3, 2009 and Decemb@0R29, the amount of cash received from the exeri®ptions was approximately $0.3 million and5$illion,
respectively and the related tax benefits were @pprately $2.3 million and $1.2 million, respectiye For the years ended December 30, 2006 the atrafucasl
received from the exercise of options and the edlaax benefits were insignificant. The totalimdic value of options exercised for the years dntinuary 3, 200
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006 was appatedy $6.4 million, $2.5 million and $0.2 milliorespectively. The fair value of shares vestedteryear
ended January 3, 2009, December 29, 2007 and Dece38b 2006 was approximately $0.6 million, $0.6liori and $0.7 million, respectively. At January209

the aggregate intrinsic value of options outstagdirms approximately $2.0 million and the aggregatensic value of options exercisable was apprately $1.¢
million.

Non-Vested Stock Awards On March 3, 2008, the Company’s board of dinecgyanted 67,411 shares of stock under the Compaoryg term incentive awards.
the grant date 16,853 shares vested immediatelyrenetmaining stock awards vest over the nexethrsiversary dates of the grant in equal instaitme
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On November 19, 2004, subject to the approval ef 2804 Plan, the Company issued 477,200 vested stock awards to the Chief Executive Offiaed th
Executive Vice Presidents of Finance and Adminigira Operations, and Commodities. On May 11, 20@%n approval of the 2004 Plan these awards
authorized by the shareholders and made effectdlitionally, on June 16, 2005, the Company grdrt&,950 nonsested stock awards to the Executive
President of Sales and Services. These non-vesbe## awards contain vesting periods of four to ygars from date of issuance. The gear awards conts
accelerated vesting provisions based upon spedifidases in the Compasystock price. During the second quarter of 2@0&,Company recorded $1.9 million
unearned compensation for the market value of ltlages on the date of grant. The unearned compensatbeing amortized to expense over the estidnktese il
restrictions of 1.3 - 4 years. During fiscal 2aD@ accelerated vesting provisions on theysiar awards were met and those shares vestedndDiistal 2008 th
vesting provisions on the four-year awards were aneftthose shares vested.

A summary of the Company’s non-vested stock awasdsf January 3, 2009, and changes during theeyefed is as follows:

Weighted Average

Non-Vested Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Stock awards outstanding December 29, 2z 250,00( $ 3.9t
Shares grante 67,41 13.90
Shares veste (266,85)) 4.58
Shares forfeite: - -
Stock awards outstanding January 3, 2 50,55¢ $13.9¢C

Restricted Stock Awards.On March 9, 2006, the Company's Board of Direcegproved a NoEmployee Director Restricted Stock Award Plan (alssequentl
amended, the "Director Restricted Stock Plan") pams$ to and in accordance with the 2004 Plan irora attract and retain highly qualified persomsérve as non-
employee directors and to more closely align surgctbrs' interests with the interests of the shmitters of the Company by providing a portion afiticompensatic
in the form of Company common stock.

Under the Director Restricted Stock Plan, $20,006estricted Company common stock (the "Restri&extk") will be awarded to each nemployee director on tl
fourth business day after the Company releasesitsings for its prior completed fiscal year (tbate of Award"). The amount of restricted stocl&issued will b
calculated using the closing price of the Comparmgdmmon stock on the third business day aftelCitipany releases its earnings. The RestricteckStdtbe
subject to a right of repurchase at $0.01 per stypoa termination of the holder as a member ofGbmpany's board of directors for cause and willb®transferabl
These restrictions will lapse with respect to 100Rthe Restricted Stock upon the earliest to océ\i) ten years after the Date of Award, (ii) aaRige of Control (e
defined in the 2004 Plan), and (jii) terminationtlbé nonemployee director's service with the Company, othan for "cause" (as defined in the Director Retc
Stock Plan). On March 3, 2008 and March 11, 2@68,Company issued 7,190 and 1,509 shares ofatestrstock in the aggregate to its remployee directo
under the Director Restricted Stock Plan. On M&@h2007 and March 21, 2006, the Company issue2B20and 21,925 shares of restricted stock in tfuzemate
respectively, to its non-employee directors unterDirector Restricted Stock Plan.

A summary of the Company’s directors’ restrictenc&tawards as of January 3, 2009, and changesgdtinényear ended is as follows:
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Weighted Average

Restricted Grant Date

Shares Fair Value

Stock awards outstanding December 29, 2z 30,01¢ $5.33
Restricted shares grant 8,69¢ 13.79
Restricted shares where the restriction laj - N/A
Restricted shares forfeite - N/A
38,71« $7.23

Stock awards outstanding January 3, 2

Long-Term Incentive Opportunity Awards The Committee has adopted a Long-Term Incerféilan (the “LTIP”) for the Company’key employees, as a suby
under the terms of the 2004 Plan. The principappse of the LTIP is to encourage the Compargxecutives to enhance the value of the Compadytence, tr
price of the Company’s stock and the stockholdeesirn. In addition, the LTIP is designed to ceeagtention incentives for the individual and tmyde ai
opportunity for increased equity ownership by exe®s. The Committee awarded dollar value perforoeabased restricted stock opportunities undet e for
fiscal 2008 to certain of the Companyofficers, including the Chief Executive Officancathe Executive Vice Presidents of Finance and iAthtnation, Operation
Commodities and Sales and Services (the “2008 RestrStock Awards”).The restricted stock underlying the 2008 Restricdack Awards is issued only if
predetermined financial objective is met by the @any. The Company met the financial objectivefierzal 2008. Accordingly, in accordance with teents of th
2008 Restricted Stock Awards, it is anticipated tiha restricted stock will be granted and issuedhe executives on the fourth business day affierGompan
releases its annual financial results for fiscdd@0The amount of restricted stock to be issudbbei calculated using the closing price of the @amy’s commol
stock on the third business day after the Compafsases its annual financial results for fiscal®200hese awards vest in four equal installmentt) the firs
installment vesting immediately upon the grant daté the remaining three installments vesting emiixt three anniversary dates of the grahe award is treated
a liability until the grant date when the numbersbéres to be issued is known, and then it becemeiyclassified. At January 3, 2009 and December 207 2B¢
Company recorded a liability of approximately $fnillion and $0.9 million on the balance sheet for tong-term incentive opportunities.

NOTE 13 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has retirement and pension plans cayetibstantially all of its employees. As a comdhitio the Transaction, the Company was requirgadgide th
non-union employees of NBP with benefits that were caraple to those in effect for those employees endbsing date of the Transaction. Accordinglye
Company continued to maintain certain of the NBRéefe plans following the closing of the Transaationcluding the Darling National LLC Retirementv8ays
Plan, a defined contribution plan, and the DarlNagional LLC Pension Retirement Plan, a definedefieplan.

Under the transition rules of Code Section 410¢ffEcted plans in an acquisition are allowed tdrbated separately for discrimination coveragertggturposes un
the end of the plan year following the acquisitidfor the Transaction, the transition period lastedugh December 31, 2007. Therefore, followimg ¢completion ¢
the Transaction, the Company initiated a projectetiew its employee retirement benefit programshia context of comparable programs in the manufax
industry sector. As a result of this review, effee January 1, 2008, the Company announced assefiehanges to the benefits provided by its 408gdfinec
contribution plans and its defined benefit plans.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Darling National LE@nsion Retirement Plan was merged into the DQailernational Inc. Hourly EmployeeRetirement Plai
which plan was then amended and restated. Empddye® both plans are entitled to their accruecefieas of December 31, 2007 under their prior mlasign, plu
benefit accruals after January 1, 2008 using the benefit of $20 for each year of service with n@pcon service years with no effect on accumu
benefits. Previously, these hourly employees rehtaccruing $20-$30 per year of service, depermtiigcation of employment.
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Also effective January 1, 2008, the Darling Inteiorzal Inc. Salaried EmployeeRetirement Plan, a defined benefit plan, was amgnégfective January 1, 2008,
of the Companys eligible salaried employees participate in thapincluding all former Darling National salariethployees who did not have a defined benefit
prior to January 1, 2008. All eligible salaried @ayees are entitled to their accrued benefit aBetember 31, 2007, which accrued benefit is anuamequal t
1.8% times years of service (up to 25 years) tifimed average pay plus 0.5% for each additionaliseryear beyond 25 years, with a total service gap of 40 yea
with no effect on accumulated benefits. Effectdamuary 1, 2008, for service years earned goingdiat, the benefit accrual will be 0.25% times yeafrservice
times final average pay.

Also effective January 1, 2008, the Darling NatidnaC Retirement Savings Plan was amended andteskta, among other things, update the plan folEb@nomi
Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act and chatige name of the plan to the Darling Internatidnal Hourly 401(k) Savings Plan. Effective Januar®008, a
of the Companys hourly employees are eligible to participatehiis plan, which allows for elective deferrals, anpdoyer match equal to 100% of the first $10 pey
period deferred by a participant, with a maximun$620 per year, and an employer contribution etpu&b20 per year. Previously, certain of the Conypahourly
employees were only given the opportunity to magfertals. The $520 employer contribution will baew contribution for all participating hourly emgkes. Thi
plan accepted the transfer of assets and lialsildfehe hourly employees that had account balaimctee Darling International Inc. 401(k) SavindarPwhich existe
prior to January 1, 2008. The Compangiatching portion to the Darling International.lftourly 401(k) Savings plan for fiscal 2008 wagapimately $0.6 millior

Effective January 1, 2008, the Darling Internatiomec. 401(k) Savings Plan, a defined contributigian, was amended and restated and became thend
International Inc. Salaried 401(k) Savings Plan aod includes all eligible salaried employees. sTplian received the assets and liabilities of pigdting salarie
employees under the Darling National LLC Retiren@atings Plan. Effective January 1, 2008, theibgihternational Inc. Salaried 401(k) Savings Riaiudes a
employer contribution based on age (ranging froBP2-of compensation per year), and will continuaffow for employee deferrals. Previously, only tarling
National employees received an employer match, lwivas equal to 100% of the first $10 per pay pedeferred by a participant, with a maximum of $520 yeal
The Company’s matching portion to the Darling Intgional Inc. Salaried 401(k) Savings Plan fordls2008 was approximately $1.4 million. The Compamatcl
in fiscal 2007 for the previous Darling Nationahplwas approximately $0.2 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS H@ployers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiord ©ther Post-Retirement Plansan Amendment of FA!
Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(®FAS 158"), which requires that the Company recognize the éweded or under-funded status of the Compargfine:
benefit post-retirement plans as an asset or il the Companys balance sheet, with changes in the funded stategnized through comprehensive income ii
year in which they occur. Based on the fundedustaf the Company’s pension plans as of Decembeg2@6, the adoption of SFAS 158 increased the Goryip
total assets, as a result of deferred tax assgtapproximately $2.2 million, increased total liiies by approximately $6.7 million and reducedatostockholders
equity by approximately $4.5 million, net of taxeBhe adoption of the funded status portion of SAAS8 did not affect the Company’s results of operat

In addition, SFAS 158 requires that companies uaingeasurement date other than the fiscal yeaclesudge to a fiscal year end measurement date igéfdor year
ending after December 15, 2008. The Company addphtemeasurement date provision in 2008 the impfachich was not material.
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The following table sets forth the plans’ fundedtss and amounts recognized in the Compaoghsolidated balance sheets based on the measrdate (Janua
3, 2009 and October 1, 2007) (in thousands):

January 3, December 29,
2009 2007
Change in projected benefit obligatic
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of pet $90,74: $ 88,71¢
Service cos 1,32¢ 2,328
Interest cos 6,773 5,011
Actuarial loss/(gain 2,52¢ (1,822)
Benefits paic (4,990) (3,570)
Other 157 76
Projected benefit obligation at efigg@riod 96,53¢ 90,742
Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of pe 81,57¢ 69,898
Post measurement date contributi - 123
Actual return on plan asse (22,857 8,941
Employer contributior 6,54% 6,186
Benefits paid (4,990 (3,570)
Fair value of plan assets at endeoiogl 60,27¢ 81,578
Funded statu (36,269) (9,164)
Post-measurement date contributions — —
Net amount recognized $ (36,267 $ (9,164)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets consist ¢
Non-current liability $ (36,267 $ (9,164)
Net amount recognized $ (36,267 $ (9,164)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive loss consist
Net actuarial los $ 44,27 $ 11,107
Prior service cost 50: 499
Net amount recognized (a) $44,78C $11,606

(a) Amounts do not include deferred taxes of $17.0iamland $4.2 million at January 3, 2009 and Decer@Be2007, respectivel

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defirmhefit pension plans was $90.1 million and $84illan at January 3, 2009 and December 29, 2007,
respectively.

January 3, December 29,
2009 2007
Projected benefit obligatic $96,53¢ $90,742
Accumulated benefit obligatic 90,143 83,953
Fair value of plan asse 60,276 81,578
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Net pension cost includes the following componéimshousands):

January 3, December 29, December 30,
2009 2007 2006
Service cos $1,067 $2,328 $ 2,429
Interest cos 5,442 5,011 4,673
Expected return on plan assets (6,603) (5,636) (5,192)
Net amortization and deferral 472 1,269 1,792
Net pension cost $ 378 $2,972 $3,702
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekienscome (loss) for the year ended (in thousands):
2008 2007
Actuarial gains recognize:
Reclassification adjustmer $ 213 $ 705
Actuarial (loss)/gain recognized during
the period (20,578) 3,139
SFAS 158 measurement date adjustr 52 -
Prior service (cost) credit recognize
Reclassification adjustmer 75 72
Prior service cost arising during the pel (96) (46)
SFAS 158 measurement date adjustment 19 —
$(20,315) $3,870

The estimated amount that will be amortized froruaculated other comprehensive loss into net peripdnsion cost in fiscal 2009 is as follows (inubands):

2009
Net actuarial los $4,178
Prior service cost 143
$4,321

Weighted average assumptions used to determindibelkégations were:

January 3, December 29, December 30,
2009 2007 2006
Discount rate 6.10% 6.00% 5.75%
Rate of compensation incree 4.08% 4.10% 4.08%

Weighted average assumptions used to determingeniedic benefit cost for the employee benefit pemplans were:

January 3, December 29, December 30,
2009 2007 2006
Discount rate 6.00% 5.75% 5.50%
Rate of increase in future compensation le 4.10% 4.08% 4.32%
Expected lon-term rate of return on asst 8.10% 8.25% 8.38%
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Consideration was made to the long-term time horipo the plans’ benefit obligations as well as thiated asset class mix in determining the expelotegterm rate
of return. Historical returns are also considereder the longerm time horizon, in determining the expected nmetuConsidering the overall asset mix
approximately 60% equity and 40% fixed income, salvgears in the last ten years (except for 20@8)itg strong double digit returns as well as sdwggars o
single digit losses, the Company believes it iso@able to expect a long-term rate of return 00% Tor the plans’ investments as a whole.

Plan Assets

The Company’s pension plan weighted-average aliseations at January 3, 2009 and December 29, A9p@dsset category, are as follows:

Plan Assets ¢

January 3, December 29,
Asset Categor 2009 2007
Equity Securities 55.6% 60.9%
Debt Securitie: 44.2% 39.1%
Other 0.2% - %
Total 100.0% 100.0%

The investment objectives have been establishecbimjunction with a comprehensive review of the entrand projected financial requirements. The anj
investment objectives are: 1) to have the abibitpay all benefit and expense obligations when @uéo maximize investment returns within reasdeamnd prude!
levels of risk in order to minimize contributioremd 3) to maintain flexibility in determining thetéire level of contributions.

Investment results are the most critical elememtcimeving funding objectives, while reliance omtributions is a secondary element.

The investment guidelines are based upon an inweegthorizon of greater than ten years; therefoterim fluctuations are viewed with this perspeetivihe strateg
asset allocation is based on this long-term petsgecHowever, because the participandverage age is somewhat older than the typicalageeplan ag
consideration is given to retaining some shertn liquidity. Analysis of the cash flow projeatis of the plans indicates that benefit paymenliscontinue to excee
contributions. The results of a thorough assdiillig study completed during 2008 reinforced thgpsopriateness of the Compasytarget asset allocation ran
described herein.

Based upon the plans’ time horizon, risk tolerappesformance expectations, asset class constiactgsseliability study results, target asset allocationges ar
as follows:

Fixed Income 35%- 45%
Domestic Equitie! 45%- 55%
International Equitie 7% - 13%

The fixed income asset allocation may be investedorporate and government bonds denominated in dhfars, private and publicly traded mortgageasyagte
placement debt, and cash equivalents. The avenageity of the asset class will not exceed terrgiedhe portfolio is expected to be well diveesifi
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The domestic equity allocation is invested in stotrded on one of the U.S. stock exchanges. Beswonvertible into such stocks, convertible d®mand preferre
stock, may also be purchased. The majority ofdibmestic equities are invested in large, mid, andliscap index accounts that are well diversifiélese inde
accounts utilize the Standard & Poor’s (“S&PBQ0, S&P 400 and S&P 600, respectively. By dabinitsmall cap investments carry greater risk,&dsib are expect
to create greater returns over time. The plargetapproximately 7.5% of the total asset mix t@kiwap. American Depository Receipts (“ADR’stiay not accoul
for more than 3% of the holdings. Small comparmyckss may not exceed 15% of the plaassets. Small company definitions fluctuate withrket levels, bt
generally will be considered companies with madagtitalizations less than $1.5 billion. The pditfawill be diversified in terms of individual conapy securitie
and industries.

The international equity allocation is investedcompanies whose stock is traded outside the U@oarompanies that conduct the major portion efrtbusines
outside of the U.S. The portfolio may invest in RB. The emerging market portion of the internati@tpiity investment is held below 20% due to greatdatility
in the asset class. The portfolio is expectedetdikersified in terms of companies, industries eodntries.

All investment objectives are expected to be agdeaver a market cycle anticipated to be a perfdive to seven years. Reallocations are perforiaea minimur
of twice a year to retain target asset allocatanges.

Contributions

The Company's funding policy for employee benedihgion plans is to contribute annually not less ttiee minimum amount required nor more than theimasn
amount that can be deducted for federal incometegoses. Contributions are intended to provideonty for benefits attributed to service to datg &lso for thos

expected to be earned in the future.

Based on current actuarial estimates, the Compgpgogs to make payments of less than $0.1 milloméet funding requirements for its pension planfiscal 2009

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect exigecfuture service, as appropriate, are expectée fwaid (in thousands):

Year Endinc Pension Benefit
2009 $ 4,000
2010 3,97C
2011 4,120
2012 4,260
2013 4,440
Years 201+ 2018 26,700

The Company participates in several meltiployer pension plans which provide defined besédi certain employees covered by labor contratlese plans are r
administered by the Company and contributions a&terchined in accordance with provisions of negetldabor contracts. Current information with retpe the
Company's proportionate share of the over-and uhdeted status of all actuarially computed valueve$ted benefits over these pension plamet’ assets is n
available. The Company’portion of contributions to these plans amourte®2.8 million, $2.6 million and $2.0 million fahe years ended January 3, 2(
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2006, resphrctive
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In August 2006 the Pension Protection Act of 2008PA") was signed into law and went into effect in Janu2098. The stated goal of the PPA is to improwe
funding of pension plans. Plans in an unfierded status will be required to increase emplogentributions to improve the funding level withirPA
timelines. Should a mulémployer plan elect to terminate rather than ineeegontributions, the Company will record a lidiilior its cost of the plan terminati
when such liability becomes probable and estimaBlee multiemployer plan in which the Company participates ga®n notification of a mass withdrav
termination for the plan year ended June 30, 2007April 2008 the Company made a lump sum settl@rpayment to the one mukimployer plan that terminated
approximately $1.4 million, which included a reledsr any future liability. Another of the undenfiled multiemployer plans in which the Company participates
given notification of “Critical Status” under thd®R. Based upon the Company’s initial review andveasations with other participating employerstirs t‘Critical
Status”plan, it appears probable that there will be a médsdrawal termination of this plan. As a restiite Company accrued approximately $3.2 millionelasr
the most recent information that is probable artdmedble for this plan. While the Company has nditghto calculate a possible current liability fanderfundec
multi-employer plans that could terminate or colduire additional funding under the PPA, the ant®eould be material.

NOTE 14 DERIVATIVES

On May 19, 2006, the Company entered into two @serate swap agreements that are considered loashddges according to SFAS 133. Under the tarhtkes:
swap agreements, beginning June 30, 2006, thefleas from the Company’s $50.0 million floating-eaterm loan facility under the Compasycredit agreeme
have been exchanged for fixeste contracts that bear interest, payable quwrtdthe first swap agreement for $25.0 million nmaguApril 7, 2012 and bears intel
at 5.42%, which does not include the borrowing agrper the Company’'credit agreement, with amortizing payments thiatamthe term loan facility. The secc
swap agreement for $25.0 million matures April D12 and bears interest at 5.415%, which does redtide the borrowing spread per the Compangredi
agreement, with amortizing payments that mirror téren loan facility. The Company’s receive rate eath swap agreement is based on thmesth LIBOR. A
January 3, 2009, the fair value of these intenesipsagreements was $3.6 million and is includedoncurrent other liabilities on the consolidated baksheet, wit
the offset recorded to accumulated other compreébetsss for the effective portion and other exgefes the ineffective portion of the interest rateap.

A summary of the derivative adjustment recorded¢oumulated other comprehensive income, the netgeharising from hedging transactions, and the ants
recognized in earnings during the years ended 3a342009 and December 29, 2007 are as followthnsands):

2008 2007

Derivative adjustment included in accumulated other

comprehensive loss at January 3, 2009 and Desed®, 2007 $1,143 $ 408
Net change arising from current period

hedging transactions 1,714 781
Reclassifications into earnings (777 (46)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss at

January 3, 2009 and December 29, 200 $2,080 $1,143

(a) Reported as accumulated other comprehensive lagsppbximately $3.4 million and $1.9 million recertnet of taxes of
approximately $1.3 million and $0.7 million at Janyi3, 2009 and December 29, 2007, respecti
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2008 2007
Loss to interest expense related to interest radp Settlement $ 777 $ 46
Loss to other expenses related to net change @ficim
current interest rate swap transactions (ineffegbiortion) 195 _
Total reclassification into earnings $ 972 $ 46

The Company estimates the amount that will be ssdiad from accumulated other comprehensive lds3aauary 3, 2009 into earnings in fiscal 2009 \wd
approximately $1.5 million.

At January 3, 2009, the Company has forward puelageements in place for purchases of approxisgn&tt8.3 million of natural gas and diesel fuel fizcal
2009. These forward purchase agreements have treetieement provisions and the Company intendske physical delivery. Accordingly, the forwardrphas:
agreements are not subject to the requirementsAS3.33 because they qualify as normal purchasdsfased in the standard.

NOTE 15. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement ain€ial Accounting Standards No. 157air Value Measurement§SFAS 157”), which defines fair valu
establishes a framework for measuring fair valugd axpands disclosures about fair value measuramditite provisions of SFAS 157 are effective aghe
beginning of fiscal year 2008. In February 200% FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 157which deferred the effective date for certaimtipos o
SFAS 157 related to nonrecurring measurements ofimancial assets and liabilities. That provisidnS&-AS 157 will be effective for the Compasyfiscal yee
2009. The adoption of SFAS 157 did not have a ristienpact on the Company’s fair value measurement

The following table presents the Companfihancial instruments that are measured at falineson a recurring basis as of January 3, 200%emdategorized usi
the fair value hierarchy under SFAS 157. TheWalue hierarchy has three levels based on thebiltlyaof the inputs used to determine the fairual

Fair Value Measurements at January 3, 2009 L

Quoted Prices i Significant Othel Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Asset: Inputs Inputs
(In thousands of dollare Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Derivative liabilities $ 3,593 $ — $ 3,593 $ —
Total $ 3,593 $ — $ 3,593 $ —

Derivative liabilities consist of the Compasyinterest rate swap contracts, which represenprthgent value of yield curves observable at contynguoted interval
for similar assets and liabilities in active magkebnsidering the instrument’s term, notional antpdiscount rate and credit risk.
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NOTE 16. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISk

Concentration of credit risk is limited due to Bempanys diversified customer base and the fact that tmagainy sells commodities. No single customer actsx
for more than 10% of the Company’s net sales irefigears 2008, 2007 and 2006.

NOTE 17. CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to several lawsuits, claamd loss contingencies arising in the ordinary sewf its business, including assertions by centegulaton
agencies related to air, wastewater, and stormrwig&eharges from the Company’s processing faediti

The Company’s workers’ compensation, auto and géribility policies contain significant deductdd or selfinsured retentions. The Company estimates
accrues its expected ultimate claim costs relateglctidents occurring during each fiscal year aamies this accrual as a reserve until such clamspaid by th
Company.

As a result of the matters discussed above, thepaoynhas established loss reserves for insuramegroemental and litigation matters. At January2809 an:
December 29, 2007, the reserves for insurancerammiental and litigation contingencies reflectedtib@ balance sheet in accrued expenses and othesune@n
liabilities for which there are no potential insnca recoveries were approximately $17.3 million &id.1 million, respectively. Management of then@an
believes these reserves for contingencies aremahboand sufficient based upon present governmegalations and information currently availabdenhanagemer
however, there can be no assurance that final celstied to these matters will not exceed curretitmates. The Company believes that the likelihisogemote the
any additional liability from such lawsuits andiaia that may not be covered by insurance would laaveterial effect on the financial statements.

The Company has been named as a third party defeirda lawsuit pending in the Superior Court ofWN&ersey, Essex County, stylBeew Jersey Department
Environmental Protection, The Commissioner of tr@vNersey Department of Environmental Protectiorrdy and the Administrator of the New Jersey
Compensation Fund, as Plaintiffs, vs. Occidentak@ltal Corporation, Tierra Solutions, Inc., MaxusieEgy Corporation, Repsol YPF, S.A., YPF, S.A,,
Holdings, Inc., and CLH Holdings, as Defendafi®cket No. L-009868-05) (the “Tierra/Maxus Litigat”). In the Tierra/Maxus Litigation, which was filed
December 13, 2005, the plaintiffs seek to recov@mfthe defendants past and future cleanup andva&ncosts, as well as unspecified economic damagnestive
damages, penalties and a variety of other formeladf, purportedly arising from the alleged disaes into the Passaic River of a particular typédiokin and othe
unspecified hazardous substances. The damageg deight by the plaintiffs from the defendants kkely to be substantial. On February 4, 2009, twfothe
defendants, Tierra Solutions, Inc. (“Tierra”) andvhds Energy Corporation (“Maxusfjled a third party complaint against over 300 &esi, including the Compar
seeking to recover all or a proportionate sharelednup and removal costs, damages or other losaror, if any for which Tierra or Maxus may be hiddble in the
Tierra/Maxus Litigation. Tierra and Maxus alledget Standard Tallow Company, an entity that the Gamy acquired in 1996, contributed to the discharfgthe
hazardous substances that are the subject of #isis while operating a former plant site locatedNewark, New Jersey. The Company is investigatimese
allegations and intends to defend itself vigoroughg of the date of this report, there is nothiihgt leads the Company to believe that this mattithave a materi
effect on the Company’s financial position or réswaf operation.
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In July 2007, a judgment was entered in a litigatioatter involving a contract dispute in which thempany was a party. The judgment required the faom tc
convey an unused parcel of property recorded orbtieks for approximately $500,000 to the countdypéor that amount. In December 2007, a judgmeat
entered in the matter awarding the counterpartyapmately $2.6 million in attorneysees and costs. The Company filed appeals of jodigments. The Compa
settled this matter during the first quarter otéis2008. Pursuant to the terms of the settlemtbet,Company transferred the property to the copatéy for ¢
purchase price of $500,000, paid the counterpapfyraximately $2.2 million towards attorneyfes and costs and agreed to dismiss its pendipgads witl
prejudice. In addition, the parties exchanged mluteleases. The Company recorded a charge ofrfiili@n for the attorneysfees and costs in the fourth quarte
2007, which is included in selling, general and adstrative expenses.

In June 2006, the Company was awarded damagepahamately $7.4 million as a result of a servicevider’s failure to provide steam under a service agreeto
one of the Companyg’ plants. At the time the damages were awarddtgctibility of such damages was uncertain; howewserOctober 12, 2006, the Comp.
entered into an agreement to sell its rights tdslamages to a third party for $2.2 million in ca3ie agreement was made subject to certain gonditvhich wer
satisfied on March 1, 2007. On March 8, 2007,Gleenpany received $2.2 million and transferred @mege award to the third party. The Company resbedgai
with the receipt of the $2.2 million in proceedstie first quarter of 2007.

BUSINESS SEGMENT!

The Company sells its products domestically andrirgtionally and operates within two industry segtee Rendering and Restaurant Services. The mea
segment profit (loss) includes all revenues, ojegagxpenses (excluding certain amortization cdnigibles), and selling, general and administragixgenses incur
at all operating locations and excludes generglaaite expenses.

Included in corporate activities are general coggwrexpenses and the amortization of intangiblesefs of corporate activities include cash, unatkd prepe
expenses, deferred tax assets, prepaid pensiormecellaneous other assets. The acquisition b$tantially all of the assets of NBP are reflegpeitharily in tr
Rendering segment.

Rendering
Rendering consists of the collection and processingnimal byproducts, including hides, from butcher shops, grgctores, food service industry and meat
poultry processors, converting these principaltp inseable oils and proteins utilized by the adtiral, leather and oleo-chemical industries.

Restaurant Services

Restaurant Services consists of the collections&fducooking oils from food service establishmemis eecycling them into similar products such ashkégerg
animal feed ingredients and industrial oils. Restat Services also provides grease trap servidimguded in restaurant services is the Natioredvise Cente
(“NSC"). The NSC schedules services such as fdtlmme and used cooking oil collection as wellrap tleaning for contracted customers using the gzmy’s
resources or third party providers.

Included in corporate activities are geheoaporate expenses and the amortization of inkdeg related to “Fresh Start Reporting.”
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Business Segment Net Revengesthousands):

Year Endec
January 3, December 29, December 30,
2009 2007 2006
Rendering
Trade $585,10¢ $464,468 $279,011
Intersegment 50,832 42,095 29,194
635,94( 506,563 308,205
Restaurant Service
Trade 222,384 180,845 127,979
Intersegment 10,11¢ 5,311 3,111
232,502z 186,156 131,090
Eliminations (60,95() (47,406) (32,305)
Total $807,492 $645,313 $ 406,990
Business Segment ProfifLoss) (in thousands):
Year Endec
January 3, December 29, December 30,
2009 2007 2006
Rendering $101,43! $ 85,65: $ 33,17
Restaurant services 29,89¢ 34,95 14,78¢
Corporate activitie (73,759 (70,029 (35,679
Interest expense (3,019 (5,04%) (7,184
Net income $ 54,56 $45,53¢ $ 5,107

Certain assets are not attributable to a singleadipg segment but instead relate to multiple ojieyesegments operating out of individual locatioihese assets i
utilized by both the Rendering and Restaurant 8esvbusiness segments and are identified in tleg@at Combined Rendering/Restaurant Services. dagion o
Combined Rendering/Restaurant Services assets lizatdd based upon an estimate of the percentageonfesponding activity attributed to ei
segment. Additionally, although intangible assetsallocated to operating segments, the amoudizaélated to the adoption of “Fresh Start Repgftin 1993 is nc
considered in the measure of operating segmenit/fiads) and is included in Corporate Activities.

As discussed in Note 17, the Company received pdxef $2.2 million during the first quarter ofd@d 2007 as a result of a service providdédilure to provide stes
under a service agreement to one of the Compapignts. The Company recorded approximately #iilllon of the proceeds as a reduction of costalés in th:
Company'’s rendering segment and approximately §illbn as a reduction of selling and general adohmistrative costs in the corporate segment.

Business Segment Asséiis thousands):

January 3, December 29,

2009 2007
Rendering $ 155,311 $ 162,09
Restaurant Service 46,71¢ 40,51¢
Combined Rendering/Restaurant Serv 99,857 106,95¢
Corporate Activities 92,48. 41,77:
Total $ 394,37 $ 351,33¢
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Business Segment ProperBjant and Equipmeiin thousands):

January 3, December 2¢ December 30,
2009 2007 2006
Depreciation and amortizatio
Rendering $ 14,271 $ 13,50¢ $ 11,38
Restaurant Service 4,31( 3,881 3,84¢
Corporate Activities 5,85 5,824 5,45¢
Total $24,43: $ 23,21 $ 20,68t
Capital expenditures:
Rendering $ 11,72 $ 2,88l $ 1,42
Restaurant Service 61C 53¢ 254
Combined Rendering/Restaurant Servi 15,77¢ 10,60¢ 8,644
Corporate Activities 2,897 1,52t 1,481
Total (a) $ 31, 00€ $ 15,552 $ 11,800

(a) Excludes the capital assets acquired as part aideisition of substantially all of the asset®\&f Recycling and NBP of
approximately $3.4 million and $51.9 million inde 2008 and fiscal 2006, respective

The Company has no material foreign operationsekports a portion of its products to customergarious foreign countries.

Geographic Area Net Trade Revengiesthousands):

January 3, December 2¢ December 30,
2009 2007 2006
Domestic $ 675,25 $ 473,69 $ 294,30:
Foreign 132,23! 171,61 112,68¢
Total $ 807,49. $ 645,31 $ 406,99(

The Company attributes revenues from external ocusts to individual foreign countries based on tkstithation of the Company’'shipments. For fiscal 2008, 2(
and 2006, no individual foreign country comprisedrenthan 5% of the Company’s consolidated revenue.
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NOTE 19.QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED AND IN THOUSAND S EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Year Ended January 3, 20

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter (a)
Net sales $ 201,95 $ 220,85! $ 236,22 $ 148,451
Operating income/(los 35,167 39,73t 37,31 (19,538
Income/(loss) from operations
before income taxes 34,48¢ 39,09: 36,69t (20,361
Net income/(loss 21,46 24,07¢ 22,994 (13,972
Basic earnings per she 0.2¢ 0.3C 0.2¢ (0.17
Diluted earnings per sha 0.2¢ 0.2¢ 0.2¢ (0.17
Year Ended December 29, 20
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quartet
Net sales $ 138,61 $ 159,42! $171,83. $ 175,44
Operating incomi 17,04 17,41( 21,01( 25,18¢
Income from operations
before income taxes 14,98: 15,98: 19,73¢ 24,33(
Net income 9,58( 9,48 12,10( 14,37:
Basic earnings per she 0.12 0.12 0.1t 0.1¢
Diluted earnings per sha 0.12 0.12 0.1t 0.1¢

(a) Included in operating loss in the fourth quartefis¢al 2008 is a charge for goodwill impairmentapiproximately $15.9 million and an estime
accrued liability of approximately $3.2 million e&d to a multemployer pension plan where the Company is seetimgass withdraw
termination. In addition, the fourth quarter ofdal 2008 includes an additional week of operattbas did not have a material impact on resi

NOTE 20NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT?

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of réii@h Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 19%e Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal
Liabilities (“SFAS 159”), which allows entities to choose to measure findringtruments and certain other items at fair vallibis statement is effective for fis
years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Compas adopted SFAS 159 and has elected not taiacfar any additional financial instruments anHestitem:
at fair value.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R)Business Combinations{“SFAS 141(R)"), which is a revision of SFAS 141, Busines
Combinations” SFAS 141(R) applies to all transactions and otlients in which one entity obtains control over onenore other businesses. SFAS 141(R) rec
an acquirer, upon initially obtaining control ofaiher entity, to recognize the assets, liabilia@sl any norcontrolling interest in the acquiree at fair valae of thi
acquisition date. Contingent consideration is nexglito be recognized and measured at fair valuthenlate of acquisition rather than at a latee edten the amou
of that consideration may be determinable beyorehaonable doubt. This fair value approach repl#ive costllocation process required under SFAS 141 whe
the cost of an acquisition was allocated to théviddal assets acquired and liabilities assumeadas their estimated fair value. SFAS 141(R) meguacquirers |
expense acquisition related costs as incurred réitl@ allocating these costs to assets acquirddiailities assumed, as was done under SFAS T4&. provision
of SFAS 141(R) are effective for fiscal years begig after December 15, 2008. Early adoption ispewmitted. The Company is currently evaluating impact c
adopting this accounting standard.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 168phcontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financitatements, an Amendment of ARB 5tSFAS 160"). SFAS
160 amends ARB 51 to establish new standards tilagavern the accounting for and reporting of Igncontrolling interests in partially owned condatiec
subsidiaries and (2) the loss of control of sulasids. The provisions of SFAS 160 are effectivefase beginning of the Comparsy2009 fiscal year on a prospec
basis. The Company is currently evaluating theaichpf adopting this accounting standard.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 16DiSclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedgkctivities, an amendment of FASB Statement N8
" (“SFAS 161"). This statement is intended to irpe transparency in financial reporting by req@grenhanced disclosures of an enstgerivative instruments a
hedging activities and their effects on the engitfihancial position, financial performance, andfcdlows. SFAS 161 applies to all derivative instents within th
scope of SFAS 133 as well as related hedged itbifuscated derivatives, and nonderivative instruteehat are designated and qualify as hedgingunsgnts. Th
fair value of derivative instruments and their gaamd losses will need to be presented in tabolandt in order to present a more complete pictéirh@ effects ¢
using derivative instruments. SFAS 161 is effextfor financial statements issued for fiscal yelbeginning after November 15, 2008, with early aggtlor
permitted. The Company is currently evaluatingithpact of adopting this accounting standard.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 16Phe Hierarchy of Generally Accepted AccountingriRiples” (“SFAS 162"). The purpose of the new standard i

provide a consistent framework for determining whatounting principles should be used when prepadrS. generally accepted accounting principle rfaial

statements. Previous guidance did not properly thekaccounting literature. The new standard isatiffe 60 days following the SE€'approval of the Pub

Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments toS&dtion 411The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity Withr@eally Accepted Accounting Principl
The adoption of SFAS 162 is not expected to feameaterial effect on the Company’s financial staets.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Posifio. FAS 157-3; Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset Wtbke Market for That Asset Is I
Active.” This staff position clarifies the application of &5 157 in determining the fair values of assetiatnilities in a market that is not active. Thiaf§ positior
became effective upon issuance, including prioiogier for which financial statements have not bessued. The Company has adopted this staff positiothe
consolidated financial statements contained withis Form 10K. The adoption of this staff position did not lkkaan impact to the consolidated financial statemet
the Company.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff RosiFSP) FAS 132(R)-1:Employers’ Disclosures about Postretirement Benéfian Assets.” This FSF
amends SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003), “EmployerstBsures about Pensions and Other PostretirememdfiBg” to provide guidance on an emplogedisclosure
about plan assets of a defined benefit pensiorttar @ostretirement plan on investment policies stnategies, major categories of plan assets, $ngadl valuatio
techniques used to measure the fair value of pdaata and significant concentrations of risk withiian assets. The disclosures about plan assetseddy this FS
shall be effective for fiscal years ending aftecBrmber 15, 2009, with earlier application permitidgdon initial application, the provisions of tlHSP are not requir:
for earlier periods that are presented for compargturposes. The Company is currently evaluatiegdisclosure requirements impact of adoptingrieis FSP.

NOTE 21.SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On February 23, 2009, the Company acquiredtanbially all of the assets of Boca Industries, leeadquartered in Smyrna, Georgia for approxilp&e2.5

million.
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DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

SCHEDULE Il

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(In thousands)

Balance at Additions Charged tc Balance at
Beginning Costs and End of
Description of Period Expense: Other (a) Deductions (b Period
Reserve for bad debi
Year ended January 3, 2009 $ 1,46€ $ 1,50€ $ - $ 659 $ 2,31z
Year ended December 29, 2007 $ 1,63¢ $ 407 $ - $ 580 $ 1,46€
Year ended December 30, 2006 $ 72¢ $ 874 $ 59€ $ 55¢ $ 1,63¢
Deferred tax valuation allowanc
Year ended January 3, 2009 $ 4,793 $ - $ — $ 4,573 $ 22C
Year ended December 29, 2007 $ 9,416 $ - $ - $ 4,623 $ 4,792
Year ended December 30, 2006 $ 19,08€ $ - $ - $ 9,670 $ 9,41¢€

(a) Includes amounts acquired as part of the NBP aitiquis

(b) Deductions consist of write-offs of uncollectiblecaunts receivable and reductions of the defeardaluation allowance. In 2006, the reductions
in the deferred tax valuation allowance were offgginst deferred tax assets and/or goodwill, tiesuin no deferred tax benef
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PART Il

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Proced:s.

As required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b), the gamy’s management, including the Chief Executive Offimed Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evatua
as of the end of the period covered by this repdrthe effectiveness of the design and operatioth@ Companys disclosure controls and procedures. As defindgxchang
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 18d(e) under the Exchange Act, disclosure contnots @ocedures are controls and other procedurdseaCompany that are designed to ensure
information required to be disclosed by the Compenghe reports it files or submits under the Exade Act is recorded, processed, summarized andtezghavithin the tim
periods specified in the SE€trules and forms. Disclosure controls and proeeglinclude, without limitation, controls and prdoees designed to ensure that informe
required to be disclosed by the Company in thentspbfiles or submits under the Exchange Actdsuanulated and communicated to the Compsinyanagement, including |
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officais appropriate to allow timely decisions regagdiquired disclosure.

Based on management’s evaluation, the Chief Exex@ifficer and Chief Financial Officer concludedtithe Company disclosure controls and procedures \
effective as of the end of the period covered ly itbport.

Internal Control over Financial Reportir.

(a) Management 's Annual Report on Internal Controley Financial Reporting . Management of the Company is responsible for dstdbfy and maintainir
adequate internal control over financial reportagydefined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 188(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act. Thodesrdefine internal control ov
financial reporting as a process designed to pev@&@sonable assurance regarding the reliabiliinahcial reporting and the preparation of finah@tatements for extert
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatioq principles and includes those policies aratedures that:

« Pertain to the maintenance of records that, inom@se detail, accurately and fairly reflect trengactions and dispositions of the assets of tmep@ay;

« Provide reasonable assurance that transactionseaceded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in accordance with generally aec
accounting principles, and that receipts and exjperes of the Company are being made only in acmed with authorizations of management and direatbthe
Company; ant

« Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventidimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, wsedisposition of the Comparg/’assets that could hav
material effect on the financial statemel

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtwver financial reporting may not prevent or @eteisstatements. Projections of any evaluatioeftgctiveness |
future periods are subject to the risk that costrohy become inadequate because of changes intioosdor that the degree of compliance with thkcpes or procedures m
deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectivehtbes Company'’s internal control over financieporting as of January 3 , 200 #.making this assessment,

Company’s management used the criteria establishelhternal Controlntegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Tready
Commission (COSO).
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Based on their assessment, management has con¢hadeéde Company'’s internal control over finanecggorting was effective as of January 3, 2009.

KPMG LLP, the registered public accounting firm tttaudited the Company’s financial statements, sased an audit report on managensemissessment of 1
Company'’s internal control over financial reportimghich report is included herein.

(b) Attestation Report of the Registered Public AccognEirm. The attestation report called for by Item 308&{bRegulation K is incorporated herein by referel
to Report of Independent Registered Public Accagnkirm on Internal Control Over Financial Repagtimcluded in Part Il, Item 8Financial Statements and Supplemer
Data” of this report.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogdin As required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(d),@menpanys management, including the Chief Exect
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, also conductadevaluation of the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting to detene whether any change occurred during
last fiscal quarter of the period covered by thapart that has materially affected, or is reasondikkly to materially affect, the Compargyinternal control over financ

reporting. Based on that evaluation, there has beechange in the Compagyihternal control over financial reporting duritig last fiscal quarter of the period covered by
report that has materially affected, or is reasnbikely to materially affect, the Company’s intexl control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART 11l

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this Item with respéo Items 401, 405 and 407 of Regulation S-K wjipear in the sections entitled “Election of Dices,”
“Executive Officers and Directors,” “Section 16(Bgneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “@anmate Governance-Committees of the Board-Audit @dtae”
included in the Company'’s definitive Proxy Stateinetating to the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockhaegjevhich information is incorporated herein byereihce.

The Company has adopted the Darling Internatibra Code of Business Conduct (“Code of Busin€ssduct”), which is applicable to all of the Compan
employees, including its senior financial officetfse Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Offic Controller, Treasurer and General Counsel. Gtvapany has not grant
any waivers to the Code of Business Conduct to.dateopy of the Company’s Code of Business Condag been posted on the “Invest@drtion of our web site,
www.darlingii.com. Shareholders may request a free copy of our @b8eisiness Conduct from:

Brad Phillips

Darling International Inc.

251 O’Connor Ridge Blvd, Suite 300
Irving, Texas 75038

Phone: 972-717-0300

Fax: 972-717-1588

Email: bphillips@darlingii.com

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item will appéathe sections entitled “Executive Compensatiand “Corporate Governance-Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation” included inet Companys definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 2008nAal Meeting of Stockholders, which informatior
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12 .SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item with respt Item 201(d) of Regulation S-K appears in Itemf this report.

The information required by this Item with resp&o Item 403 of Regulation S-K will appear in thection entitled Security Ownership of Certain Benefic
Owners and Management” included in the Compamigfinitive Proxy Statement relating to the 200#hBal Meeting of Stockholders, which informationirisorporated here
by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

1

The information required by this Item will appda the sections entitled “Transactions with RethtPersons, Promoters and Certain Control Persamns’
“Corporate Goverance-Independent Directors” inctudethe Company definitive Proxy Statement relating to the 200thAal Meeting of Stockholders, which informatio
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by this Item will appéa the section entitled “Independent Auditorstlinded in the Compang’definitive Proxy Statement relating

the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which infation is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page
(a) Documents filed as part of this repc
(1) The following consolidated financial statementsiamduded in Item 8
Report of Independent Registered Public AcdogrfEirm on Consolidated Financial
Statements 43
Report of Independent Registered Public AcdogrEirm on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting a4
Consolidated Balance She:
January 3, 2009 and December 29, : 45
Consolidated Statements of Operat-
Three years ended January 3, - 46
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity -
Three years ended January 3, 2 47
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl«-
Three years ended January 3, 2 49
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 50
(2) The following financial statement schedule is imigd in Item 8
Schedule |- Valuation and Qualifying Accoun
Three years ended January 3, 2 80

All other schedules are omitted since the requinéarmation is not present or is not present in ants sufficient to require submission of the schedor
because the information required is included indbresolidated financial statements and notes theret
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(3)  Exhibits.

Exhibit No.

Document

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6 *

10.7

10.8

10.9

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Compas amended (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the CompaiRegistration Statement
on Form (-1 filed May 23, 2002 and incorporated herein berefice)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (fileBxhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report om#8-K filed
December 12, 2008 and incorporated herein by neéeje

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (filed as Exhbit to the Company’s Registration Statement omF®+1 filed May 27,
1994 and incorporated herein by referen

Certificate of Designation, Preference and RiglitSeries A Preferred Stock (filed as Exhibit 4.2tte Companys Registratiol
Statement on Form-1 filed May 23, 2002 and incorporated herein berefice)

Recapitalization Agreement, dated as of March 0922 among Darling International Inc., each ofltaeks or other lending
institutions which is a signatory thereto or angessor or assignee thereof, and Credit Lyonnais Xark Branch,
individually as a bank and as agent (filed as AnGer the Company'’s Definitive Proxy Statementditen April 29, 2002, and
incorporated herein by referenc

First Amendment to Recapitalization Agreement, dat® of April 1, 2002, among Darling Internatioirat., each of the banks
party to the Recapitalization Agreement, and Cregitnnais New York Branch, individually as a bamidas agent (filed as
Annex D to the Compar's Definitive Proxy Statement filed on April 29, 2Z)@&nd incorporated herein by referen:

Second Amendment to Recapitalization Agreemengdias of April 29, 2002, among Darling Internatioina., each of the
banks party to the Recapitalization Agreement, @retlit Lyonnais New York Branch, individually abank and as agent (fil:
as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Registration Steset on Form S-1 filed on May 23, 2002, and incoaged herein by
reference)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Decer2®et993, between Darling International Inc., &melsignatory holders
identified therein (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to ther@pany’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filedvmy 27, 1994, and
incorporated herein by referenc

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May2002, between Darling International Inc., and thilérs identified therein
(filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Registratitatement on Form S-1 filed on May 23, 2002, iandrporated herein by
reference)

Form of Indemnification Agreement (filed as Exhib@.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement amF®-1 filed on May
27, 1994, and incorporated herein by referer

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2006, ambragling International Inc., various lending instians party thereto and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (filed as Exhibit 10.thes Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed ih@B, 2006 and
incorporated herein by referenc

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as tff@c 8, 2008, by and among Darling International,las borrower,
various lending institutions party thereto and JPd4o Chase Bank, N.A. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to @@mpany’s Current
Report on Form-K filed October 10, 2008 and incorporated hereinédfgrence)

First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement, dated April 7, 2006, among Darling International Iand the securities

purchasers party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.theeCompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Ag8, 2006 and
incorporated herein by referenc
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10.10

10.11

10.12*

10.13*

10.14 *

10.15*

10.16 *

10.17 *

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22 *

10.23 *

10.24 *

Leases, dated July 1, 1996, between the Companthar@ity and County of San Francisco (filed purgua temporary
hardship exemption under cover of Form £

Lease, dated November 24, 2003, between Darlirgriational Inc. and the Port of Tacoma (filed akikit 10.3 to the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K filed March 29, 2004, and incorporated hereirréference)

1994 Employee Flexible Stock Option Plan (filedeaibit 2 to the Company’s Revised Definitive Prd&tatement filed on
April 20, 2001, and incorporated herein by refegn

Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (filed as iBkHL0.13 to the Company’s Registration Statenm@nEorm S-1/A
filed on June 5, 2002, and incorporated hereingligrence)

Darling International Inc. 2004 Omnibus IncentiarP(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s CurrBeport on Form 8-K
filed May 11, 2005, and incorporated herein by nefiee).

Amendment to Darling International Inc. 2004 Omrsithacentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Camyp's Current Report
on Form K filed January 22, 2007 and incorporated hereindigrence)

Darling International Inc. Compensation Committesmg-Term Incentive Program Policy Statement (filed ahkiBit 10.1 to the
Compan'’s Current Report on Forn-K filed June 22, 2005, and incorporated hereindigrence)

Darling International Inc. Compensation Committee&utive Compensation Program Policy Statementtedajanuary 15,
2009 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Cutri@eport on Form 8-K filed January 21, 2009 andiporated herein by
reference)

Integration Success Incentive Award Plan (filedEahkibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onfr&-K filed March 15,
2006 and incorporated herein by referen

Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Plareffias Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current ReporEorm 8-K filed
March 15, 2006 and incorporated herein by refergl

Amendment No. 1 to Non-Employee Director Restrics¢ack Award Plan, effective as of January 15, 20i0&d as Exhibit
10.4 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed January 21, 2009 and incorporated hereindigrence)

Notice of Amendment to Grants and Awards, datedf&@3ctober 10, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to then@pan's Current
Report on Form-K filed October 10, 2006 and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datetideuary 1, 2009, between Darling Internationel and Randall C.
Stuewe (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s €ntiReport on Form 8-K filed January 21, 2009, imcdrporated herein by
reference)

Form of Senior Executive Termination Benefits Agnemt (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Cutrieeport on Form &
filed November 29, 2007 and incorporated hereimdigrence)

Form of Addendum to Senior Executive Terminatiom&is Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the C@my's Current
Report on Form-K filed December 12, 2008 and incorporated hergingierence)
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10.25*

10.26*

14

21

23

311

31.2

32

Amended and Restated Senior Executive TerminatemeBts Agreement dated, as of January 15, 200@eee Darling
International Inc. and John O. Muse(filed as Exhlifi.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8léd January 21, 2009
and incorporated herein by referenc

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Darlintetnational Inc. and its directors and executiffeers (filed as Exhibit
10.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed February 25, 2008, and incorporated hebsimeference)

Darling International Inc. Code of Business Condamplicable to all employees, including senior exige officers (filed as
Exhibit 14 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed February 25, 2008, and incorporated helsimeference)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed as Exhibit12tb the Company’s Registration Statement on Féfiled on February 2,
2006, and incorporated herein by referen

Consent of KPMG LLP (filed herewith

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rulé-18(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193Rahdall C. Stuewe, the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company (filed hergy.

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rulé-18(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934]Jaifn O. Muse, the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company (filed herewit

Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer and&lrinancial Officer furnished pursuant to Sect86 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350) (filegkéwith).

The Exhibits are available upon request from the Cmpany.

Management contract or compensatory plan or arraage
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{(dhe Securities Act of 1934, the Registrant thaly caused this report to be signed on its bdhathe undersigne
thereunto duly authorized.

DARLING INTERNATIONAL INC.

By: /s/ Randall C. Stuew
Randall C. Stuew
Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 4,2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpuhe following persons on behalf of the registrand in th
capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
s/ Randall C. Stuew Chairman of the Board and March 4, 2009
Randall C. Stuew Chief Executive Office

(Principal Executive Officer)

s/ John O. Must Executive Vice President - March 4, 2009
John O. Must Finance and Administratic
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

s/ 0. Thomas Albreck Director March 4, 2009
O. Thomas Albrecht

s/ C. Dean Carlso Director March 4, 2009
C, Dean Carlson

s/ Marlyn Jorgense Director March 4, 2009
Marlyn Jorgensen

s/ Charles Macalus Director March 4, 2009
Charles Macaluso

/s/ John D. Marct Director March 4, 2009
John D. March

s/ Michael Urbut Director March 4, 2009
Michael Urbut
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

3.1

3.2

4.1

10.1

10.z

10.c

10.4

10.t

10.¢

10.7

10.€

10.¢

10.1C

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Camp as amended (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the ComisaRegistration Statement on Form S-1 filed May 23
2002 and incorporated herein by referen

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company (&ke&xhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current ReporForm 8-K filed December 12, 2008 and
incorporated herein by referenc

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (filed as Exhitl to the Company’s Registration Statement omFS-1 filed May 27, 1994 and incorporated herein
by reference)

Certificate of Designation, Preference and RigtfitSeries A Preferred Stock (filed as Exhibit th2zhe Company’s Registration Statement on Forinfied
May 23, 2002 and incorporated herein by referer

Recapitalization Agreement, dated as of March2DB2, among Darling International Inc., each @fbkanks or other lending institutions which is a
signatory thereto or any successor or assigneedhend Credit Lyonnais New York Branch, indivitlyas a bank and as agent (filed as Annex C to the
Compan’s Definitive Proxy Statement filed on April 29, 2Z)@&nd incorporated herein by referen:

First Amendment to Recapitalization Agreementedas of April 1, 2002, among Darling Internatibime., each of the banks party to the Recapittibra
Agreement, and Credit Lyonnais New York Branchjvidhally as a bank and as agent (filed as Anner Ehe Company Definitive Proxy Statement file
on April 29, 2002, and incorporated herein by refiee).

Second Amendment to Recapitalization Agreemeaatedias of April 29, 2002, among Darling Internasibinc., each of the banks party to the
Recapitalization Agreement, and Credit Lyonnais Newk Branch, individually as a bank and as agéled as Exhibit 10.3 to the ComparsyRegistratior
Statement on Form-1 filed on May 23, 2002, and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Deeer@B, 1993, between Darling International Incd #re signatory holders identified therein (filei a
Exhibit 10.3 to the Compar's Registration Statement on Fori-1 filed on May 27, 1994, and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May2002, between Darling International Inc., andib&lers identified therein (filed as Exhibit 1@dthe
Compan'’s Registration Statement on Fori-1 filed on May 23, 2002, and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Form of Indemnification Agreement (filed as Exhib@.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement amF®-1 filed on May 27, 1994, and incorporated
herein by reference

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2006, agBarling International Inc., various lending instions party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compé’s Current Report on Forn-K filed April 13, 2006 and incorporated herein lefarence)

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated &ctdber 8, 2008, by and among Darling Internatidnel, as borrower, various lending institutions
party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (fledExhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current ReporForm 8-K filed October 10, 2008 and incorporated

herein by reference

First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement, dageaf April 7, 2006, among Darling Internationat | and the securities purchasers party therdeul (fi
as Exhibit 10.2 to the Compé’s Current Report on Forn-K filed April 13, 2006 and incorporated herein lefarence)

Leases, dated July 1, 1996, between the Compahiha City and County of San Francisco (filed parg to temporary hardship exemption under cover of
Form SE).
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10.11

10.12

10.1%

10.14

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢&

10.1¢

10.2¢*

10.21*

10.22

10.2&

10.24

10.25

10.2¢

Lease, dated November 24, 2003, between Darlitegriational Inc. and the Port of Tacoma (filedakibit 10.3 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
1C-K filed March 29, 2004, and incorporated hereirréfgrence)

1994 Employee Flexible Stock Option Plan (filedeaibit 2 to the Company’s Revised Definitive Prad&tatement filed on April 20, 2001, and
incorporated herein by referenc

Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (filed as iBkh.0.13 to the Company’s Registration StatenmnEForm S-1/A filed on June 5, 2002, and
incorporated herein by referenc

Darling International Inc. 2004 Omnibus IncentiarP(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s CurrBeport on Form 8-K filed May 11, 2005, and
incorporated herein by referenc

Amendment to Darling International Inc. 2004 Omrithacentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the C@myp's Current Report on Formifiled January 2:
2007 and incorporated herein by referen

Darling International Inc. Compensation Committemg-Term Incentive Program Policy Statement (fdsdExhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form K filed June 22, 2005, and incorporated hereindfgnence)

Darling International Inc. Compensation Committee&utive Compensation Program Policy Statementtadofanuary 15, 2009 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to
the Compan’'s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 21, 2009 and incorporated hereimdfgrence)

Integration Success Incentive Award Plan (filedEahkibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report onrr&-K filed March 15, 2006 and incorporated herein
by reference)

Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Plareffias Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current ReporEForm 8-K filed March 15, 2006 and
incorporated herein by referenc

Amendment No. 1 to Non-Employee Director Restrickack Award Plan, effective as of January 15, 20i6&d as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form-K filed January 21, 2009 and incorporated hereindfgrence)

Notice of Amendment to Grants and Awards, datedf&3ctober 10, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to thentpan’'s Current Report on Form R-filed Octobe
10, 2006 and incorporated herein by referer

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dateflzaswuary 1, 2009, between Darling Internatidnal and Randall C. Stuewe (filed as Exhibit 1
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 21, 2009, and incorporated hergindference)

Form of Senior Executive Termination Benefits Agnemt (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Cutrieeport on Form 8-K filed November 29, 2007
and incorporated herein by referenc

Form of Addendum to Senior Executive Terminatiom&és Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the C@my's Current Report on Form 8-K filed
December 12, 2008 and incorporated herein by neéeje

Amended and Restated Senior Executive TerminatemeBts Agreement dated, as of January 15, 20@@de@ Darling International Inc. and John O.
Muse(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Compi's Current Report on Forn-K filed January 21, 2009 and incorporated hereindigrence)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Darlimgernational Inc. and its directors and executffecers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form-K filed February 25, 2008, and incorporated helsimeference)
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1

31.

31.

3i

Darling International Inc. Code of Business Cartcapplicable to all employees, including senice@xtive officers (filed as Exhibit 14 to the Compan
Current Report on Form-K filed February 25, 2008, and incorporated helsimeference)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed as Exhitl to the Company’s Registration Statement omF®+4 filed on February 2, 2006, and incorporatecim
by reference)

Consent of KPMG LLP (filed herewith

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Ribel-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193Randall C. Stuewe, the Chief Executive Officettod
Company (filed herewith’

Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rliel-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934obin O. Muse, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company (filed herewith’

Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer a@hief Financial Officer furnished pursuant to Sexst®06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350) (filed herewith

Management contract or compensatory plan or arraege

Page 91










EXHIBIT 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm
The Board of Directors
Darling International Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrtéggstration statements on Form S-4 (No. 333-18)148d Form S-8 (Nos. 333-125875, 33-99868 an@3866) of Darlin
International Inc. of our reports dated March 4020with respect to the consolidated balance sh&feBarling International Inc. and subsidiariesadslanuary 3, 2009 a
December 29, 2007, and the related consolidatéednséats of operations, stockholders’ equity, aashcflows for each of the years in the thyeas period ended Januar
2009, and the related financial statement schedmnié,the effectiveness of internal control oveaficial reporting as of January 3, 2009, which repappear in the January
2009 annual report on Form 10-K of Darling Inteioaal Inc.

Our report dated March 4, 2009, with respect to dbesolidated balance sheets of Darling Internatidnc. as of January 3, 2009 and December 29, ,280d the relate
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdlegrsty, and cash flows for each of the thsesars ended January 3, 2009 and the related fiesteitement schedule cont¢
an explanatory paragraph that refers to the adomfoStatement of Financial Accounting Standards N28(R),Share-Based Paymeand Statement of Financial Account
Standards No. 15&mployer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiod ather Post-Retirement Plans — an Amendment 8B-8tatements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).

(signed) KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 4, 2009










EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Randall C. Stuewe, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Darling International Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistiie a material fact necessary to make the s¢atsnmade, |
light of the circumstances under which such statemeere made, not misleading with respect to tréod covered by this repol

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial conditior
results of operations and cash flows of the regstas of, and for, the periods presented in gpstt;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as defined im&hge Act Rule
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control dwvemcial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

@)

(b)

©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduiies tiesigned under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrantglirding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kméovus by others within those entities, partidylduring the
period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgy;, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under our supervisiomprovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynainicial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterally
accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slaisire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions about the effectivendésbe
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the éttteqperiod covered by this report based on swveltuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the regigsanternal control over financial reporting tletcurred during the registrant's most recent figoarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the caserofhanual report) that has materially affected saeasonably likely to materially affect, the reéxgiat's internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial reporting, teetregistrant's auditc
and the audit committee of the registrant's boaudirectors (or persons performing the equivalemictions):

@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which are reasonably likely
adversely affect the registrant's ability to re¢cgnaibcess, summarize and report financial infororgtand

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registrant's internal control overaficia
reporting.

Date: March 4, 200

/s/ Randall C. Stuew

Randall C. Stuew
Chief Executive Office










EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, John O. Muse, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Darling International Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omistadie a material fact necessary to make the statisnmade, |
light of the circumstances under which such statemeere made, not misleading with respect to tréod covered by this repol

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theaficial conditior
results of operations and cash flows of the regyigtas of, and for, the periods presented in gpsnt;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andré responsible for establishing and maintainiregldsure controls and procedures (as defined im&hge Act Rule
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control dwemcial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bade:

@)

(b)

©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduiies tiesigned under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrantglirding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kméovus by others within those entities, partidylduring the
period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial réjpgy;, or caused such internal control over finahegorting to be designed under our supervisiomrovide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynainicial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterally
accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantslalisire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about the effectivendéshe
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the étiteqoeriod covered by this report based on sweltuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsdnternal control over financial reporting tleatcurred during the registrant's most recent figoarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the caserofianual report) that has materially affectedsaeasonably likely to materially affect, the régiat's internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial reporting, teetregistrant's auditc
and the audit committee of the registrant's bo&directors (or persons performing the equivalemictions):

@

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which are reasonably likey
adversely affect the registrant's ability to reggmibcess, summarize and report financial inforargtand

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's internal control overaficial
reporting.

Date: March 4, 200

/s/ John O. Mus

John O. Must
Chief Financial Officel










EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Drag International Inc. (the “Company”) on Form KOfor the period ending January 3, 2009 as filethuwle Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8ptine undersigned, Randall C. Stuewe, Chief EsigelOfficer of the Company and John O. Muse, Ckiefincial Officer

of the Company, each hereby certifies, pursuafBtt).S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to 8906 dddineanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Act”), that:

1. The Report fully congdiwith the requirements of Section 13(a) or 16{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contdhin the Report fairly presents, in all materedpects, the financial condition and results ofatiens of the Company.

This certification is being furnished sglé&r purposes of compliance with the Act.

/sl John O. Mus

/s/ Randall C. Stuew
Randall C. Stuew John O. Must
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office
Date: March 4, 200

Date: March 4, 200







